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Financial Highlights
MERE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A3MBLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$°000
FExT FET
Revenue WA 315,701 66,113 378%
Profit/(loss) from operations ESER (B18) 12,990 (5,159) 352%
Profit/(loss) before non-controlling FEFERE AR T (E518)
interests 7,304 (6,904) 206%
Non-controlling interests FEIZERR A A 9) (110) (92%)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ARDTESRREN
equity shareholders of B (E8)
_theCompany L T88 ©794) . 208% _
Earnings/(loss) per share BREF(F8)
Basic (HK$) HARGETL) 0.003 (0.003) 200%
Diluted (HK$) #a (BT 0.003 (0.003) 200%
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and
the management of Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (the
"Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | present the
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the
“Year” or “Reporting Period”).

In 2022, the continued negative impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the
overall economic environment in the PRC and Hong Kong, coupled with
the Russia-Ukraine war causing a sharp increase in fuel prices, has resulted
in high global inflation. Faced with the changing external operating
environment and significant market fluctuations, the Group disposed of
a subsidiary, namely, Treasure Cloud Limited which focused on cloud-
related business in 2022. The disposal provided a good opportunity for
the Group to withdraw from the cloud-related business and reallocate
resources to the Group's existing businesses, as well as to develop its new
business, sales of semi-conductors for the Year.

During the Reporting Period, the Group collaborated with a company with
years of experience in semi-conductor sales for a new business of sales of
semi-conductors. The new business primarily sells semi-conductor memory
chips and contributed significantly to the Group's revenue growth in
2022. It is expected that the new business will make an even greater
contribution to the Group’s sales and profits in the future.

As the domestic and Hong Kong economies will gradually recover with
the lifting of entry and exit restrictions in 2023, the Group will seize the
opportunity for future economic growth and expand into existing and
new business markets. At the same time, in the face of rising operating
costs due to high global inflation, the Group will implement more
stringent financial budgeting and cost controls to cope with the changing
operating environment in the future.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my thankfulness
and appreciation to my fellow Directors, management team and all the
staff of the Group for their dedications and hard work, which contributed
to the Group’s development. | would also like to express our sincere
gratitude to all the shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and customers,
suppliers, and business partners for their continuous supports and
persistent trust to the Group.

Guo, Yumin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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Organisation Chart
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFmR DM

OVERVIEW

During the Year, the Group commenced a new business segment which
was related to sales of semi-conductor products. The total revenue for
the Year was approximately HK$315.7 million, representing an increase
of approximately 377.5% compared to approximately HK$66.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The increase in total revenue was
mainly from the sales of semi-conductors segment.

The new business and segment information disclosed in results of
operation. The Group now maintains its business classified into four
segments, namely, (i) sales of sub-processing cigarette films; (i) sales of
semi-conductors; (iii) properties development and related services; and (iv)
generation of photovoltaic power.

RESULTS OF OPERATION
Revenue
Sales of sub-processing cigarette films

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue amounting to approximately
HK$3.7 million from sales of sub-processing cigarette and non-cigarette
films (for the year ended 31 December 2021: approximately HK$8.1
million).

Sales of semi-conductors

The Group started the trading business of wafer and memory chips during
the Year. The revenue from sales of semi-conductors was approximately
HK$255.3 million for the Year.

Properties development

The properties development revenue were generated from sales of
remaining inventories of previous property project, which contributed
approximately HK$0.4 million to the Group for the Year (for the year
ended 31 December 2021: approximately HK$0.4 million).

Generation of photovoltaic power

For the Year, the Group had three photovoltaic power stations
in operation. The revenue generated from this segment reached
approximately HK$56.2 million for the Year (for the year ended 31
December 202 1: approximately HK$57.6 million).

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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Gross Profit

The gross profit increased by approximately HK$2.1 million, or
approximately 5.8%, from approximately HK$36.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to approximately HK$38.5 million for the Year.
Our gross profit margin decreased from approximately 55.1% for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately 12.2% for the Year. The
decrease was mainly from sales of semi-conductors segment which was in
lower gross profit margin than other segments.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The selling and distribution expenses amounted to approximately HK$0.3
million for the Year (for the year ended 31 December 2021: approximately
HK$0.5 million).

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses decreased by approximately HK$3.4 million,
or approximately 11.2%, from approximately HK$30.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to approximately HK$27.0 million for the Year.

Impairment Loss

The Group has engaged an independent valuer to perform impairment
assessment and calculated the expected credit loss in accordance with
Hong Kong Accounting Standards. During the Year, the Group recorded
reversal of impairment losses of approximately HK$2.8 million on trade
and other receivables (for the year ended 31 December 202 1: impairment
losses on trade and other receivables approximately HK$14.6 million).

Finance Costs
The finance costs amounted to approximately HK$0.9 million for the Year
(for the year ended 31 December 2021: approximately HK$1.0 million).

Income Tax

The income tax expense amounted to approximately HK$4.8 million for
the Year (for the year ended 31 December 2021: income tax expenses
approximately HK$0.8 million).

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

Profit Attributable to the Shareholders of the
Company

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded a profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of approximately
HK$7.3 million for the Year as compared to a loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of approximately HK$6.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the cash and cash equivalent of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$330.9 million (which were denominated
in HK$, RMB and US$) as compared with approximately HK$344.9 million
as at 31 December 2021, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$14.0 million. The decrease is the sum of the Group's net cash outflow
of operating activities, net cash inflow of investment activities and net
cash outflow of financing activities that amounted to approximately
HK$14.3 million, approximately HK$37.7 million and approximately
HK$1.0 million respectively. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s current
ratio being the rate of total current assets to total current liabilities was
19.6 (as at 31 December 2021: 18.9).

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any material bank
loans, debt securities, borrowings, indebtedness, guarantees, hire
purchase commitments or mortgages (as at 31 December 2021: Nil).

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rate

Currently, the Group has no hedging policy with respect to the foreign
exchange exposure. As the functional currency for all subsidiaries in
the PRC are RMB, these subsidiaries were not exposed to any currency
risks due to the exchange rate movement of RMB during the Year. For
subsidiaries established outside the PRC, they had no material financial
assets and liabilities denominated in RMB. Accordingly, the Group's
exposure to RMB risk is insignificant.

Capital Expenditure

During the Year, the Group’s total capital expenditure amounted to
approximately HK$0.2 million.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Save as disclosed above, there is no significant event after the Year and
up to the date of this report.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

On 17 May 2022, the Company (the “Vendor”) entered into a share
purchases agreement with Yuko International Investment Limited (the
“Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell all
issued shares of Treasure Cloud Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, at the consideration of HK$21.4 million (the “Disposal”)
to the Purchaser.

For the details of the Disposal, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 17 May 2022.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed 57 employees (as
compared with 67 employees as at 31 December 2021) with total
staff cost of approximately HK$12.1 million for the Year. The Group’s
remuneration packages are generally structured with reference to market
terms and individual merits. The Company has also adopted a pre-IPO
share option scheme and a share option scheme to provide incentive or
reward to high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board is pleased to propose a final dividend of HK1.0 cent per share
for the Year (for the year ended 31 December 2021: Nil).

ADVANCE TO THE ENTITY

On 2 June 2022 (after trading hours), Xuzhou New Advantage Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (the “Lender”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the loan agreement (the “2022
First Loan Agreement”) with Suining Chuyue Zhiye Company Limited*
(BB EEE AR QA (the “Borrower”), granting a loan of RMB55.0
million for a term of six months from 2 June 2022 to 1 December 2022
at an interest rate of 0.5% per month to the Borrower which executed,
among others, an equity pledge over the 60% equity interest in the
Borrower held by Mr. Sun Chuyue (the “Guarantor”) as security in favour
of the Group and a personal guarantee provided by Mr. Sun Yong (“Mr.
Sun”), father of the Guarantor.

*  For identification purposes only

Management Discussion and Analysis
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On 15 November 2022 (after trading hours), the Lender entered into the
loan agreement (the “2022 Second Loan Agreement”) with the Borrower
and Mr. Sun (as guarantor), pursuant to which the Lender agreed to
provide to the Borrower a loan amount up to RMB45.0 million for a term
of approximately seven months from 15 November 2022 to 17 June
2023, which carries interest at an interest rate of 0.58% per month and
is secured by the equity pledge of 60% equity interest in Borrower and
personal guarantee provided by Mr. Sun.

Each of the loan as provided under the 2022 First Loan Agreement and
the 2022 Second Loan Agreement constitutes a financial assistance
provided by the Lender within the meaning of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Each of
the loan as provided under the 2022 First Loan Agreement and the 2022
Second Loan Agreement also constitutes an advance to an entity under
Rule 13.13 of the Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 2
June 2022 and 15 November 2022.

PROSPECTS

The Group newly set up the sales of semi-conductors segment which
focused on trading of semi-conductors memory chips and wafer in
2022. As the decline of the effects of COVID-19 pandemic, domestic
and worldwide economies will gradually recover. It is expected that the
demand of the semi-conductors memory chips will increase steadily.
In order to grasp the opportunity of economic growth, the Group will
further evaluate the feasibility of expanding the sales of semi-conductors
segment from trading of semi-conductors memory chips to sub-processing
and manufacturing semi-conductor products in the future.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the Year. The Group strives to reduce exposure to
credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of
the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity
structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can
meet its funding requirements from time to time.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any capital
commitments (as at 31 December 2021: Nil).

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (referred to as the
"Group” or "we") focuses on sales of sub-processing cigarette
films, sales of semi-conductors, properties development and
generation of photovoltaic power. The principal facilities are located
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

This report summarises several subjects of the Group’s business
practices for the Environmental, Social and Governance (referred to
as the "ESG") report (referred to as the “Report”) and its relevant
implemented policies and strategies in relation to the Group's
operational practices and environmental protection. For information
regarding corporate governance, please refer to the “Corporate
Governance Report” in this annual report.

The Report covers the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2022 (the "Year” or “2022").

Reporting Framework

The Report has been prepared with reference to the ESG Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK™).

In preparation of the ESG Report, due diligence has been taken to

adhere to the reporting principles of “Materiality”, “Quantitative”
and “Consistency”.

Materiality: The ESG Report is structured based on the materiality
of respective issues and we identified the most material ESG issues
pertaining to our businesses through the materiality assessment, as
disclosed in pages 17 to 21 of this Report. The materiality of issues
was reviewed and confirmed by the Board.

Quantitative: The ESG Report prepared in accordance with the
ESG Reporting Guide and discloses key performance indicators
(KPIs) in environmental and social aspects in a quantitative way
wherever possible and gives comparative data where appropriate.
The KPIs were calculated and presented with reference to the ESG
Reporting Guide. The Report details any standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation tools used, or source of conversion
factors used.
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Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, this Report applies the data
statistics and calculation methods that are consistent with those
in last year ESG report to provide a meaningful comparison with
data over previous years. If there is any change that may affect
comparison with previous reports, the Group will add explanatory
notes to the corresponding sections.

This ESG Report has undergone the internal review process of the
Group and was approved by the Board.

Reporting Scope

The Report content covers the Group’s ESG policies and measures,
and compliance of the major subsidiaries including Jiangsu Sheen
Color Science Technology Co., Ltd. and Xuzhou Shuntai New Energy
Power Generation Co., Ltd. both located in the PRC. Compare to
last year, we have included Century Leader Asia Limited in this year,
owing to the new segment, sales of semi-conductor, commenced
in 2022. The contents disclosed in the environmental aspect of this
Report mainly covered major business segments of the Group: sales
of sub-processing cigarette films, generation of photovoltaic power
and sales of semi-conductor. The business segment of properties
development is not included in the environmental aspect of this
Report owing to their non-materiality to the Group. The social aspect
of this Report covers the Group-wide data.

Comments and Feedback

We make every effort to ensure consistency between the Chinese
and English versions of this Report. However, in the event of any
inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.

The progress of the Group depends in part on valuable comments
from stakeholders. For any clarifications or advice regarding
the content of this Report, please forward your comments and
suggestions to investorrelations@sheentai.com.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Group adjusts and
facilities the sustainability performance approaches via regular
meetings with an ESG working group. The management conducts
regular reviews of ESG-related metric materials to respective
subsidiaries. Furthermore, the Group identifies and evaluates the
materiality of the diverse range of ESG topics that are interrelated
with our business operations (See next section: Materiality
Assessment). The most material ESG topics which guide the Group'’s
corporate strategy are validated by the Board. As we advance our
sustainability journey, the Group endeavours to raise the Board’s
knowledge and awareness of the ESG landscape.

Board Statement

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy
and reporting, which include determination and evaluation of the
ESG related risks and opportunity, as well as supervision to ensure
the suitable and effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems are in place.

The Group conducts a top-down approach to cooperate with the
Audit Committee, Management and Internal Audit Function to
conduct ESG-related risk management and opportunities assessment
in an ongoing basis. The Board is responsible for overseeing the
risk management and internal control mechanism to ensure every
strategic plan and vision, as well as operational guidelines for ESG
matters are operating smoothly.
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The Board has formed an ESG working group to assist and advise
the Board on the development and implementation of ESG
strategies, policies and practices and priorities of the Group, assist
the Board in reviewing ESG performance and targets and exploring
ESG related opportunities. It also has the responsibility for collecting
data from different departments and business operations and
analysing (including but not limited to comparing with historical
data) and verifying ESG data after collected, ensuring compliance
with ESG-related laws and regulations, and preparing ESG report.
The ESG working group comprises of the representatives of different
departments, including human resource department, finance
department, and the other main business segments to ensure the
diverse backgrounds and expertise in ESG management. The Group
will review the composition of the ESG working group on a regular
basis. The ESG working group also assists in implementing various
initiatives for achieving the targets. The Board will have meeting
with the ESG working group at least once per year and receive
briefings on any updated ESG issues, including the progress of
ESG related goals and targets, on a regular basis. By reviewing and
evaluating the implementation of policies, the Board is up-to-date
regarding the performance and the risk and opportunities of ESG of

the Group.

The audit committee, assisted by the internal control team,
supports the Board to assess and manage risks includes, but
not limited to environment, human resources, health and safety
and compliance. These risks have been embedded into the risk
management processes including risk identification, risk assessment,
risk treatment, monitoring and review processes. The result of the
overall ESG performance and ESG-related risk assessment will be
reported to the Board on an annual basis for review in order to

ensure that the Group’s ESG strategy and goals are achieved.

The Board tracks, reviews and follow up on the achievement of
objective of the main ESG issues (including ESG related goals and
targets) at least once a year in order to bridge the gap between
current progress and the expectations. The Board will also ensure

the Group's policies are continuously implemented.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Materiality Assessment

Sustainable development encompasses a holistic spectrum of
environmental and social aspects. It is crucial for the Group to
determine the most material aspects in order to harness the related
risks and opportunities. The Group adopts a three-step process of
identification, prioritisation and validation to ensure sustainability

topics are being managed and reported in accordance with their
materiality.

4

Identification

In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide, all fundamental
sustainability topics were identified. In the context of the
latest sustainability landscape, the Group has determined the
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following 23 topics that are deemed to have an impact on

the environment and society through the operations.

ESG Aspects

BRiE #HBRERE@E
Environmental
B

Al

A2

A3

A4

Emissions

HEn

Use of Resources

BiRE A

The Environment and Natural Resources

BRERARER

Climate Change
FIREE

WRABBEEHRANTTEETEN

22
FERE o

Material ESG issues for the Group
HEEEMEEANERE tBREREE

Air emissions

FERHEL

Greenhouse gas emissions
SRR HEL

Hazardous waste management
BEEEMER

Non-hazardous waste management
BEFEEMER

Effluent discharges

TIKBERR

Noise emissions

R EHEN

Energy consumption

BEIREAE

Water consumption

KEIREFE

Packaging material consumption
BEMELER

Environmental risk management
REBEERER

Ecological impacts

HRERTE

Climate-change strategy
R 5 R
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RiR - HERERBHE

ESG Aspects

BE #HERERER

Material ESG issues for the Group

HEAEEBEANRE  HERERRE

B1

B2

B3

B4

B5

B6

B7

B8

Social

e

Employment

=

Health and Safety
HEERZE

Development and Training
R RIE

Labour Standards

BT AER

Supply Chain Management
HEEEIR

Product and Service Responsibility

EmMREEE

Anti-corruption
k&=
Community Investment

HEREE

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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20.

21.

22.

23.

Employment and remuneration policies
TR 1R M BBeR

Occupational health and workplace safety
BEERRIIEB5MEE

Employee development and training
REEREKIEI

Anti-child and forced labour

PIEET REHST

Supply chain management

HEEEEIR

Quality and safety of the goods/services
Em/ REEERES

Customer satisfaction

BEEMEE

Personal data privacy protection

B A B RHRE

Protection of intellectual property rights, ethical marketing
communication and product labelling
HERERE EREHIDREMTE
Anti-corruption and anti-competitive practices
RE[RREFITH

Community investment

HEREE
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(2) Prioritisation (2) #HmEBEX

The Group sought the views of senior management of REFEMERE  HEgREEENEE
respective operational regions to determine the materiality M AEEZFSEESENESEEEA
of the selected ESG topics. The senior management, who BWEZE BHREEBEABEEMBEE
possesses a high-level view of all the topics and has access to BMEERIMEER - ReeZ2RBNE
stakeholders’ feedback, was asked to score the significance MR ARESHODENAEERT
of each ESG topic to stakeholder groups and the Group in RAEHEERE Mg REREENE
each of his/her perspective. The topmost-right quadrant ZHFS  cBAELRRETSEEZHN
determines the high materiality topics. i o

ESG Materiality Matrix
B HgREREEHER
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Highly material topics

BEEENHRE
Ranking Number Topics
PR R 3
Highest 14. Occupational health and safety
BE BERERLZE
18. Quality and safety of the goods/services
En/REEERER
19. Customer satisfaction
BEEWEE
16. Anti-child and forced labour
B 1EE T Ragls T
20. Personal data privacy protection
BB RHR
21. Protection of intellectual property rights, ethical marketing communication and product labeling
HBERRE - BESHEDNERSH
22. Anti-corruption and anti-competitive practices
RESRRBEFITR
13. Employment and remuneration policies
ZYSERTEE S
15. Employee development and training
EE#RENIE
17. Supply chain management
HEEER
3. Hazardous waste management
BEEREMER
5. Effluent discharges
TEIKEERL
9. Packaging material consumption
BEMELERE
7. Energy consumption
BEIRE#E
8. Water consumption
IKERBFE
4. Non-hazardous waste management
mEEENEED
6. Noise emissions
IR EHEN
10. Environmental risk management
RIEERERE
11. Ecological impacts
R E
Lowest 12. Climate-change strategy
RIE RRE (2R

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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(3) Validation

The Board has reviewed and validated the materiality process,
and hence the Report discloses the Group’s performance
on all high and low materiality topics. To address matters
most material to the Group’s stakeholders, topics of high
materiality are discussed in more depth throughout the
Report. The materiality assessment of all the issues was
approved by the Board.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group believes that identifying and addressing stakeholder
views lay a solid foundation to the long-term growth and
success of the Group. The Group engages with a wide network
of stakeholders, including shareholders, employees, customers,
suppliers, government and community.

ot Sheen Tai
Shareholders | % ® Holdings
BER \ .
NI S e
Employeeis @@
B8

(S 8

o

\‘
Customers \
BF N

The Group develops multiple engagement channels that provide
opportunities for stakeholders to express their views on the Group’s
general business conduct and sustainability management. The
engagement channels are summarised in the following table. To
reinforce mutual trust and respect, the Group is committed to
maintaining effective communication channels with stakeholders in
both formal and informal ways. This can enable the Group to better
shape its business strategies in order to respond to their needs and
expectations, anticipate risks and strengthen key relationships.
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Stakeholders

Engagement channels

Topics of interest/concern
Bx B ERE

AN

BHHE SHERE
Shareholders o General meetings o Business strategies and sustainability
s BAAE SHBE R  ERR
00 o o Regular corporate publications including o Financial performance
% financial reports and ESG report R
EEIR T RY) - BIERBHRE MIRE . Corporate governance
B REARS GEEA
o Circulars and announcements
ERYS YN
o Direct enquiries
HEESH
o Corporate website
\_ A FNBY
Gmployees ° Performance appraisals . Training and development
%8 KRS YRR
® ° Training sessions . Employee remuneration and welfare
(V] BRI 12 BB A8 A
o Social media o Occupational health and safety
AR BEEEEZE
o Equal opportunities
\_ FERE
/Customers o Business meetings o Service quality and reliability
Eg = EF Ak PR7%E 8 K& Al S
/ o Complaint and feedback channels o Client data security
ling. ) B RERE BERPHEBELZE
o Social media o Business ethics
A iEse SR
o Corporate website

o

NGIE DA

AN

AN

\_

@uppliers ° Business meetings J Fair competition
(HRERg ES NS ES
o Supplier assessment o Business ethics
@@ HIEmRT [EESEE
° Continuous direct communication
\_ BEEEER
/Govemment o Statutory filings and notification o Compliance with law and regulations
TRF TEIE E B A BT
o Regulatory or voluntary disclosures o Business strategies and sustainability
Eiﬁ TN EERE SRR TR ERR

Environmental protection
BHRE

AN

fCommunity o Community activities o Fair employment opportunities
tE HEES RNPESRS
M ° Corporate donations . Environmental protection
R RIERE
g o Corporate website
NSk
° Social media
\ MR

AN
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ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

Environmental sustainability is a key part of the Group’s social
responsibility effort. Guided by our Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy, we work to manage our direct and indirect impacts to the
environment through mitigating our own footprint and advocating
green finance.

The Group is committed to providing quality products to clients
in a clean and sustainable manner. Our activities typically engage
in the processes of printing sub-processing films, generating
photovoltaic power and sales of semi-conductor. Environmental
impacts of facilities are managed by the management systems of
each respective subsidiary. The system ensures strict environmental
compliances of various subsidiaries, as well as continual
improvement towards cleaner practices. Periodic system reviews are
conducted to ensure its effectiveness.

Aspect A1: Emissions and waste generated

The Group implements robust systems to ensure all discharges
to air, water and land are compliant with regulatory standards.
The Group has mainly focused on environmental protection and
pollutant emission during production and operation. By establishing
a management system in accordance with the national laws and
regulations, the Group constantly monitors and reviews the emission
performance during production. The Group will continue to make
every effort on clean production, energy-saving, consumption
reduction, pollution reduction and efficiency improvement, so as to
minimise the impact and safeguard of the ecosystem.

During the Year, the Group did not encounter any incident of non-
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations related to air
emissions, effluent discharges, noise emissions, greenhouse gases
(GHG), waste at all operating regions. Major laws and regulations
applicable are detailed in respective sections.

Air emissions

The Group's air emissions are mainly released from the vehicle usage
and production processes, which include the emission of sulphur
oxides (SO)), nitrogen oxides (NO,) and particulate Matter (PM).
Company fleet and machinery undergoes regular maintenance to
ensure fuel efficiency, thereby reducing emissions.
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The major applicable laws and regulations related to the control of
air emissions include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on Air
Pollution Control. In addition to keeping air emission levels meeting
statutory requirements, the Group devoted resources to further
curb the release of air pollutants during the Year.

The Group released 46.7 kg, 0.1 kg and 4.5 kg of Nitrogen Oxides,
Sulphur Oxides, and Particulate Matter respectively in 2022,

remaining similar with the amounts in 2021.

The increase in NO,, SO, and PM was due to an additional vehicle
acquired in 2022.

Air emissions'

BESRBERL

Nitrogen Oxides (NO )
A|LMNO)
Sulphur Oxides (SO,)
wmaltm(so,)
Particulate Matter (PM)
FERIPI(PM)

! Air emissions included only the air pollutants in the exhaust gas from
vehicles for transportation.

Effluent discharges

The major applicable laws and regulations related to control of
effluent discharges include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on
the Prevention and Treatment of Water Pollution. The waste water
from production processes results in effluent discharges. Each facility
ensures its proper handling, either by qualified subcontractors
or on-site processing prior to discharge to municipal sewers.
Processing records from subcontractors will then be retained by the
Group. Our facilities also generate domestic wastewater that will be
monitored prior to discharge. Periodic monitoring and testing of a
comprehensive list of parameters ensures regulatory compliance and
no adverse environmental impacts of effluent discharges. During
the Year, the effluent discharges has been identified and confirmed
as non-material to the Group’s operations.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Noise emissions

The Group's activities are minor sources of noise emissions, which
include mechanical noise from the use of machinery and equipment,
as well as aerodynamic noise from transportation vehicles. Regular
maintenance of machinery and pre-start up inspections ensure noise
levels are kept within regulatory limits. Operational hours are always
conducted within stipulated time frames as under regulations.
Adherence to strict procedures ensures these hazards are managed
effectively. Regular monitoring of noise emission levels ensures
operations are compliant to regulatory levels. The Group ensures
all equipment used provide stationary required protections for
employees and other affected parties.

The major applicable laws and regulations related to control of
noise emissions include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on
Prevention and Control of Environmental Noise Pollution. Noise
assessments are conducted to determine the impact of noise
emissions on the local community.

Greenhouse gas emissions and climate change mitigation

To implement an effective approach to climate change mitigation, it
is important to have a comprehensive understanding of the carbon
emission sources of the Group. The Group’s carbon footprint
is primarily due to electricity usage, accounted under Scope I
emissions. During the Year, the Group generated a total of 481.6
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e) of greenhouse gases
(Scope I and Il), resulting in a carbon intensity of 0.02 tCO,e per
square meter gross floor area. The total amount greenhouse gas
emissions decreased in 2022 was due to less electricity purchased
and consumed in response to the lockdowns of the national Zero-
COVID policy during 2022.
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Greenhouse gas emissions? Unit

EER e By
Scope | (Direct Emissions)? tCO,e 17.7 9.4

#E— (B3 WS LIEE
Mobile combustion? tCO,e 17.7 9.4

mENRGE WE—SE(LIREE
Scope Il (Indirect Emissions) tCO,e 463.9 670.8

& [E — (AR WE—SE LIRSS
Electricity purchased tCO,e 463.9 670.8

BE WE—SLIEE
Total (Scope | and II) tCO,e 481.6 680.2

SEHEE— k) WE— i =
Carbon intensity (Scope I and II)! tCO,e per 0.02 0.03

m? gross

floor area

M E (R — k) TP RS

EFEME — E/EhiR

EE

! Intensities in 2022 and 2021 were calculated by dividing the amount
of GHG emission by the gross floor area of the Group in 2022 and

2021, which both were 21,321.6 square meter gross floor area;

2 GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent and

based on but not limited to “Notice on the Management of Enterprise
Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reporting by Power Generation Industry
for 2023-2025" ((BAMA M EF2023-2025F R 2R EREH R EE

2022F K202V FHFETiBiBIE = REE P
EBRUAREER2022F %2021 FHEEME
TEAEH  AEERZMETENREREY
521,321.6F 75K

EEREEMEBIA S REERTRER
BRI AT 2023-2025 4 P ERBER
BENREEIEAEIIENBIRELERS
REE AR AR (ERAT]) FIZ N4

SURSE - HE REARE)IAIME— : REH
RAMIERERES ] R

BHEBI{ERBAN)) and “How to prepare an ESG Report-Appendix
2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”, issued by the Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (the “HKEx"); and

3 The increase in scope | was due to an additional vehicle acquired in 3 #E— IR BR2022 FEIMEE TBE AT
2022. e

HEBEARBEERAEBMP AR 2 — -
KEZEER T EER TR EREE - 20229 © &K
EENRREVRAEESSAEETARE &5
E55.1AETERE - EBEF0.8% @ 820214
BBAFN A% BT o REENIRENEME
—EPURFREIHS  BRIRRZERAN
{E AR EEE - B% T43,619.3 —FbiE
EMRERE(EE ) BIMEIRES -

The sales of self-generated photovoltaic power was one of the
Group's revenue sources. The solar panels do not emit any
greenhouse gases. In 2022, the Group produced a total of 55.5
million kilowatt-hours (“kWh") of electricity from its photovoltaic
power stations and sold a total of 55.1 million kWh of electricity,
resulting in 0.8% of electricity overproduction which decreased
from 1.1% of electricity overproduction in 2021. The sole customer
of the Group’s photovoltaic electricity was located in Jiangsu
Province, China at which the replacement of high-environmental
impact electricity from fossil fuel sources had avoided 43,619.3
tCO,e of greenhouse gases (Scope Il) released into the environment.
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The Group is committed to reducing our carbon footprint. Scope
| and Il emissions are addressed through our energy reduction
initiatives (See Section: A2.1 Energy Consumption). Scope llI
emissions incur throughout our value chain, and we employ the
following measures to minimise such emissions:

o The Group encourages the use of video conferencing or
emails for communication as far as possible to minimise the
carbon footprint from overseas business trips; and

o We make every effort to reduce waste generation and
raise recycling rates to lessen GHG releases from landfill

decomposition.

Targets and proposed steps

Areas Targets
EEbo BE
GHG emissions In line with the global trend of

decarbonisation and national carbon
neutrality goal by 2060, the Group has been
focusing on the control of its GHG emissions.

REREBHEN BB D TBE ) 2 BB E K 20604F B IR K
PMERE R AEE-BERAONESE
BEREHE o
Taking 2022 as the baseline year, the Group
targets to reduce its GHG emissions intensity
(scope 1 + scope 2) by 3% by the end of
2030.

#2022 F1EAEESF « AEBEEH2030F
EHELREREBENEE (BEN+&EE2) R
3% o

BRI - @ RERHE

REBBOR iR IF o HAPIARDRESE e FE X
HE—N BN (REE - A2 168REFE)
HE=MHREERMNBEEERTEL -
BAIEHRBUA TSR AR -

o AEENBHREEMAREGSAXETEE
B AR BINEISIRT TR R BT ¢

o RMERMEALERNELRESER
BA% - LR RED BN RS
o

BIZREZIEIE

Proposed Steps

EREE

Other than the existing initiatives, we strive
to reduce our greenhouse gas emissions
through the lowering of our energy
consumption from the major areas which
include air conditioning and lighting systems.
BRTIREERI BT SHhBBEEEE
IS (RIEEHLRARS) KRB
DRERBYM -

The Group will continue feature upgrades
of the building facilities and installations and
monitor the electricity usage on a regular
basis and follow-up with those exceeding the
normal usage standards.
REBGEBHEFTREREEETIEE
& WFHERAESE  REBHEE®EM
IKFHIER °
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Hazardous waste management

All collected hazardous waste, mainly waste engine, is transported
and treated by authorised contractors who possess qualifications
to handle hazardous waste. The amount of disposed waste is
checked for consistency with contractor reports to ensure all matter
is entirely disposed in the most appropriate manner. All hazardous
waste is stored at designated storage points that are leak-proof and
rain-proof. At each stage, clear protocols have been established
to ensure all hazardous matter is handled and stored in a safe and
secure manner. Any incidents of spillage or leakage will be handled
under proper procedures and be documented.

The major applicable laws and regulations related to the control
of hazardous waste include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law
on Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution from Solid
Wastes. To embody sustainable development principles, we aim
to explore opportunities to replace raw materials, equipment and
production techniques that are highly hazardous to the environment
with less hazardous alternatives. We sort our hazardous waste to
ensure those recyclables are recycled, such as toner cartridges that
are returned to suppliers for recycling. Furthermore, we prioritise
waste recycling to minimise hazardous waste generation. For
instance, we perform the measures of self-repair or send to the
manufactures for recycling the damaged solar panels and electronic
components before discarding.

During the Year, the Group’s hazardous waste consists of waste
printer cartridge which does not have a material impact to the
operation.

Non-hazardous waste management

The typical non-hazardous waste generated by the Group's facilities
includes plastic and food waste. The majority of waste is recycled
by qualified contractors. We place a greater emphasis on waste
reduction, as it creates the least amount if environmental impacts.
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The major applicable laws and regulations related to the control
of non-hazardous waste include, but are not limited to, the PRC
Law on Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution from
Solid Wastes. Seeking to contribute to the closed-loop economy,
we employ the following measures and initiatives to reduce the
generation of non-hazardous waste, and raise recycling rates and
will continue to review the effectiveness of the existing initiatives on
a regular basis:

° We organise and maintain waste separation systems and
recycling bins for collecting materials;

° We encourage smart printing modes in the workplace;

° We collects used paper and toner cartridges for recycling; and

o We monitor and evaluate the use of material to avoid
overstock, as well as strengthen production inspection all
through production processes to reduce and avoid rework.

During the Year, the Group generated a total of 1,327.9 kg
of non-hazardous waste, resulting in a non-hazardous waste
intensity of 0.06 kg per square meter gross floor area. The Group
adopted incineration method to deal with its non-hazardous
waste generated, such as metal and used towel for oil. Since the
preparation and operation of incineration consumed a lot of energy,
the Group tends to accumulate the non-hazardous waste until
approximately 2 tonnes and deal with these at once. The amount in
2021 was lower because the amount of non-hazardous waste was
still less than 2 tonnes.

Non-hazardous waste

BEBEREY

BRI - @ RERHE

EREZERVENNIEERERLERE
BETRA(FEARKMBEEEEYSRRE
Prak) - BAARKEMOER - RARRT
IR EERLEEBTERY MR ER
BRA%X - WS TE iR A E KR

o RIERBMGEEEY D BERSLARK
SV EIAE

o BMEEVETIESMEMEETHRA

o RFMERBHACRMBHRETEIK
&

o EMEARFEMHBE  UeEHFS
% AENRBELERENEEREIA
A R B EE

RAEE » REBHEA327 9T BEREE
Y BEBRENTEABTHKELMEEO06
DT - AEERBARICEZREBEELENEZRE
Y meBRABRET o BRERIER
MEBEERREER  NEEERNEEERE
EYERIA2WERESEITLRNEIR 20214
MEBERE BAAEEEEVHENTE2
g o

Incineration

ple

Total non-hazardous waste generated
ESREERDES
Non-hazardous waste intensity’

! Intensities in 2022 and 2021 were calculated by dividing the amount
of non-hazardous waste by the gross floor area of the Group in 2022
and 2021, which both were 21,321.6 square meter gross floor area.

kg 1,327.9 739.6

kg 1,327.9 739.6

kg per m? 0.06 0.03
gross floor area
FFITREE
HEEAT

1 02F K20 FHHEBBEEEENSE
2022F K202V FHHETBIBEEEEDN
ERAREBER2022F K2021 FHEEMME
FTER/RY  AEERZMEFENEEEEY
521,321,677 -
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Targets and proposed steps

Areas Targets
Eibo B

Non-hazardous waste The Group targets to lower the non-
hazardous waste generated from operations
and business activities by 3% of non-

hazardous waste intensity by the end of 2030

from 2022.

EEEBERYEENZ%

Aspect A2: Use of resources

The Group is committed to continually monitoring and improving
resource efficiency as an integral part of business strategy and
operating methods, as well as complying with relevant government
policies and environmental legislations. We will continue to review
the effectiveness of the existing initiatives and set achievable targets
in future years. During the Year, the Group did not encounter
incident of non-compliance with all applicable laws and regulations
related to the use of energy and water resources at all operating
regions. Major applicable laws and regulations are detailed in
respective sections.

Energy

The Group’s energy profile consists of the use of electricity and
natural gas for facility operations. Fuel used for electricity is the
major source of energy emission in our operations, accounted
for 813.4 of total energy consumption in 2022. During the Year,
the Group consumed 64.5 mWh and (54,254.6) mWh of direct
and indirect energy respectively, resulting a total energy intensity
of (2.54) mWh per square meter gross floor area. Except the
consumption of petrol remained at similar with 2021, the decrease
in electricity purchases was due to the lockdowns in response to
the national Zero-COVID policy and reducing the Group’s tobacco
business.
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AEBEGEM2022F R E2030F X AR E

B IR REFH

Proposed Steps
ERiEhE

The Group commits to allocating additional
resources towards the implementation of
sustainable waste management practices,
including providing reusable containers
for employees for meals, considering the
products, like packing materials, made from
recycled materials or that can be recycled
after use.

SEAGHEBBFEINER - BEiEAIHENREY
ERfEN  BREABIRHIEEFEANE
AR EREARE BRI EK A E
ERBOER - flinaRME -

BMmEA2 : EREH

EREBRERZETAN—R  AEERN
SEER R AERM - AR E T HBEBUT
BERRBRFED] - RIS HERREHEIERD
R WHARREFREANERGBIF - XA
FEAN  AEERZEERHELRERRBR
EERMKERERERERERNENS - =
ZIERERRERN S RAEEFAL -

BEIR

REBRGERIKAATRAE N RRAAREER
e ARENHREARMEENTERER
BERURIR » B2022F $REFEM813.4 « IAARE
& AEESBIEFE64. 5K FLEF 12(54,254.6)JK
FEEELEELEE  BERBEATFH K
EEMBEQ.S4)IKEE - BRI BEFEZE2021
FHEII BEENRI ITHRAZEAR
COVIDBEZHERAEMmNEHHEASEEE %
ISER A FTER ©
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Energy consumption? 2021
BEIRH #E2 20215
(restated)?
(R&E7)3
Direct mWh 64.5 63.8
B JKELBF
Petrol (gasoline) mWh 64.5 63.8
Kom(BERH) IR B
Indirect mWh (54,254.6) (52,800.7)
fE# JKELRS
Less: electricity sold mWh 55,068.0 53,900.2
A HERE JKELBF
Electricity purchased mWh 813.4 1,099.5
BE JKEL B
Total (Direct and Indirect) mWh (54,190.1) (52,736.9)
Gt (E&EKEE) JKELBS
Energy intensity’ mWh per m? (2.54) (2.47)
gross floor area
BEIREE VIR
BRI
1 Intensities in 2022 and 2021 were calculated by dividing the amount ! 20226 R0 FEE B BEERERER

of energy consumption by the gross floor area of the Group in 2022
and 2021, which both were 21,321.6 square meter gross floor area;

AR EBR2022F K202 1 FHELEmEENE
B ARERZMEFENELEEEYLA

=

21,321.6F K :

? The methodology adopted for energy conversion of the energy ! AR EBRER AR AORERI AR T &

resources of the Group was based on “How to prepare an ESG
Report-Appendix Il: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued
by the HKEx and the IPCC Default Net Calorific Values Database; and

3 The figures in 2021 was restated due to the change in calculation

methodology.

The major applicable laws and regulations related to energy
use include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on Energy
Conservation. The Group is committed to minimising fuel and
electricity consumption through the following initiatives and will

RABZ R BAERIEECEIIR S GRRF
AERBEEEBOFRREERE L kE
AME MR RIEBMBREBERMER

M) &

continue to review the effectiveness of the existing initiatives on a

regular basis.

: HRFTEIEES) - 2021 FNEEEES -

BREERERNIZEMERIEZRBEED
R EARKMBEHNEERZE) - REEHK
TEB TR DR E T8 - d 4
B TR A BRI

e We have installed energy-efficient LED lighting and cooling . B EER S ZE T ERELEDRAE KRR
systems in production areas; aMES

e We have replaced computer equipment, servers, and . B ERRE - ARSERETRERA
monitors with energy-efficient models; ERREALSR

JERZEREBERAR
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° We have adopted minimise energy usage through the
utilisation of power-saving modes of any devices for office use;

° We regularly clean the air filter of the air-conditioners
regularly to improve the cool air flow efficiency; and

° We have taken necessary actions in compliance with
the Building Energy Efficiency Ordinance enacted by the
Government of HKSAR in planning, design and construction
of property development.

Targets and proposed steps

Areas Targets

b B

Energy In line with the goals of GHG emissions
reductions, the Group targets to lower
the energy consumption in the purchase
of electricity for operations, which is the
largest contributor to the Group's energy
consumption profile, by 3% of energy
intensity by the end of 2030 from 2022.

BEIR BERAERBHERNER  AEEEE

M2022F BE2030F RS EREE
R BEIREFE (I BN B s R B FE M S R 2R
TR BEEREERI3% ©

Water resources

Production processes as well as general amenities make use of
water. At the Group, our facilities withdraw water mainly from
municipal supplies. We have not encountered any issues in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose. However, water resources should not
be taken for granted and conserved to ensure a sustainable future.

The major applicable laws and regulations related to water use
include, but are not limited to, the Water Law of PRC. In order to
reduce wastewater, the Group practices the following initiatives to
curtail our water consumption currently and continue to review the
effectiveness of existing initiatives on a regular basis.

° We regularly check piping and taps for leakages and damage,
and ensure their prompt repair;

° We monitor water readings at regular intervals when no
water is being used to ensure against hidden water leakages;

° We give priority to effective water-saving products, such
as the adoption of low or dual flush toilets, and low-flow
faucets or water outlets;
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B IR REFH

Proposed Steps
EEEhE

On top of electricity conservation, the Group
commits to focus its efforts on improving
energy efficiency of its equipment through
upgrades and procurement.

BETKAEIN  AEBBEBARERE &
NIRRT ERARER -
KEIF

EERER —RRIEHEMAK - REBSRE
TRIRATEHK o FAAEREUER/KIR £
EEMERE - A - JFITERKERERE
FTE R - MAEET A AKAMRIE A H BB B AR
B o

FRRKNEBEREZRZERBERETRR
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R REUA TR A AKE - ST e
AR IR
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2 RRBREIIRE

o RIFEFKEEHESRIKERER - FEfR
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o We raise staff awareness in water saving in production and
office operations through education and promotion;

° We will take the Water Efficiency Labelling Scheme (WELS)
implemented by Water Supplies Department into account
during selection of plumbing fixtures and water-consuming
devices; and

° The Group selects the plumbing fixtures and water-
consuming devices with Water Efficiency Grade 1 or 2 as far as
practicable.

During the Year, the Group consumed a total of 20,506 cubic
metre of water, resulting in a water intensity of 1.0 cubic metre
per square meter gross floor area. During the Year, the outdoor
fire pipe was burst, resulting in the loss of water for extinguishing
purpose by around 8,000 cubic metre. The Group has put more
resources in checking and repairing its facilities after the accident.

Water consumption

RIE - HERERRE

. BMBBHERER REEEIALER
WNEBROEIKER

. EEEBKBEERAKSAR BN

2ERBEHITORKEAE R E S
(WELS) : &
o AREEFTALEM Rk 2REKE KT

KENFAKERE -

RAFE - NEBEHEIEFE20,5063 75 KK - 7%
KEEBESFFREERE0L K o RAF
B ZINEKEBRH  BEURARKEEK
#98,00037 2K - BB % AEEERATE
ZERANRE MAEEERE -

KREFHFE
Total water consumption cubic metre 20,506 17,179
HBFEKE SR
Water consumption intensity cubic metre 1.0 0.81
per m?
gross floor area’
FkEmE BV IREREE
EE AR
! Intensities in 2022 and 2021 were calculated by dividing the amount ! 2022F K202V W E TR /K EJRERE 2

of water consumption by the gross floor area of the Group in 2022
and 2021, which both were 21,321.6 square meter gross floor area.

Targets and proposed steps

Areas

Bl
Water

Targets
B

Taking 2022 as the baseline year, the Group
targets to reduce the water consumption
intensity by 3% by the end of 2030, from
0.59 cubic metre per m? gross floor area
(excluding the lost water of 8,000 cubic
metre caused by the burst fire pipe).

K 152022 FVEBEEF - AEE T 72030
iﬁh%mfrmiiﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁowz
TR IEEEP & 1B 2 M K #98,0003L
TR FEIER3% ©

B IAARE B R 2022 F K 2021 F R EEMMERT
HiEE  AEERZMEFEENRERRES A
21,321.65F 5 »

B iR RE#1E

Proposed Steps

ERiEiE

The Group plans to improve water
recirculating system and employ advanced
water recycling facilities to enhance water
efficiency.

More inspection, checking and maintain are
to be made to prevent the accidence of burst

fire pipe.
AEEFEPUEKBIREZSIHFATENE
HEOKERHE - FELIR A K -
MERE - BREREE  BHILEFERRSE
MBS -
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Packaging material

Finished products at the Group uses packaging material that
include paperboard, paper tube, packing tape and wrapping
film. The Group aims to consider more sustainable approaches to
product packaging early in the design phase. During the Year, a
total of 7,000 kg of packaging material was consumed for finished
products, resulting in an intensity of 0.3 kg per square meter gross
floor area. In response to the lockdown of the national Zero-COVID
policy, the production and packaging consumption were decreased
in 2022.

Packaging material consumption

BEMNHE

AEENKRERNBEMBBEEERR - &
EpERERAEER AEENEER
RETHBREHEEREMAHENERRES
JE o RARFE - H£EFE7,0002 TR EEMN
K BREATFKEEEBOIQT - BERE
Bl R COVID)E R M B i A £ $H 8 812022 F
FERBEBEBRIRLD o

BEMEEFE

Total packaging consumption
BEMEERES

Packaging consumption intensity

BEMIOEREE

! Intensities in 2022 and 2021 were calculated by dividing the amount
of packaging consumption by the gross floor area of the Group in
2022 and 2021, which both were 21,321.6 square meter gross floor
area.

Aspect A3: The environment and natural
resources

The Group strives to build an eco-conscious culture that ingrains
positive lifestyles and habits among employees. For corporate social
activities and other events, low-carbon dietary choices and products
from social enterprises are prioritised. Waste reduction plans are
rolled out for large-scale events.
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DT
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TP IREEE
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Aspect A4: Climate change

The Group understands the importance of climate change which
leads to extreme weather followed by many challenges to water
resources, emission regulations and energy development. As
a responsible corporate citizen, we consistently identify and
analyse the environmental sustainability development strategies in
respect of emission control (Aspect A1: Emissions and waste
generated), energy use efficiency and water efficiency (Aspect
A2: Use of resources) across our operations.

Recently, the development of renewable energy industry has been
encouraged worldwide as the renewable energy could help reduce
the adverse impacts of climate change. However, the changing
climate also changes the cloud patterns and air temperature
that impact the photovoltaic electricity generation of the Group,
resulting in annual fluctuation of photovoltaic resources. In order
to minimise the impact of climate change, the Group carries
out comprehensive photovoltaic resource tests to obtain the
photovoltaic installed capacity data in prior to the development
and construction work. The maintenance and repair work of the
photovoltaic facilities are also undertaken on a regular basis.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group ingrains social responsibility into all aspects of its
operations. Maintaining honest and authentic dialogue with staff,
the Group seeks to address their needs and views that ensure our
conduct is responsible at all times. We commit to offer a fair and
safe workplace with staff development opportunities. Furthermore,
the Group commits to deliver high quality products grounded on
ethical business conduct and supply chain management, as well as
to engage meaningfully in the community.

BRI - 4@ RERHE

EBHEASL - RiIZE{t

FEEPRAREBEECNEEN  RIEELEE
BiRm AR - BE 2 MAREZEKEIR « BEDUR
ERERMENEZ IR - (FREEENEE
RRE - HMREM— BRI RO RAEED
Bz S (BEAT - R R FTELRERY)
SERERM RN KN E(BEA2 : EREA)
JTE R BRIR AR A RS

M - A BARRITENBRESHRAT G
B BARTEAERRENRESRIEZEHT
MEE - R - RIRB(CTRE TEERER
R - FEAKERREE  BELRERH
RERRE - REERIREE(COTE - K
SEAEMENZETRMETZENCRER
B EEUCIREREUE - B FHIETER
R B A S M T A o

HEsE

AEESHEEERMARLENESETE - N
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KEBR - BREMNITRIERARE - BRI
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Aspect B1: Employment

The Group employed 57 employees, of which 38 and 19 are male
and female staff respectively as at the end of the Year. The Group's
employees are all full-time, with the majority of staff in the age
range of 31-60. In terms of the workforce by region, around 24
and 16 of the Group’s employees were located in Xuzhou and
Huaian respectively, with the remaining staff located in other
regions of the PRC and Hong Kong. The detail of workforce by age
group and region is presented at below charts.

Total workforce in 2021 and 2022
2021ER2022FEEEHH

57
2021
2022
67

Workforce by gender in 2021 and 2022
BRI D20215F K 20225 EERH

! The employment data in headcount was obtained from the Group’s
Human Resources Department based on the employment contracts
entered into between the Group and its employees. The data covered
employees engaged in a direct employment relationship with the
Group according to relevant local laws and workers whose work and/
or workplace was controlled by the Group. The methodology adopted
for reporting on employment data set out above was based on “How
to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social
KPIs” issued by the HKEX.
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Workforce by age group in 2021 and 2022
BRERERE 520215 R2022F EEEH
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Workforce by region in 2021 and 2022
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Based on the principles of fairness and equality, the Group’s human
resources policies adhere to relevant labour laws, regulations and
industry practices, covering areas such as compensation, dismissal,
promotion, working hours, recruitment, rest periods, diversity and
other benefits and welfare. During the Year, the Group did not
encounter any incidents of non-compliance with all major applicable
laws and regulations related to employment at all operating regions.
Major laws and regulations applicable include, but are not limited
to the Labour Law of the PRC, Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
and Minimum Wage Ordinance.

Remuneration and welfare

Employees of the Group are remunerated at a competitive level and
are rewarded according to their performance and experience. The
Group’s human resources policies outline the terms and conditions
of employment, expectations for employees’ conduct and
behaviours, and employees’ rights and benefits. The remuneration
package of employees may include incentive schemes, discretionary
bonuses and/or over-time payments, in addition to salaries. Any
applicable restrictions on wage deduction are stated transparently
in the human resources policies. The promotion and remuneration
of the Group’s employees are subject to periodic review.

Recruitment and promotion

The human resources department of respective subsidiary conducts
a comprehensive recruitment review process based on pre-
determined job function requirements. The Group’s recruitment
and promotion process are carried out in a fair and open manner
for all employees; employees are recognised and rewarded by
their contribution, work performance and skills, and outcomes will
not be affected by any discrimination on the grounds of age, sex,
marital status, family status, race, disability, nationality, religion,
political affiliation and sexual orientation and other factors. In
the case of dismissal, adherence to the Group’s human resources
policies ensures the entire procedure is compliant with statutory
requirements.
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Anti-discrimination and diversity

We embrace inclusive employment that builds a respectful
workplace. The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does
not discriminate on the basis of age, sex, marital status, family
status, race, disability, nationality, religion, political affiliation and
sexual orientation. Personnel staff, line manager and all other
employees who may be involved in staff recruitment receive training
in non-discriminatory practices. We promote a harmonious and
respectful workplace for all. With the aim to ensure fair and equal
protection for all employees, the Group has zero-tolerance for
sexual harassment or other forms of abuse in the workplace in any
form, which is a violation of the labour laws.

Employee communications

The Group’s policies and procedures included in staff handbooks
are reviewed and updated regularly. The Group discourages
and disallows any behaviour that violates the regulations in staff
handbooks. Offenders will receive a warning, and the Group has
the right to terminate the employment contract with offenders
for any serious violations. The Group’s staff grievance mechanism
provides confidential channels by which staff may report suspected
cases of rights infringement, which are then handled according to
formal procedures.

Work-life balance

We seek to cultivate a culture of healthy work-life balance. The
working hours management policy ensures no excessive working
hours. The Group, subject to the human resources policies of
respective subsidiary, assists staff to balance commitments outside
of work. Regular reviews are held to refine and improve work-
life balance arrangements. To encourage social bonding in the
workplace, the Group arranged recreational events during the Year,
such as staff leisure activities that promote cohesive bonding among
employees.
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During the Year, the Group’s employee turnover rate was 18%. RAFERN  ANEBEESRKAER18% o T&
The table below presents the turnover rate by gender, age and SRR - FRRRMREISMEEREAE -

geographical region.

Turnover rate

Group % 18 25
REH
By Gender
gl
Male % 24 33
S
Female % 5 10
7t
By Age
BER
Under or 30 % 50 60
30ERERIA T
31-40 % 23 32
31E405%
41-50 % 11 18
41E505%
51-60 % 10 10
51E2605%
By Region
®ithE
Xuzhou % 21 33
RN
Huaian % 25 27
ML
Hong Kong % 8 15
o
Note: The turnover data in headcount was obtained from the Group’s Wi - BRLRABIRERIEARERAES 2TV
Human Resources Department based on the employment contracts HERER - RARENANERAES - B
entered into between the Group and its employees. Turnover rate B RRB I AN R B 2022 F AUBERE B T BRI
was calculated by dividing the number of employees who resigned 2022F B THMSH » LillRE B TRAH
in 2022 by the number of employees in 2022. The methodology TRPTER A B0 TR Ty BRSSP M i) [ a0l 4R
adopted for reporting on turnover data set out above was based on BURIE M REAME M3 LSRR
“How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance BRIl EIER] -

on Social KPIs"” issued by the HKEx.
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Aspect B2: Workplace health and safety

The Group is committed to create and maintain a workplace that
minimises safety risk and maximises the health and welfare of our
employees. It is of paramount importance to ensure a safe and
healthy workplace for our employees. The Group’s “Guidelines
on Occupational Safety and Health” was established to inform
employees of potential health and safety hazards in the workplace,
and the corresponding preventative measures. During the Year,
the Group did not encounter any incident of non-compliance with
all applicable laws and regulations related to occupational health
and safety at all operating regions. Major applicable laws and
regulations include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on Work
Safety and the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance in Hong

Kong.

The Group spares no effort to safeqguard the safety of our
employees and the workplace. We adopt the best practices through

the following safety policies and procedures.

° All safety management system responsibilities and
accountabilities are identified and allocated. We conduct
safety risk assessments that identify and control work hazards
within the prescribed hierarchy of control, and residual risk
evaluation within the guidelines. We take a prevention-
orientation approach where on-site inspections are
conducted frequently to rectify any non-conformances before
further complications. We will also establish the rectification

measures according to safety inspection results;

o We implement transparent mechanisms for reporting hazards,
injuries, illnesses and close calls. It is ensured all accidents
are investigated and reviewed. Working with line managers,
corrective actions that address root causes are drawn up. Any
non-compliance to safety rules and regulations, negligence of

duties, irresponsibility is to be held responsible;

o We have systematic claims management mechanisms
for personnel injured at work. In the unfortunate event
of an incident, we place great importance on a healthy
rehabilitation process. We assist a smooth rehabilitation
process whereby the well-being and self-esteem of the

individual is promoted;
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° We ensure that persons performing tasks are competent
and training attendance records are well documented. All
new employees undergo general safety orientations. Sign-
in procedures are implemented for contractors and visitors
to ensure their safety. All subcontracted work, such as
construction work, is to be performed with equally stringent
safety standards. Prior to work commencement, we request
the safety risk assessment reports and monitor the situations
at regular intervals; and

. The Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19") pandemic posed
unprecedented challenges to individuals and businesses
around the world in 2022. The health of employees is our
utmost priority. During the out-break of the COVID-19, We
adopted special work managements such as work-from-
home policies and flexible working hours, so that our staff
can act against pandemic under flexible commuting plans.
Furthermore, we stopped employees’ travel plans to reduce
the chances of transmission.

The Group had consecutively attained zero (i.e. 0%) work-
related fatalities in the past three years. If any case occurred, the
cases would be handled according to internal accident handling
procedures and reported to the relevant authority in compliance
with the law. The filed cases will be used as training materials to
assist employees to prevent reoccurrence.
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Aspect B3: Development and training

People are our greatest assets. We tailor the macro-level
development of our human capital to the Group’s corporate
strategy. At respective subsidiaries, the Group develops yearly
training plans that comply with relevant statutory requirements and
cater to the needs of our staff. During annual appraisal sessions,
in-depth consultations ensure micro-level training needs are
identified. Internal training programmes provided by the Group
include induction training, on-the-job training, mentoring schemes,
and cross-departmental training. To further promote continuous
development, staff is entitled to educational leaves to attend
external programmes, such as external public trainings, lectures
and seminars. The Group provides tuition reimbursement for
eligible staff to engage in programmes that enrich job knowledge.
During the Year, the Group did not encounter any incident of non-
compliance with statutory requirements related to staff training and
development at all operating regions.

For COVID-19 precaution, we provide protective and disinfection
products such as face masks, face shield, alcohol-based hand
sanitisers, hand soaps and gloves at the workplace, and require
employees to wear masks at all time at the workplace. Apart from
that, we required employees to check body temperature before
reporting for duty and after lunch every day. We practice safe
distancing to avoid close contact at work place.
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During the Year, a total number of 16 employees have attended
training, of which 69% and 31% were male and female
respectively. 29% and 26% of total male and female employees
respectively attended our training course. In terms of employee
category, 14%, 11%, 36% and 33% of employees trained were of
director, technician, administration management and general staff
respectively.

Percentage of employees trained

BRI - 4@ RERHE

RAFERN  HE16HEBTLMNEFINE - &
B R 2D BIME69% K31% ° 2N IS
FREN B R EE D RMELAEMN29%
&26% - EEERE D BHXEINEE
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IHRME14% ~ 11% ~ 36% }33% °

FIHESGEL
Group
#a5
By Gender
R R
Male
St
Female
g
By Position
R
Director
Bx
Technician
KiTAE
Administration management
THEEAB
General staff
—HRET

Note: The training information was obtained from the Group’s Human
Resources Department. Training refers to the vocational training that
the Group’s employees attended in 2022. The methodology adopted
for reporting on the number and percentage of employees trained set
out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 3:
Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the HKEx.
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During the Year, the Group has provided a total of 256 training
hours for staff, which averages to 4.6 and 4.2 hours per male
and female staff. In term of employment category, an average
of 2.3, 1.8, 5.7 and 5.3 training hours per staff were received by
director, technician, administration management and general staff
respectively.

Average training hours

F 1935 S B B

RAFENRN  AEBE A8 TIREHK256/EF
2l BRBERLEB T FHBL6MA2/N
B o IEMBIERED - EF - HITAE ~ 17T
EEBABR—REINAFHEZEA23

1.8+ 5.7 %5.3/\EFHY I -

Group
#a 5
By Gender
BRI R
Male
S
Female
g
By Position
B
Director
s
Technician
BMAE
Administration management
THERAR
General staff
—MRET

Note: The training information was obtained from the Group’s Human
Resources Department. Training refers to the vocational training that
the Group's employees attended in 2022. The methodology adopted
for reporting on the number and percentage of employees trained set
out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 3:
Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the HKEx.
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Aspect B4: Labour Standards

The Group has established and implemented anti-child and forced
labour policies that meet the highest legal and ethical standards.
We do not engage in or condone the unlawful employment or
exploitation of children in the workplace or the use of forced
labour. Staff handbooks contain clear policies relating to relevant
labour laws, regulations and industry practices, covering areas such
as compensation, dismissal, promotion, working hours, recruitment,
rest periods, diversity and other benefits and welfare. Employment
contracts stipulate terms and conditions in adherence to statutory
regulations, and are available in multiple languages as necessary.
The rights and freedoms of every individual are protected as no
worker is asked for surrender identification documents nor lodge
fees or deposits as a condition of employment. Cases of child labour
in our businesses are averted by conducting age verification of all
job applicants. Any employee that suspects a breach of the policy
should submit reports through grievance mechanisms of respective
subsidiaries.

During the Year, the Group did not encounter any incident of non-
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations related to anti-
child and anti-forced labour practices at all operating regions. Major
applicable laws and regulations include, but are not limited to, the
Labour Law of the PRC and the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

Aspect B5: Supply chain management

Leveraging on our status as a major industry player, we recognise
the multiplied impact through engaging our suppliers. The Group
is committed to develop and maintain effective and mutually
beneficial working relationships with our business partners. During
the Year, we have partnered with a total of 39 suppliers and
subcontractors, with 22 in the Mainland of the PRC, 12 in Hong
Kong and 5 in Taiwan. Subcontracted work includes binding and
types of hand-work at some operating regions.
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The supplier code of conduct of respective subsidiaries requires
full compliance with all applicable local and national laws. They
must ensure all operations are environmentally-responsible,
uphold human rights and business ethics. All engaged suppliers
and subcontractors are required to submit statements declaring
conformity to the respective code of conduct. Self-assessment
questionnaires and/or internal audits are used to evaluate supply
chains. To promote accountability, some supplier premises are
provided with confidential communication channels to report actual
or suspected breaches of the code of conduct. In order to reduce
the risk associated with the supply chain from service and products
quality provided by suppliers, we evaluate existing suppliers on a
regular basis and terminate the supply relationship with those found
to be in serious non-compliance or whose quality fails to meet the
requirements.

In addition to engaging suppliers, sustainable procurement is
another avenue to mitigate the impact of supply chain activities.
We collaborate with key suppliers in support of environmentally-
responsible procurement. New supplier is selected according to our
selection criteria to maintain the Group'’s sustainable development.
During the Year, we prioritise the procurement of office equipment
with energy-saving features, replaceable parts that are supported
by supplier-provided recycling schemes. Also, we will continue
to convey our expectation to our suppliers and assess their
performance in term of our sustainability vision as well as encourage
them to prioritise the adoption of environmentally friendly products.

We avoided any unnecessary face-to-face communications.
Furthermore, we checked temperature of individuals upon arrival
and required them to put on face masks. We provided protective
and disinfection products such as alcohol-based hand sanitisers to
customers at our offices.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Aspect B6: Product responsibility

The Group offers quality products and services grounded on
responsible operating practices. We commit to meet customer
needs through innovation and sound business ethics.

Product quality and safety

Displaying ability, professionalism and reliability in everything we do,
we offer products and services with added value. During the Year,
the Group did not encountered any incident of non-compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations related to product/service
quality and safety at all operating regions. Major applicable laws
and regulations include, but are not limited to, the Product Quality
Act of PRC.

With a customer-focused and evidence-based approach, the
Group strives for continual improvement to product quality. The
Group’s management system is implemented through performing
quality assurance to examine the product’s quality against required
parameters at every stage of the production process. Input raw
materials are tested against customers’ technical specifications.
Finished products undergo inspections prior to packaging and
delivery to clients. Each department is tasked with achieving their
own quality based targets in consideration of both the industry and
market standards.

The Group also implements a source-to-end inspection framework
from material procurement and sourcing process to finished
product and storage. Any quality defect material or product will be
suspended from production line in order to prevent potential risks
and protect interests of clients and the Group.

We are responsible to ensure the quality of power stations
throughout their life cycle. We have established internal quality
control policies to strengthen the maintenance and management
of the power grid. For example, we have implemented measures
to detect, track and handle equipment defects on time, which can
also accelerate the repair and maintenance process. The measures
can further prevent the significant impacts on the quality of power
generation and ensure a stable operation of the power plants. We
have also increased the frequency of conducting the inspection to
minimise the potential risk of equipment, ensure the safe operation
of equipment and enhance the reliability of power operation.
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Ethical operating practices

The Group places great value in conducting all aspects of our
businesses with integrity and honest values. From the protection
of data privacy and intellectual property to ethical marketing
communication, our robust management approaches ensure even
the most trivial aspects are not overlooked. During the Year, the
Group did not encountered any incident of non-compliance with
all applicable laws and regulations related to the protection of
data privacy and intellectual property to the ethical marketing
communication at all operating regions. Major applicable laws and
regulations include, but are not limited to, the Criminal and Civil
law of PRC.

Information security safeguarding

The Group is committed to protect the privacy and confidentiality of
personal data collected. The Group has established clear protocols
on handling personal data recorded from our customers and
employees. We collect data only in a lawful and fair way, for directly
related purposes of which the data subject is clearly notified.
Adhering to protocol requirements, we ensure the data is accurate
and not kept longer than necessary. Personal data inventories are
secured to prevent any unauthorised or accidental access, such as
firewalls and physical protection.

The Group has established the privacy policy on handling personal
data recorded from our customers, staff, as well as end-users of our
online services. The Group secures the personal information from
unauthorised access, use or disclosure. Recognising the materiality
of security risks, the Group evaluates security risks related to the use
of information technology.

Advertising and product labelling

Responsible marketing practices are crucial to gaining customer trust
and confidence. All sales promotions should be dealt with a fair and
honourable manner. The sales manager or equivalent of respective
subsidiaries ensures all public sales and marketing information are
reviewed and approved of its trueness and completeness. Any forms
of promotions must not contain any misleading information and
need to be designed to meet reasonable consumer expectations. All
product labelling is an accurate representation of the sourcing and
content of products.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to achieve and maintain the highest
standards of openness, probity and accountability. We adopt
the lowest level of acceptance for corruption risks and we
build a culture of zero tolerance to any related practices. Anti-
corruption code of conducts at respective subsidiaries stipulates
our management approach towards anti-corruption compliance.
During the Year, the Group did not encounter any incident of non-
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations at all operating
regions. Major laws and regulations applicable include, but are not
limited to, the Criminal Law of the PRC, the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance and the Anti-money laundering and the Counter-
Terrorist Financing Ordinance in Hong Kong.

The code of conducts applies to all employees of the Group, and
must be complied at all times. The Group prohibits the provision or
receipt of gifts and/or entertainment that could be considered of
material value. Senior management is also clearly provided guidance
on what constitutes abuse of office, such as regarding the misuse
of company’s assets for personal interest. With regard to conflict
of interests, the fundamental rule is to avoid any conflict of interest
as far as practicable. In the event of an inevitable case, the conflict
of interest is required to be declared so that appropriate resolution
actions can be taken. During the year, the Group provided
employees of all levels with anti-corruption trainings, including but
not limited to business ethics, integrity and compliance, in order to
enhance the awareness of anti-corruption.

The development of robust internal controls is the key to our
management approach. Any offering and acceptance of gifts or
advantages are recorded and handled via a transparent mechanism.
Each subsidiary company has a form of whistle-blowing channel
where any suspected cases of misconduct or failure to act are
reported and handled.

The Group promotes fair and open competition through code of
conducts on combating anti-competitive practices. We prohibit
cartels, and any activities of trade associations and industry bodies
which prevent, restrict or distort competition. No discussion or
agreement is carried out on matters related to pricing, production
volume and tenders with competitors. The Group recognises
that adherence to the principles of competition is essential to the
development of long-term relationships with our stakeholders on
mutual trust.
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Aspect B8: Community investment

The Group is committed to operate as a responsible corporate
and continually supporting the economic and social vitality of
local communities through corporate sponsorships and charitable
donations. Furthermore, the Group sees high literacy as a
foundation for the advancement of society. The Group believes
public welfare is important and necessary for the development
of the Group. We always seek to be a positive force in the
communities in which it operates.

We believe that the development of a better future for our
community relies on joint participation of people, corporations
and the government. In addition, the Group also encourages
all employees to actively participate in volunteer activities and
environmental protection activities. We hope it can raise their
concern for environment and society, and thus inspiring more
people to participate in community services and develop a better
future for our community.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Guo Yumin, aged 61, is the founder and chairman of the Company.
Mr. Guo was appointed as an executive Director on 22 June 2012.
Mr. Guo is responsible for the overall management and formulation of
business strategy of the Group. Mr. Guo graduated from the distant-
learning college of the School of the Central Committee of Communist
Party of China in 1988, majoring in economic management. Since
1998, Mr. Guo has been engaging in cigarette packaging business
and established a strong business tie with the senior members of some
cigarette manufacturers. He brings extensive business and management
experience in commercial business to our management team. In 2005,
Mr. Guo established Guangdong Province Jiangsu Chamber of Commerce
and he had been the chairperson for six consecutive years. In 2010, Mr.
Guo established Shenzhen Xuzhou Chamber of Commerce and has been
its legal representative since then. Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia Yu, an
executive Director.

Ms. Xia Yu, aged 52, was appointed as an executive Director on 22 June
2012. She is responsible for general management of the Group. Ms.
Xia studied financial accounting (distant-learning) in Jiangsu Commerce
College (which was combined with other colleges to form Yangzhou
University) and graduated in June 1992. Ms. Xia has more than 21
years of experience in the cigarette-related business, as well as business
management and financial management in cigarette packaging business.
Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo Yumin, an executive Director and a
controlling shareholder of the Company.

Ms. Fan Qing, aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 22 June 2012. Ms. Fan has extensive experience in business
management and in-depth knowledge in the financial investment in both
the PRC and Hong Kong. Ms. Fan received a master’s degree in business
administration from the Graduate School of Renmin University of China in
2000. She obtained a certificate issued by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
after completing a training course for the senior management member of
a listed company in the PRC. She had been serving as the vice-president
of Shenzhen Capital Group Co. Ltd. for nine years. Ms. Fan is currently
the chairman of the board of directors of an investment management
company in Shenzhen and the independent director of Shenzhen Terca
Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code: SZ002213), a company whose shares
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Dai Tin Yau, aged 39, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 29 May 2020. Mr. Dai graduated from University
of South Australia with a bachelor’s degree in accountancy in May 2009
and graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a master’s
degree in professional accounting in March 2016. He is currently a
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Dai worked in P. K. Wong & Co. from May 2004 to
March 2008 and his last position was audit semi-senior. Mr. Dai then
worked in Y. F. Pang & Co. from December 2008 to July 2011 where he
last served as an assistant manager in the assurance department, and in
RSM Nelson Wheeler from November 2011 to April 2013 as a senior in
the audit and assurance services department. Since May 2014, Mr. Dai has
taken the position as an audit senior in Arken Consulting Limited. After
leaving Arken Consulting Limited in June 2015, Mr. Dai co-founded Prism
CPA Limited in December 2015 and served as a director since then.

Mr. Chan Yin Lam, aged 42, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 29 May 2020. Mr. Chan graduated from
City University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in business
administration (majoring in accountancy and management information
systems) in July 2002 and graduated from the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology with a master’s degree in business
administration in November 2010. He is currently a Chartered Financial
analyst charter holder and a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan was an associate and subsequently
promoted to the senior associate position during his employment in
PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd. from September 2002 to May 2006. Mr.
Chan worked in Somerley Limited from June 2006 to December 2009,
and he last served as a senior manager responsible for equity capital
market issues and financial advisory assignments. He then worked in
Haitong International Securities Group of Companies from May 2010 to
June 2013, and his last position was senior vice president in the corporate
finance department. Mr. Chan joined China Merchants Securities (HK)
Co., Limited from July 2013 and his last position prior to his departure
in February 2018 was executive director in financial institutions team of
corporate finance and capital markets division. Since March 2018, Mr.
Chan has taken the position as managing director and head of corporate
finance of investment banking department in Fosun Hani Securities
Limited (“Fosun Hani"), and currently he is also the co-Head of Investment
Banking Department and responsible officer of Fosun Hani to carry on
type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activity under the SFO.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Dong Zhenghua, aged 67, graduated from a self-taught course in
Chinese literature from Nanjing Normal University in 1986, and obtained
the qualification certification as an economist in 1993. Mr. Dong passed
the uniform examination organised by the Chinese government authorities
and obtained the qualifications for enterprise legal adviser in 2003. Mr.
Dong possesses extensive experience in advising and handling corporate-
related legal matters. Before joining the Group, Mr. Dong graduated
from a 2-year course in laws jointly organised by the China University of
Political Science and Law and the Open University of China and obtained
the qualification of intermediate professional manager as approved by the
Jiangsu Province Enterprise Professional Manager Training & Certification
Committee. Mr. Dong is currently the in-house legal advisor of the
Company and is responsible for advising on legal matters of the Group.

Besides the senior management mentioned above, various business
of the Group are respectively under the direct responsibility of the
executive Directors as named previously, who are also regarded as senior
management of the Group.
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The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating elements of
good corporate governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability.
The Directors continuously abide by the principles of good corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders and devote considerable effort
to identifying and formalizing best practice.

The Group's corporate governance practices for the Year are based on the
principles and the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code") version up to 31 December 2022 as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules.

The Board considered that the Company had complied with the code
provisions of the Code during the Year except for the deviations from
code provision C.2.1 of the Code as stated below.

Under code provision C.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. During the Year, there was no chief executive in the Company,
details of the deviation are set out in the section headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer”.

The key corporate governance practices of the Group are summarised as
follows:

RE-ELECTION AND CHANGE OF THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation.

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the Articles, Ms. Fan Qing (“Ms. Fan") and
Mr. Chan Yin Lam (“Mr. Chan") will retire as Directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (the “AGM"). Ms. Fan and Mr. Chan, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the AGM.

Ms. Fan, being an Independent non-executive Director, has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of one year commencing
from 1st June 2022 and may be terminated by either party by giving not
less than three months’ prior written notice.

Mr. Chan, being an independent non-executive Director, has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of two years commencing
from 29 May 2022 and may be terminated by either party by giving at
least three months’ written notice.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS" SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code") as the required standard for securities transactions by
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries of all Directors and all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Director’s
securities transactions for the Year and up to the date of this annual
report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises two executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors as at the date of this report, details of which are set
out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman)
Ms. Xia Yu

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Fan Qing
Mr. Dai Tin Yau
Mr. Chan Yin Lam

The brief biographical details of and relationship among the existing
Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

The composition of the Board is well balanced. Each of the Directors
has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and strategic planning
experiences that may contribute to the business of the Group. The
Company has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and (2)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules for the Year. All independent non-executive
Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their independence as
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each of the Directors are confirmed that they can give sufficient time
and attention to the Company’s affairs and should not accept the
appointment if they cannot do so.
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Mr. Guo Yumin is the spouse of Ms. Xia Yu. Save as disclosed above,
there are no other relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s)) among members of the Board.

Functions of the Board

We are heading by an effective Board which should assume responsibility
for its leadership and control, and be collectively responsible for
promoting its success by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board
has established the Company’s purpose, values and strategy, and satisfy
itself that these and the Company’s culture are aligned. All Directors are
acting with integrity and promoting the desired culture.

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of
the Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of
the shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of
other stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in setting
forth matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from its statutory
responsibilities, the Board approves the Group's strategic plan, key
operational initiatives, major investments and funding decisions. It also
reviews the Group's financial performance, identifies principal risks of the
Group's business and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to
manage these risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions
of the Group are delegated to the management.

The Board is also delegated with the corporate governance functions
under code provision A.2.1 of the Code. The Board has reviewed and
discussed the corporate governance policy of the Group and is satisfied
with the effectiveness of the corporate governance policy.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this report, there
have been no chief executive officer in the Company. Mr. Guo Yumin
acted as the Chairman of the Board, and responsible for the overall
management and formulation of business strategy of the Group.

The Board does not have the intention to fill the position of the chief
executive officer of the Company at present and believes that the absence
of the chief executive officer will not have adverse effect to the Company,
as decisions of the Company will be made collectively by the executive
Directors. The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of the
Board and the need of appointment of a suitable candidate to perform
the role of chief executive. Appointment will be made to fill the post to
comply with code provision C.2.1 of the Code if necessary. During the
Year, one meeting has been held by the Chairman of the Board with
the independent non-executive Directors, without the presence of other
executive Directors.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them A.2.1 to fulfill their duties properly. In
compliance with code provision of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has
been given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings
are sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days prior
to the meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their views
at meetings and major decisions will only be taken after deliberation at
Board meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests
or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
will not be counted in the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings
and the draft minutes are sent to all Directors for their comments, the
final version of which are endorsed in the subsequent Board meeting.

In the case of a transaction or matter submitted to the Board for approval,
the Directors may, if they deem it necessary to seek independent views
and inputs, request the management to submit professional asset
valuations, legal opinion, accounting opinion, financial opinion, other
professional opinion or quotations from Independent third parties. All
individual Directors have separate and independent access to the senior
management.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed
term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles.

Details of the attendance of the Board meetings, Audit Committee
meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings, Nomination Committee
meetings and general meetings of the Company held during the year
ended 31 December 2022 are summarised as follows:

Board
meeting
EEZged
Executive Directors HiTEE

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman) BERKE(ZE) 1111
Ms. Xia Yu ElSy e 11/

Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BIFHTES
Ms. Fan Qing pelipeen 10/11
Mr. Dai Tin Yau BARBEE 10/11
Mr. Chan Yin Lam BRERLE Im
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established specific committees, namely the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”),
(the "Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”), with written terms of reference which are
available for viewing on the website of the Company to assist them in the

remuneration committee

efficient implementation of their functions. Specific responsibilities have
been delegated to the above committees.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 22 June 2012 with
written terms of reference which are in compliance with the code
provisions of the Code. The Audit Committee currently has three members
comprising Mr. Dai Tin Yau (being the Chairman of the Audit Committee),
Ms. Fan Qing and Mr. Chan Yin Lam, all being independent non-executive
Directors.

During the Year, the Audit Committee had reviewed the final results
of the Group for 2021 and the 2022 interim results and report of
the Company. The Audit Committee had reviewed the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and the effectiveness of the
internal audit function for the Year. The Group’s final results for the Year
had been reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission to the
Board for approval. The Audit Committee had also reviewed this annual
report, and confirmed that this annual report complies with the Listing
Rules.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year. Details of the
attendance of the Audit Committee at the Audit Committee meetings are
set out above.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 22 June
2012 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee include mainly: (i) reviewing the terms of the remuneration
package of each Director and member of senior management, and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any adjustment thereof;
(i) reviewing and evaluating the performance of individual executive
Directors for determining the amount of bonus (if any) payable to them;
and (jii) reviewing and/or approving the matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. No Director shall participate in
any discussion about his or her own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee currently consists of three members, namely, Ms. Fan Qing
(Chairperson), Mr. Dai Tin Yau, both of which are independent non-
executive Directors, and Mr. Guo Yumin, an executive Director. The
majority of members of the Remuneration Committee are independent
non-executive Directors. The remuneration of the Directors was determined
with reference to their respective experience, responsibilities within the
Group and general market conditions. The Company has adopted the
Code to make recommendations to the Board on remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and the members of senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year. Details
of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee meetings are set out
above.

At the meetings, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed the
remuneration policies of the Directors and the senior executives and
reviewed the remuneration packages and performance of the Directors
for the Year.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 22 June
2012 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with
code provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include mainly: (i) reviewing the structure, size, diversity
and composition (including the age, gender, cultural and academic
background, skills, knowledge and professional experience) of the Board
on a regular basis and making recommendations to the Board regarding
any proposed change; (ii) identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and making recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; and (iii)
assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely, Mr. Guo
Yumin (Chairman), an executive Director, and chairman of the Board
Ms. Fan Qing and Mr. Chan Yin Lam, both of which are independent
non-executive Directors. The majority of members of the Nomination
Committee are independent non-executive Directors.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee adopted a diversity policy
setting out the approach to diversify the members of the Board. During
the Year and at the date of this report, the Board has five Directors, two
of which are female. The Board determines that the gender diversity has
been achieved in respect of the board. The Nomination Committee works
to ensure a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business and
objectives. All Board appointments would continue to be made based
on meritocracy. Selection of candidates would be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, which would include but not be limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision would be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates would bring to
the Board, our business model as well as the needs of the Company. The
Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the diversity
policy from time to time to ensure the effectiveness of the diversity policy.

The Company has provided sufficient resources to the Nomination
Committee to perform its duty. The Nomination Committee could seek
independent professional advice, at the Group’s expense, to perform it
responsibilities when it finds necessary.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year. Details of
the attendance of the Nomination Committee meeting are set out above.

At the meeting, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, reviewed the qualifications of the
Directors, the progress on the implementation of the board diversity policy
and other related matters of the Company.
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NOMINATION POLICY

Apart from the aforesaid, the Board has adopted a “Nomination Policy”
on 31 December 2018 in relation to the nomination, appointment,
re- appointment of new Directors and the nomination procedure of the
Company, which provides that in evaluating and selecting any candidate
for directorship, the Nomination Committee shall consider the candidates’
character and integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience, independence, diversity on the Board, willingness to devote
adequate time to discharge duties as a Board member and such other
criteria that are appropriate to the business of the Company.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has recommended to the
Board for the re-election of Director in accordance with the following
process as set out in the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee:

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board would review the
overall contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
Directors and his/her level of participation and performance on the
Board.

ii. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board would also review
and determine whether the retiring Director continues to meet the
criteria as set out above. If an independent non-executive Directors
subject to the re-election, the Nomination Committee and/or
the Board will also assess and consider whether the independent
non-executive Director will continue to satisfy the independence
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules.

ii. ~ The Nomination Committee and/or the Board would then make
recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of the proposed
re-election of Director at the general meeting.

In addition, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the overall
contribution and service to the Company of each of the retiring Directors
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Therefore, the Nomination Committee recommended to the Board that
each of Ms. Xia Yu and Mr. Dai Tin Yau should be proposed to the
Shareholders for re-election at the annual general meeting on 27 May
2022.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a “Dividend Policy” on 29 March 2019. A
summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders and requirement of the
relevant law, the Company shall pay annual dividends to the Shareholders
if the Group is profitable, operations environment is stable and there is no
significant investment or commitment made by the Group, after taking
into account the factors as detailed below and determined by the Board
from time to time. The remaining net profits will be used for Group’s
development and operations. The Policy allows the Company to declare
special dividends from time to time in addition to the annual dividends.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account,
inter alia:

(@)  the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

(b) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

(c)  the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and
the relevant financial covenants;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group's lenders;

(e)  the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

(f) general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business
and other internal and external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the Company;
and

(g)  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

Any final dividends declared by the Company must be approved by an
ordinary resolution of Shareholders at an annual general meeting and
must not exceed the amount recommended by the Board. The Board
may from time to time pay to the Shareholders such interim dividends as
appear to the directors to be justified by the profits of the Group.

The policy shall be reviewed periodically and submitted to the Board for
approval if amendments are required.
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DIVERSITY POLICY

During the Year, the Company adopted a diversity policy setting
out the approach to diversify the workforce of the Company. The
Company works to ensure a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business
and objectives. Selection of employees would be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, which would include but not be limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

Our Group employed a total 57 employees, of whom 38 were male and
19 were female. The Board believes that the proportion has reached the
target of gender diversity in terms of overall workforce, and the Group
will maintain a similar proportion in the foreseeable future.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY AND WHISTLE-BLOWING
CHANNEL

For the Group’s Anti-corruption policy and Whistle-blowing channel,
please refer to “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
Annual Report.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent of the Company as at the date
of this report.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

In compliance with code provision A.2.1 of the Code, all Directors during
the Year, namely, Mr. Guo Yumin, Ms. Xia Yu, Ms. Fan Qing, Mr. Dai Tin
Yau and Mr. Chan Yin Lam, had participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Directors had provided the relevant record to the Company.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to
all Directors for their continuous professional development. Each Director
is briefed and updated from time to time to ensure that he is fully aware
of his responsibilities under the Listing Rules and applicable legal and
regulatory requirements and the governance policies of the Group. All
the Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in any suitable trainings
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S REMUNERATION

The senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group in the
Year fell within the following band:

HK$1,000,000 or below

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. The statement by the auditor of the Company about their
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the report of
the independent auditor’s report contained in this annual report. There
are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company engaged RSM Hong Kong as its external auditor for the
Year. There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the external auditor. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
fee payable to RSM Hong Kong in respect of its statutory audit services
provided to the Company was approximately HK$1.0 million. Fees for
non-audit services for the same period was approximately HK$0.1 million.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board and the senior management are responsible for improving and
monitoring the risk management and internal control of the Group. In
this regard, the Audit Committee had performed a regular review of the
risk management and internal control system of the Group within the
Reporting Period in which the results were summarised and reported to
the Board. The Board has also conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group for each
financial year. The Group also sets up an internal audit team comprise
management of subsidiaries, which plays a major role in monitoring the
corporate governance of the Group and providing objective assurance to
the Board that a sound internal control system is maintained and operated
by the management.

Main Features of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The risk management framework of the Group and main responsibilities
of the members in the framework are described as follows:

Board of Directors
Bxg

Board level Audit Committee
EEGEH ERZEE
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Member

The Board

Audit Committee

Main Responsibilities

Set up goals for risk management strategy,
assess and determine the nature and extent of
risk acceptable to achieve the strategy goals;
Establish and maintain a proper and effective
risk management and internal control systems;
and

Review the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems annually.

Assist the Board in overseeing the risk level
and the design and performance of the risk
management and internal control systems;
Discuss the risk management and internal
control systems with the management;

Ensure that the internal audit function has
sufficient resources for operation and has
a proper position, review and supervise its
performance;

Keep updated of various major risks confronted
by the Group and the risk management status,
make decisions for effective risk control;
Report the risk status of the Group and issues
to be concerned or improved to the Board on
a regular basis;

Facilitate risk management and assessment,
regularly appoint relevant accountable persons
to implement risk assessment;

Organise and promote the establishment of
the risk management system at the Group
level;

Review material risk assessment report and
various risk management reports; and

Engage relevant persons to organise and
coordinate various departments and projects
to carry out identification and assessment of
significant risks at the Group level, summarise
and analyse such information, submit risk
assessment and various risk management
reports.
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Member Main Responsibilities

Ensure that the subsidiaries carry out the risk
team assessment in compliance with the risk

Internal audit team

assessment manual formulated by the Group;

e Review and approve the risk assessment results
of the subsidiaries in respect of the business;

e Ensure that the subsidiaries implement
effective risk management;

e Monitor the principal business risks confronted
by the subsidiaries and the effectiveness of
relevant risk management measures; and

e Allocate resources such as fund and workforce
to the subsidiaries for implementation of the
risk assessment projects.

The Process Used to Identify, Assess and Management
of Principal Risks

The risk management process of the Group is described as follows:

Risk identification

identify the current risks confronted.

Risk analysis — conduct analysis on the risk including the
impact extent and possibility of occurrence.

Risk response — choose a proper risk response method and
develop a risk mitigation strategy.

Control measures — propose up-to-date internal control measures
and policy and process.

Risk control — continuously monitor the risks identified and
implement relevant internal control measures
to ensure the effective operation of the risk
response strategy.

Risk management — summarise results of risk assessment and
report analysis and internal audit, formulate and
report an action plan.
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The Process Used to Review the Effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems and to
Resolve Material Internal Control Defects

The Group establishes a risk management information and communication
channel that is functional within the whole basic risk control procedure,
connects different levels in the reporting system and different
departments and operation units, so as to ensure timely, accurate and
complete communication of information, laying a solid foundation for the
monitoring and improvement of risk management.

Different departments and business units of the Group regularly inspect
and examine their own risk management process in order to locate
the shortcomings and remedy the situation if possible. Their inspection
and examination reports are delivered to the Group’s risk management
department in time.

The Board further considers that (i) there was no material issue relating to
the Group’s risk management and internal controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group; and (ii) that there were adequate staff with appropriate
and adequate qualifications and experience, resources for accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, and adequate training
programmes had been provided during the Year.

The Board considers that its risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Pang Yuk Fong (“Ms. Pang”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary on 1 October 2017. Ms. Pang has adequate knowledge on
the Company to discharge her duty as the Company Secretary. Ms.
Pang confirmed that she had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the Year.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY MEETING

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, extraordinary general meetings shall
be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

A shareholders communication policy was adopted on 22 June 2012.

The objective of the shareholders communication policy ensures that the
Shareholders are informed of balanced and understandable information
about the Company (including the Group’s strategies, businesses, major
developments and financial performance) in a factual and timely manner
and to enable them to exercise their rights as the Shareholders in an
informed manner. The Company aims to be open and transparent with
its Shareholders and encourages Shareholders’ active participation at the
Company's general meetings. Information would be communicated to the
Shareholders mainly through the Company’s corporate communications
(such as interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars), annual
general meetings and other general meetings, as well as disclosure on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Interim reports,
annual reports and circulars are sent to the Shareholders in a timely
manner and are also available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. The Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites
provide the Shareholders with the corporate information. Shareholders
are provided with contact details of the Company as set out in the above
paragraph and under “contact us” information on the Company’s website
at www.sheentai.com in order to enable them to make any query that
they may have with respect to the Company. Shareholders, investors and
interested parties can make enquiries directly to the Company through the
following e-mail: investorrelation@sheentai.com. In addition, Shareholders
can contact Tricor Investor Services Limited, the Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office of the Company, if they have any enquiries
about their shareholdings and entitlements to dividend.
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The Company’s annual general meeting allows the Directors to meet
and communicate with the Shareholders. The Company ensures that
Shareholders’ views are communicated to the Board. The chairman of the
annual general meeting proposes separate resolutions for each issue to be
considered. Annual general meeting proceedings are reviewed from time
to time to ensure that the Company follows good corporate governance
practices. The notice of the annual general meeting is distributed to all
Shareholders at least 21 days prior to the annual general meeting and the
accompanying circular also sets out details of each proposed resolution
and other relevant information as required under the Listing Rules.
Separate resolution is proposed for each issue to be considered at the
meeting. The chairman of the annual general meeting exercises his power
under the Articles to put each proposed resolution to the vote by way of
a poll. The procedures for demanding and conducting a poll are explained
at the meeting prior to the polls being taken. Voting results are posted on
the Company’s website on the day of the annual general meeting.

After taking into account that the Shareholders have multiple channels
to communicate their views as mentioned above as well as the steps
taken by the Board to solicit and understand the views of Shareholders
and stakeholders during the year ended 31 December 2022 including
but not limited to open discussion with the Shareholders during the
annual general meeting, the Board’s review of the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy was found to be
sound and adequate.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing. Contact details are as follows:

HK Address: Room 1903,19/F, Jubilee Centre, 18 Fenwick Street,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3998 4118/3998 4128

Fax: (852) 3998 4100

E-mail: investorrelations@sheentai.com

Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns will be forwarded to the Board and/
or relevant Board Committees of the Company, where appropriate, to
answer the Shareholders’ questions.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow article 64 of the Articles for including
a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting. The requirements and
procedures are set out above in the paragraph headed “The Shareholders’
Right to Convene an Extraordinary Meeting”.

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person (other than a retiring
Director) shall be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting unless a notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that person of
his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the Head Office
or at the Registration Office no earlier than the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and the
minimum length of the period during which such notices to the Company
may be given will be at least 7 days.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director is posted on the website of the Company.

Significant Changes in Constitutional Documents

In order to further improve the corporate governance of the Company
and to conform to the core shareholder protection standards set
out in Appendix 3 of the Listing Rules, the Company has passed
a special resolution on 27 May 2022 to adopt the amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association of the Company (the
“Memorandum and Articles of Association”).

Detailed information of the amendments in the Memorandum and
Articles of Association are set out in the circular of the Company dated 26
April 2022 and the announcements of the Company dated 1 April 2022,
26 April 2022, 12 May 2022 and 11 July 2022.
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The Directors are hereby to present to the Shareholders this annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal business activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in the consolidated financial statements Note 22 in this annual
report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group during the
Year, and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, Chapter
622, can be found in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report. Those discussions form part of this
directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of the
Group, some of which are inherent to the businesses in which the Group is
engaged and some are from external sources. Major risks are summarised
below:

(i) The Group relies on a sole customer in
photovoltaic power business segment

The Group has relied on and expects to continue to rely on the
government authority State Grid Jiangsu Electric Power Co., Ltd.
Xuzhou Power Supply Branch* (“State Grid Jiangsu”), as it is the
sole customer of the Group in photovoltaic power business segment
since 2015. The Directors consider, with reference
to “Several Opinions of the State Council on Promoting the Healthy
Development of the Photovoltaic Industry”* BI75% BRI Y ik
EXEFEEENETER), "Administrative Measures for the Full
Guaranteed Acquisition of Renewable Energy Power Generation”*
(AIBAERBEEE2BREMHWEEIENE), "Regulations on the
Supervision of the Full-scale Acquisition of Renewable Energy Power
Generation by Grid Enterprises” * ( B2 HWE T BHEERE
2 ES & ¥ £ ) and "Notice on standardizing the management of
priority generation priority purchase plan”* (R &3/8 fc 2 EE LB
EHEIEEAAA), the Company’s photovoltaic power plants will
continue to enjoy the guarantee of the local government'’s purchase
of full on-grid electricity and subsidies for renewable energy by
2035.

*  For identification purposes only
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(i)

(iii)

However, if there is any change of the relationship with State Grid
Jiangsu, it is not easy for the Company to sell its electricity to other
customers as the electricity market in Xuzhou City has not been
liberalized, which could in turn materially and adversely affect the
business operations and financial performance of the Group.

The Group relies on certain major suppliers

The Group has relied on and expects to continue to rely on certain
major suppliers for a significant portion of the purchases. If they
fail to make timely delivery of their products and the Group fails to
source from other suppliers in a timely and cost-effective manner,
the operation of the Group could be delayed. The relationship
between the Group and its customers could also be adversely
affected as a result of any such delays, which could in turn
materially and adversely affect the business operations and financial
performance of the Group.

The fluctuation of exchange rate may have a
material effect on the business and performance
of the Group

The sales of the Group are denominated in RMB and the purchases
are denominated in US$ and RMB. The Group does not engage
in any exchange rate hedging activities. Any fluctuation in the
exchange rates of RMB and US$ may have an adverse effect on
the results of operations and financial condition of the Group.
Appreciation of the value of US$ may increase the costs of the
Group and thus subject the Group to increased competition from
domestic competitors, and depreciation in the value of RMB may
adversely affect the earnings, as well as the value of the net assets
and dividends from the PRC subsidiaries of the Group.

(i)

(iii)
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(iv) PRC political, economic and social conditions and
government policies could affect the business of
the Group

All of the operating assets of the Group are located in the PRC and
the Group expects that a majority of the revenue will continue to
be derived from the operations in the PRC. The results of operations
and prospects are subject, to a significant degree, to economic,
political and legal developments in the PRC. The economy of the
PRC differs from the economies of most developed countries in
many respects, including the extent of government involvement,
the level of development, the growth rate, and government control
of foreign exchange. The Group cannot predict whether changes in
the PRC’s political, economic and social conditions, laws, regulations
and policies will have any material adverse effect on the current or
future business, results of operation or financial condition of the
Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE WITH
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Details of environmental Policies and performance are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.

The Group is committed to ensuring that the Group’s operation is in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. As far as the Directors
are aware, the Group has complied in material respects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognises that employees, customers and business partners
are the keys to the sustainable development of the Group.

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of the
Group. The Group attracts and retains key personnel and talents with
appropriate skills, experience and competence which would complement
and meet the corporate and business objectives of the Group. The Group
ensures all employees are reasonably remunerated and the remuneration
packages of employees are reviewed regularly and necessary adjustments
are made to the remuneration packages to align with the market
standards.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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The Group also stays connected with its customers and suppliers and
has ongoing communication with the customers and suppliers through
various channels such as telephone, electronic mails and physical meetings
to obtain their feedback and suggestions.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Board is pleased to propose a final dividend out of the share premium
account under reserves of the Company in the amount of HK1.0 cent per
share for the Year (for the year ended 31 December 2021: Nil).

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining entitlement to attend the forthcoming annual general
meeting (“AGM") to be held on 31 May 2023, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from 25 May 2023 to 31 May 2023,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
registered. The record date will be on 31 May 2023. In order to qualify for
attending the AGM, all transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong before
4:30 p.m. on 24 May 2023.

For determining entitlement to the proposed final dividend (if approved at
the AGM), the register of members of the Company will be closed from
6 June 2023 to 7 June 2023, both days inclusive. The record date will
be 7 June 2023. In order to qualify for the entitlement of the proposed
final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on
5 June 2023. Subject to the approval of the shareholders at the AGM, it is
expected that the final dividend will be paid on or around 23 June 2023.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in the consolidated financial statements Note
18 in this annual report.
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LEASE LIABILITIES

Details of lease liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements Note 34 in this annual report.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
in five year financial summary. This summary does not form part of the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s paid up capital for the Year are set out in the
consolidated financial statements Note 28 in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of Cayman Islands.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the Year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of approximately HK$7.3
million (for the year ended 31 December 2021: loss attributable to equity
shareholders of approximately HK$6.8 million) have been transferred to
reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity in this annual report.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Significant Investment, Material Acquisition and Disposal” in
this annual report, there were no significant investments held nor other
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associated companies
and joint ventures during the Year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of important event affecting the Group subsequent to the Year
are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Subsequent Events” in this annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for approximately
94.9% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 76.1% of the total sales for
the Year. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 58.0% of the total purchases for the Year and
purchase from the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 18.1% of the total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and as at the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman)
Ms. Xia Yu

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Fan Qing
Mr. Dai Tin Yau
Mr. Chan Yin Lam

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND OTHER SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and other senior management are
disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in the consolidated
financial statements Note 15(a) in this annual report. The Directors’
remunerations are determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities within the Company.

MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 15 and Note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements and contracts amongst group companies, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company and other director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Year.
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INTERESTS OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance has been entered into during the Year
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes
or likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

The independent non-executive Directors had, in the Board meeting
during the Year, reviewed the non-competition undertakings (the “Non-
competition Undertakings”) given by Sheen Tai Group Holding Limited
("Sheentai BVI”) and Mr. Guo Yumin (“Mr. Guo”) in a deed of non-
competition entered into between Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo in favour
of the Company on 28 June 2012. The independent non-executive
Directors were not aware of any non-compliance of the Non-competition
Undertakings given by Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo for the Year and up
to the date of this annual report. Each of Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo
confirmed that he/it had complied with the Non-competition Undertakings
given by him/it from the date of the Non-competition Undertakings and
up to the date of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in a state-managed retirement scheme operated by
the PRC government which covers the Group’s eligible employees in the
PRC and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for the employees in Hong
Kong. Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in the consolidated
financial statements Note 4(s) in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the relevant rules of the Cayman Islands, the Company’s
distributable reserves as at 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$678.5 million.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(a

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of the
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

(i) Long Position in the Shares and the underlying
Shares

Name of Director

EEHA

Capacity/Nature
5/ ME

Mr. Guo Yumin

("Mr. Guo") (Note 1)
FER(ZBEED SyEHEEER (M)

Beneficial owner (Note 2)

Baa AME2)

Interest of spouse (Notes 3 and 4)

Ao B (fsE3&%4)
Ms. Xia Yu (“Ms. Xia") Interest of spouse (Note 5)
BR(ELZLD e fs iz (PFE5)
Beneficial owner (Note 3)
EnmEB AME3)
Ms. Fan Qing (“Ms. Fan”) Beneficial owner (Note 6)
BT (Bat]) BEmEAa AMEEe)

Directors’ Report
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(a

Interest of a controlled corporation

2022F12A31H » ARREES&ESTERA
BRARE S AR EE (EE R FH M
S50 ([ 7 H R EIE 501 ]) EXVER) ARG -
HEARMD RESFF  BEEREEHFRBEK
1J%XV*I3%7&8“*B%D‘%$ A R AR
mRAE (BEREESF RS 1I*1§IJ52%?1|*¥%&
;?{’Emﬁz%ﬁﬁﬁz{ﬂﬁgﬁﬁn KA HARE
HHEMY ié’iﬂ%%%3521‘%33&5’\3%%%%%3
E%%E*’ KB - AR EARAIMIER102 TR
7§$ﬁﬁ EH X SHMEETABEANGAR
MR TR AR AT ¢

() RROREERDZHFR

Number of
HETET
underlying
Shares held/
interested Approximate
iV 2] percentage of
BEROR interest
HERDEE EEEI LA
1,206,086,000 49.55%
272,356,164 11.19%
33,094,000 1.36%
1,478,442,164 60.74%
33,094,000 1.36%
800,000 0.03%
JER 2R EEER AR
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(i) REBZEEBERZER

(ii) Long Position in the Ordinary Shares of Associated

Corporation
Number of
Share held/
Name of associated interested Percentage of
Name of Director  corporation Capacity/Nature ik=Va ) interest
EEfE LSS 5% E EmRHEE EmADL
Mr. Guo Sheentai BVI Beneficial owner 1 100%
B E=fAA
Ms. Xia (Note 5) Sheentai BVI Interest of spouse 1 100%
B+ (Mizs) i
Notes: MI3E

80

2. These 272,356,164 Shares and underlying Shares represent 2. 5%272,356,164 8% i% 10 K AB R A% {0 45 2
the 272,356,164 Shares owned by Mr. Guo. S B 89272,356,164R% A% ©

3. These 33,094,000 Shares and underlying Shares represent the 3. #33,094,000% iz 19 & AHBE AR 19 e B 22
33,094,000 Shares owned by Ms. Xia. T4 A £933,094, 000 A1) ©

4. Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia. Accordingly, Mr. Guo 4. BRERBBEL TG - Ett - FEE
is deemed, or taken to be interested in all the Shares and WEANEEREL LB ESNE
underlying Shares in which Ms. Xia is interested. Batn RABRARR (DR B #EE2S ©

5. Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo. Accordingly, Ms. Xia is 5. B+ ABLEENRS - Bt - BEE
deemed, or taken to be interested in all the Shares and A REEED - EX TR AR EER
underlying Shares in which Mr. Guo is interested for the BRERG RSB RD RABBRND
purpose of the SFO. FHA R o

6. These 800,000 underlying Shares represent the 800,000 6. #%800,000% 1878 & D 3 R B E A T{E A

Mr. Guo beneficially owns the entire issued share capital of
Sheentai BVI. Therefore Mr. Guo is deemed, or taken to be,
interested in all the 1,206,086,000 Shares held by Sheentai
BVI for the purpose of the SFO. Mr. Guo is the sole director of
Sheentai BVI.

Shares which may be allotted and issued to Ms. Fan upon full
exercise of the Share Options granted to her.
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(b)  So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2022, the (b) IEEZEFFH » B2022F12A31H » LW FA L

following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the (EXQ@BFEEZANRAREERERITRAR
Company as disclosed in paragraph (a) above) had interests or BRIM IR D SRR P B IREE S R E
short positions in Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to TRBIEBXVEREE2 R B35 B AMESCURRI AN A B &
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the BRI EMERIOAE  KEEREERER
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who are, Bt 75 R R AT A AR B R T EE AR SR B AT A B Ath A
directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal BRAMKREARE R EEAE IR AEE
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all 10% 3k A ER)fERS -
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the
Group:
The Company AT
Number of
Shares held/ Approximate
interested Percentage of
Capacity/Nature of interest iV 2] shareholding
513 RERME EZRHOEE RAEE 2 LA
Sheentai BVI Beneficial owner 1,206,086,000 49.55%
gt 2PN

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company had [ ECEriERE SN - 72022412 318 » #EE(F{q
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive AT (RATEEHZSTHAERIN MERATEH
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or P& s AERARL (D o 7k B ZBEAR 15 35 5 M BA G &I B XV
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under #8552 & 830 2 IEX MAR GIHE » s AR A
the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were 1B E 5 M EAEIEHI 33615 R EFE 2 Bl aykE
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to  zFajA & °

Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS" RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ interests
and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures” above,
at no time during the Year was the Company, its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company or their associates to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) and was expired on 21 June 2022, whilst the Share Option
Scheme has expired the Share Options (as defined below) granted
remain exercisable by the Grantees (as defined below). A summary of the
principal terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme is set out as
follows:

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners or service providers of the Group and to promote the
success of the business of the Group.

2. Participants

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time), director,
consultant or adviser of the Group, or any substantial shareholder
of the Group, or any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customer, business partner or service provider of the Group, options
to subscribe for such number of Shares as it may determine in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any option
shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may be, the
independent non-executive Directors) from time to time on the basis
of his contribution or potential contribution to the development
and growth of the Group.
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Total of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other scheme of
the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of all the shares
in issue as at the date of listing of the shares of the Company (or
such numbers of shares as shall result from a sub-division or a
consolidation of the shares of the Company from time to time), i.e.
40,000,000 shares representing 10% of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date of listing. On 25 September 2015, each of
the existing issued and unissued shares of the Company of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company was sub-divided into four
sub-divided shares of HK$0.0025 each (the “Shares Subdivision”).
As such, the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other scheme of the Company is adjusted from 40,000,000 to
160,000,000.

On 29 January 2015, a total of 14,600,000 share options (the
“Share Options”) to subscribe for a total of 14,600,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (which were adjusted to
58,400,000 shares of HK$0.0025 each after the Shares Subdivision)
were granted to certain Directors and employees of the Company
under the Share Option Scheme (the “Grantees”).

Therefore, as at the date of this annual report, the total number
of shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme and
any other scheme of the Company was 49,550,000 representing
approximately 2.03% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted to any participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue.
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Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the
grant of the relevant options, there is no performance target which
must be achieved before any of the options can be exercised.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable on
acceptance of the option

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall
be at least the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant of the option, which must be a business day;
(ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on
the date of grant of the option.

Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten
years commencing on the date on 22 June 2012 (the date on
which the Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted by the
Company) and shall expire at the close of business on the business
day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary thereof unless
terminated earlier by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting.
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On 29 January 2015, a total of 14,600,000 share options to subscribe for
a total of 14,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
were granted to certain Directors and employees of the Company under
the Share Option Scheme. Among the share options granted above,
2,100,000 share options were granted to the Directors to subscribe for a
total of 2,100,000 shares of the Company. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 29 January 2015.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 24 September
2015 in relation to the adjustment to the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme upon the share subdivision of the Company becoming
effective on 25 September 2015.

Set out below are details of the outstanding options granted under the

Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report:

Directors’ Report
ExeRE

201551 H29H - AJRES 14,600,000/ KA 7
ERREEO0.01/8TTH L EALAI 14,600,000/ BERLHE
ERBEBRETERTFETARAEERIES - AT
RS - 2,100,000 ERETIE TEE - MU
RIEA 2,100,000 AR A G - FEBLHEAR
AIBEIA2015F1 A29BMAE -

FE2HAATBEA2015F9R24BHM A E - B A
AN BRI ABFA 2015529 B 25 B A 30 AT 2 B A AE

2 o

=y

o
W\

eyl

ng

O

RS B - RIBERERT 8K H 0 RITE R A
BRI

Number of

options
granted on Outstanding Outstanding
PERENIETLY as at as at
2015 1 January 31 December
#2015% 2022 During the reporting period 2022
1A29A 2022 REEHR 20228
Name of grantee ERBRE 1818 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 12A31R
ARARE #A WA BEfT B BH# BAXN W AT

Director EZ

Ms. Fan Qing BERE 800,000 800,000 - - - - 800,000
Employees and advisers ES R 57,600,000 48,750,000 - - - - 48,750,000
Total aif 58,400,000 49,550,000 - - - - 49,550,000

The number of share options which are available for grant under the
scheme mandate of the Share Option Scheme as at 1 January 2022 and
31 December 2022 is nil.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed approximately 57 full-
time staff members. The Directors and senior management receive
compensation in the form of fees, salaries, allowances, benefits in kind
and/or discretionary bonuses relating to our performance. The Group
also established the Share Option Scheme to incentivize the senior
management and employees, further details of which are set out in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report. When reviewing
and determining the specific remuneration packages for the executive
Directors and senior management, the Company takes into consideration
factors such as their individual performance, qualification, experience and
seniority, salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors, employment elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration. The Group determines
the staff’s remuneration based on factors such as qualifications and work
experience.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable donation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to Article 191 of the Articles, every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float during the
Year and up to the date of this annual report as required under the Listing
Rules.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 have been audited by RSM Hong Kong.

RSM Hong Kong will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution
for the reappointment of RSM Hong Kong as auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board of

Guo Yumin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B S

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sheen Tai
Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 98 to 202, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Impairment of trade receivables; and

2. Impairment of loan and other receivables.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BREETEE(E)

Key Audit Matter
BRESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RERBHEEPNMEERRETSE

Impairment of trade receivables
Refer to Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has trade receivables
with net carrying amount of approximately HK$115,099,000.
Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year in respect of the Group's trade
receivables amounted to approximately HK$848,000.

Loss allowance for trade receivables are based on
management’s estimate of the lifetime expected credit losses
("ECL") to be incurred, which is estimated by taking into
account the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue trade
receivables, customers’ repayment history and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic conditions,
all of which involve a significant degree of management
judgement. The management engaged a qualified external
valuer to assist in the assessment.

B 2 BWERRE
B2 A B RKMNEE24

R2022F 128318 © EEENEZERFIERNREFELED
115,099,000 7T - RAFERISIERRANEREHE ES
EZ 5 W GRIB R R EE 18 4)848,00078 7T °

BIRUGRENERBEEDENSEENEBEREEER
(FEHEEERE D EEEMAE  EEZEEEHELR A
HIE 5 RUGRIARE - 2P & resk M B ATATER — AR
RENHERGEE - Eh SRS RERRENEILEHE -
BEEREA AR EERNH B o

Our procedures included:

o Understanding and evaluating key control over
impairment assessment of trade receivables, and
assessing the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes, susceptibility to management bias
or fraud;

° Evaluating the outcomes of period assessment of
impairment assessment of trade receivables to assess the
effectiveness of management’s estimation process;

o Obtaining and examining the assessment report of ECL
of trade receivables prepared by the external valuer
engaged by the Group;

o Assessing the external valuer’s qualifications, experience
and expertise, and considering its objectivity and
independence;

EMORFEE

o TEREFEHEZRYESIREREF MO ERES - 8
BE S AT NEEENIEE MM E A E R E =K
(¥ sEtE - T8N - 8  HFXERERIFZERE
HRE) - FHEEA R EAS SRR

o FHABEZRWFORBENENBMRFEER - AFGE
EEAFHRRARIE

o IR EEEZEINBHERMRENESEUK
BIRMEEEEERE

o FHESNEMAERMNER  KREEXEND  YEBHEET
BN E M
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Independent Auditor’s Report
B BERE

BEETEE(E)

Key Audit Matter
BHRETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRAERBHERPNMEERARETSE

We identified assessing the recoverability of trade receivables
and recognition of loss allowance are inherently subjective and
requires significant management judgement, which increases
the risk of error or potential management bias.

HAIE BRI B S M IR R A] B4 1 R B R R B RO R
BXIBMEYFEEREERERHE - Mg ntRHERS
EREEERR AR o

o Assessing whether trade receivables was appropriately
grouped by the management into categories with shared
credit risk characteristics;

o Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
completeness of the data used by the management to
develop historical loss rates and assessing the sufficiency,
relevance and reliability of that data;

o Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing of
trade receivables to supporting documents; and

o With the assistance of our in-house valuation specialists:

(i)  assessing the appropriateness of the impairment
model used by the Group;

(i)  testing inputs to the model to market data;

(i)  assessing the appropriateness of forward-looking
adjustments to the model; and

(iv)  testing the calculation of the ECL provisions.
e  HMEEERERLSRARNEERRFEE ZEKFIA
e MEAFNERESETELBREXMABEBRETEE T
B WAl BEH o1 - ABRIE R AT EE

o HERAHERXMHHE B RUGIR 2 R ERRE
&

e HEABHEZEROBET
() FHE BEREREAREEAZTEES

(i) AFETSEIEEAERNEARE

(i) FHERAFIELRRREEE &

(iv) RIABHEEERBEENTHE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BEETEE(E)

Key Audit Matter
BRESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RERBHEEPNMEERRETSE

Impairment of loan and other receivables
Refer to Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has loan and other
receivables with net carrying amount of approximately
HK$54,053,000. Reversal of impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year in
respect of the Group’s loan and other receivables amounted to
approximately HK$3,621,000.

Loss allowance for loan and other receivables are based on
management’s estimate of the 12 months ECL to be incurred,
which is estimated by taking into account the credit loss
experience, ageing of overdue loan and other receivables,
borrowers’ repayment history and borrowers’ financial position
and an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions, all of which involve a significant degree
of management judgement. The management engaged a
qualified external valuer to assist in the assessment.

JFE LA 3 T LA B WK IR DR R
BH2HEA B RKAEE24 -

2022612 8318 - EEEREREF K E A EWREIERN
BRE)FE A #)54,053,000/8 7T - RAFERLGE BERANE
REE BEEBREWE R E MR IE AR E E 18R E 4
3,621,000 7T °

B 3 MR S R T RS 2 9121
RSEEERZ EREGY - KA EERERER  ANE
YRR MRS (A BRI R A R
REH B RNTR —REB RSO RIEE - EFEESY
REARENEREAY - EREEBAZRS BEEHE
¥ -

Our procedures included:

o Understanding, evaluating the key control over
impairment assessment of loan and other receivables,
which included the management'’s identification of
events that triggered the significant increase in credit risk
of loan and other receivables and events of default;

o Assessing the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes, susceptibility to management bias
or fraud;

o Evaluating the outcomes of period assessment of
impairment assessment of loan and other receivables
to assess the effectiveness of management’s estimation
process;

o Obtaining and examining the assessment report of ECL
of loan and other receivables prepared by the external
valuer engaged by the Group;

BAWREFEE

o TR FHEHEKRER R EMmEKFIRRER G AR5
- BREEEHEBEKER R EMERFIAEE
[ R B IE INE) F A SB O FIFEVRA

o EREEMEATHEETUMNEEREMESRREZKF
(RN - THME - B HXEEERAZERE
HIREF) - FHEEB R EAHE R ER:

o FHEEME R E b B YRR IR R E R Ah B0 B R A A
R UHEEREEGFHEEN AR |

o  HSYEEH BEEEZEINMEERREMERER
R E A W SRERE R EIER A ®RE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBETRE

BREETEE(E)

Key Audit Matter
BRESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRARBHBRPNMEERARETSE

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
balance involved and the significant accounting judgements
and estimates required in assessing the loss allowance for
impairment of loan and other receivables.

BT M ) SRR BRI R B M B ok e LAt FE WK IR 2
ERBBEAERERG HE R BWBRPIEP R L

=

Assessing the external valuer’s qualifications, experience
and expertise, and considering its objectivity and
independence;

Evaluating management’s assessment of whether there
was a significant increase in credit risk on the loan and
other receivables since initial recognition; and

With the assistance of our in-house valuation specialists:

(i) assessing the appropriateness of the impairment
model used by the Group;

(i)  testing inputs to the model to market data;

(i)  assessing the appropriateness of forward-looking
adjustments to the model; and

(iv)  testing the calculation of the ECL provisions.

FHEINBEERMHER - KBRERME - LEREE
BN S

AT AL IR [ 4 R W RN E A WK IR B A5 HE SR IA 2R
EERBRABARIERANE &
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BERE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Wai Kwun.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants

31 March 2023

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZE2022F12A3181EFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue A 8 315,701 66,113
Cost of sales SHER AR (277,161) (29,670)
Gross profit EF 38,540 36,443
Other income EH g A 9 6,204 6,979
Other gains and losses, net H b dzs K 518 R 58 10 (5,229) (740)
Distribution costs 7 EEA A (288) (528)
Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment losses) & 5 & Uk 58 K H h fE U 3008
on trade and other receivables HREEIERE,CRE
E18) 2,773 (14,611)
Administrative expenses TR (26,999) (30,448)
Other operating expenses E A RS (2,011) (2,254)
Profit/(loss) from operations LERF(FR) 12,990 (5,159)
Finance costs A R A 11 (901) (970)
Profit/(loss) before tax BADEF (&) 12,089 (6,129)
Income tax expense s i it 12 (4,785) (775)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREAN(ER) 13 7,304 (6,904)
Attributable to: BTN A B4
Equity shareholders of the Company KA AERARR Zz3)18 (6,794)
Non-controlling interests FEE RS 9) (110)
7,304 (6,904)
Earnings/(loss) per share BRERN(FHB) 17
Basic (HK$ per share) HAR(FRETT) 0.003 (0.003)
Diluted (HK$ per share) BE(gRET) 0.003 (0.003)

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
AERaRHEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20225612A31BILEFE

2022
20224

HK$'000

2021
20214
HK$'000
FAT

Profit/(loss) for the year FEREA(ER) 7,304 (6,904)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hh 2 (8518), e :
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AIEEEFT AR B -
Exchange differences on translating foreign AR IME & P EE Y E 5
operations (58,497) 19,858
Exchange differences reclassified to profit or loss & RIME SR EF DI EBRMIER
on disposal of foreign operations =5 471 (334)
Release of exchange reserve upon deregistration  #E§5 — I E A R&IEAVIE i &
of a subsidiary - (157)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the FREMPE(ER), W - HIBRHKE
year, net of tax (58,026) 19,367
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the FRAZHE(EE), WEHEHE
year (50,722) 12,463
Attributable to: BUR AL HEAE :
Equity shareholders of the Company A AR (50,715) 12,487
Non-controlling interests TR (7) (24)
(50,722) 12,463
JEREREEERAAE

2022F G 3R
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R R

At 31 December 2022
#2022 12831H

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE KRR 18 247,877 287,589
Right-of-use assets EREEE 19 23,421 25,814
Goodwill 5L 20 - -
Intangible assets mAE 21 13 608
Other non-current assets HEtIEmEEE 434 1,480
Contract assets BHEE 25 31,155 26,191
Deferred tax assets TRIEFIAE BE 31 117 106
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 303,017 341,788
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value through RARBEEEREZSETA
profit or loss HEHEENEREE 26 5,681 =
Inventories Ay 23 5,107 5,990
Trade and other receivables B 5 FE W GRIA [ Eo At e Wk E 24 183,482 180,322
Current tax assets BNEAFRIE & B 71 8,803
Bank and cash balances RITRIR A 27 330,894 344,940
Total current assets RBEEAE 525,235 540,055
Current liabilities FREBaE
Trade and other payables B 5 FETRRIE [ B At fE T RRIE 33 13,758 15,585
Lease liabilities HEAE 34 1,002 656
Deferred government grants RAETS T4 B 32 264 287
Current tax liabilities BEARIE & (& 11,811 11,990
Total current liabilities REBEEREE 26,835 28,518
Net current assets RBEEEHE 498,400 511,537
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBEE 801,417 853,325

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2022



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e MBRRE

At 31 December 2022
#2022%12A31H

2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT T
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 34 13,245 14,591
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBEE 31 8,363 7,472
Deferred government grants RAETR AT B 32 5,202 5,933
Total non-current liabilities F BB ERLE 26,810 27,996
NET ASSETS FEE 774,607 825,329
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#HE
Share capital [N 28 6,085 6,085
Reserves ] 30 768,789 819,244
Equity attributable to equity shareholders RN B AR R R I R
of the Company 774,874 825,329
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR A (267) =
Total equity fERAE 774,607 825,329

Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2023 and are signed on ~ HEE22023F3A31BHET B TIALTRERE

its behalf by: EEEE
Guo Yumin Xia Yu
BER BB

JERZEREBERAR
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. Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REeEnBER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022612A31BILEE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company
ARARRER

Capital Share-based Non-
Share Share  redemption Capital ~ Statutory  payments  Exchange Retained controlling Total

Note capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests equity
B4 HRHRER

(i B5  RfteR  RORRE  EABR  AERE  NxARE EXRE  REE Nt FERER 3

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT T Tin TEr BT T AL 7 5

At 1 January 2021 R01E1A1R 6,085 601,211 53 68,665 34,178 15,228 (9,387) 96,809 812,842 - 812,842
Total comprehensive income FRRENEEE

for the year - - - - - - 19,281 (6,794) 12,487 (24) 12,463
Capital injection from a —FNBAAFEERR

non-controlling shareolder RETE

of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 4373 4373
Appropriation to Statutory reserve  HEZETEE - - - - 209 - - (2,009) - - -
Disposal of a subsidiary LENRAT 36(0) - - - - = - - - - (4,349) (4,349)
Changes in equity for the year FRERED = = = - 2,029 - 19281 (8823) 12487 = 12487
At 31 December 2021 20215128318 6,085 601,211 53 68,665 36,207 15228 9,89 87,986 825329 - 825329
At 1 January 2022 HR021A18 6,085 601,211 53 68,665 36,207 15,228 9,894 87,986 825,329 - 825329
Total comprehensive income EREENREE

for the year - - - - - - (58,028) 1313 (50,715) (U] (50,722)
Appropriation to statutory reserve  AREATER - - - - 2,108 = = (2,108) = = =
Partial disposal of subsidiaries without  SAHENEEIEL

Joss of control HBAR 36(e) - - - - - - - 260 260 (260) =
Changes in equity for the year FRERED - - - - 2,108 - (58,028) 5,465 (50,455) (267) (50,722)
At 31 December 2022 202246128318 6,085 601,211 53 68,665 38315 15,228 (48,134) 93451 774,814 (267) 774,607

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 128318 LFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FBT
(Restated)
(#=7))
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& ZEIFFEBREERE
Profit/(loss) before tax FAnaH(&i8) 12,089 (6,129)
Adjustments for: FEIER -
Write off of property, plant and equipment YIZE -« BRE R E 13 37 25
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for FE (B ERR), BiE
inventories 13 (22) 387
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for trade B 5 FEWGRIE I H A FE KGR
and other receivables, net TE (BB R,/ et R 5 13 (2,773) 14,611
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries &S E A R M EE 6(a) & (b) 4,353 1,809
Amortisation of deferred government grants PR FE R 47 Bk 85 32 (273) (282)
Amortisation of intangible assets BB ERE 21 73 211
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — #1% « fE LR EITE 18 17,685 18,391
Depreciation of right-of-use assets REEENE 19 1,595 1,698
Finance costs BhE AN 11 901 970
Interest income F B WA (5,523) (6,445)
Unrealised losses on investments in equity RARFHIGE R ARSIREIE
securities 26 - 1,442
Fair value gain on investment in wealth KRB EMNAAEE
management product Wiz 26 (42) =
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary i — B A R A s 10 - (1,953)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - HEREEN
equipment Was 10 - (67)
Operating profit before working capital changes %38 & & & &) 5 AT & i | 28,100 24,668
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERLD/(35m) 905 (16,135)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 FEWGRIE I E A FE R
TRIE AN (41,824) (1,621)
Increase in contract assets BHEEEM (4,964) (8,039)
Decrease in other non-current assets Hib3EmeEEm 906 417
Decrease in trade and other payables B SN IE R E A ER R
IE R A (1,717) (3,219)
Decrease in contract liabilities axaEmd = (115)
Cash used in operations KEEEFTRIR S (18,594) (4,044)
Income taxes paid B FTSH (3,099) (2,426)
Income taxes refunded BIRFTIEH 8,303 174
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEFNE (901) (970)
Net cash used in operating activities RERESMAREFHE (14,291) (7,266)
JEREREEERAAE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(g=E7)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETHEEERE
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBA A 36(a) & (b) 20,598 8,230
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME - BE&EE 18 (163) (1,988)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME - BE KRENEE
equipment FIE - 67
Payment for purchase of wealth management B E 2 #1E R
product (5,674) =
Payments for right-of-use assets e B ERN K 19 - (1,590)
Advance of loan receivable R E FRE TR (116,440) (144,540)
Repayment of loan receivable FEWNETUE TR 133,906 144,540
Interest received BEUFIE 5,523 6,445
Net cash generated from investing activities WEEBMERESFE 37,750 11,164
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ®EEEFBSRERE
Capital injection from a non-controlling — B R R FEEAR AR R A
shareholder of a subsidiary xE = 4,373
Principal elements of lease payments HENROAR (1,017) (1,071)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing REEBN(FTA), TSR EF
activities % (1,017) 3,302
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRREEEEEEMER
EQUIVALENTS 22,442 7,200
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes b =g a2 (36,488) 11,680
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MATENRERESEE
AT 1 JANUARY HH 344,940 326,060
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R12B31ENRERELE
AT 31 DECEMBER E1EE 330,894 344,940
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReRAESEEEB DM
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RTINS KEER 330,894 344,940

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 24 February 2012 and
registered as an exempted company with limited liability under
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company and its subsidiaries
hereinafter are collectively referred to as the “Group”. The address
of its registered office is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The address of
its principal place of business is Unit 1903, 19/F, Jubilee Centre, 18
Fenwick Street, Wan Chai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 13 July 2012.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, Sheen Tai Group
Holding Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI”), is the immediate and ultimate parent and Mr. Guo
Yumin, a director of the Company, is the ultimate controlling party
of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

e VIR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 128318 LFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group.

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Group's results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The Group
has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RAFITREBITEEMBEREEAL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) (&)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) B MEMERREROIETREHE
effective R EBMBHREER
The Group has not applied any new standard, amendments REBIWEERTMAE BMHEHRR
to standards and interpretation that have been issued but are 202241 A1 BB MM IEEE £ A
not yet effective for the financial year beginning 1 January FTZEER - ERAEFT R 2R o AJREHAAREE
2022. The new standard amendments to standards and BENFETER - ERETRREEET
interpretation include the following which may be relevant to HIBIE -
the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

EUT S z%
FIR N E AR
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 — Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
BEGTERISE 1R RE SN B REENERREF2RETAR) - RESER 202351 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 8 — Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
EEGERIESTE (BFTA) — st hstNESR 202351 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from a 1 January 2023
Single Transaction
BEGTERE125F (BRI A) — RE - FEANEE R B EEBAETEN IR 202351 H1H
Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024
EREGERE 1R (EFAR) — BB ERRESIERE 20241 H1H
Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
BEGTERSE15E(BATAR) — SR IERE B E 202451 H1H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback 1 January 2024
ERUHHREENFE165F(ERIAR) —EREARNEERE 20241 H1H
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by 1 January 2024
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
EREBREESTH(2020F) UBBRNEY| — EFALHBERERERIER 2 EHRERZHHE 20241 H1H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor ~ To be determined by
and its Associate or Joint Venture the HKICPA
B GREERE 105 REEGTERE285% (BRI A) FEBGAE
—REEEHBENRIRGECEZHNEELEITE EEE
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of RNEB PR RS ER] R ERIEE R
what the impact of these amendments and new standards FEFR BRI AT - BRZ B RIS HA
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it i RAREFEAT KL AR & TS
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a REFERTE -

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the
accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill and any accumulated exchange reserve
relating to that subsidiary.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F 128318 IL5FE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 4. FEE:HHBEGE)
(a) Consolidation (continued) (a) #ZEBRBE (&)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement
of changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and equity shareholders of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity shareholders of the
Company and to the non-controlling shareholders even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the equity shareholders of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Separate financial statements

(9)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, unless
the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investments. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividend received or receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Business combination and goodwiill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at
the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued, liabilities incurred and any contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and
the services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary in the acquisition are, with limited expectations,
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum of the
consideration transferred is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to
the Group.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022

4,

EEEFBER(K)
(b) EBWABHRR

(9)

RABRHBARREKRT - RBARZIKE
THERANRRERB BRI - EZRED
BEERE(REERDBARIEHER
HEBRIR) RBIERIN - A BIEEXEG
ZIRERA - B AR EERARRIR
EERHERREAR -

RIREIRERME R R ZIRENBRE R
B REA BB B % B A R EE IKALE H
B EHW AR  HHEEREEES
MBHRETORAEBBKIRETNFE
E(EEAR)EFAMBHRRTNERE
18 RIZEEEEREETRERR -

REBEOREE

RSB R AR R AL R — I B A
REBAHIIR - XIEAHFHERRE
THEMSEERERMNAREE 2%
IRATR - CELBERERMKARE
FHE o WIBHRBR AR B R AN EL R
BRBHRERRFAX - RKBERDH
BRRMAIEREENAE  BRIERAR
- IR ER KB RN AR EERE -

mEERESRBEHAREREHBERR
ARAEERBENAEFENEZRT
SRR - ARBEIGAIHAEERAR
M AREFEBLAERAESEER
Z8 DR EBRRNERASNEEEE
BB o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(9)

Business combination and goodwill (continued)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value
is added to the sum of the consideration transferred in a
business combination to calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units
("CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes. Goodwill impairment
reviews are undertaken annually, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is
not subsequently reversed.

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the entity initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary items that
are measured at fair value in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on
a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F 128318 IL5FE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 4. FEE:HHBEGE)
(d) Foreign currency translation (continued) (d) HEEBmE(E)
(iii) Translation on consolidation (iii) #EKREZBE

The results and financial position of all foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the exchange reserve. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

A EINER (B EBERE WK
RERZEW) 2 RERBMEIRR
ZNREEBIMERIRARR 227
% RATHABRER/RRF]
22T

- REMBARRZINZEE
kaEREEM B REK
BEIZ WMERIGHE

- WEINERHRFHERBRE
(BRIFLFHERL FER S
EABTEXRATEZS
BAETA - EUERT - K
XERXFEAZERKRE)
)52

- MARBELAZERZES
T L ) 2 T A 28 ) R R I 17
PR RE

REERER  RAREBREIE
BFREZ—BHZERHEEME
HEZER ZRNE b2 EK SR
RRERFEREARE - BHMEE
EBRHER  ZFEXLZREN
DRERSBEREALEKRANE
B8 -

R EBmELEZBERA

REEHAE BHER/KEHEIE
BrEENMAE  URKHEXRER
IERZEREEERAF

2022F G 3R

113



114

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under construction as
described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Solar power plants 20 years
Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 5-20 years
Office equipment and others 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years
Yacht 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending installation,
and is stated at cost less impairment losses. Depreciation
begins when the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the

contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(i)

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over
the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments to be
made under reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the lease liability.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f) Leases (continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the individual lessee, which does
not have recent third-party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available
to the individual lessee (through recent financing or
market data) which has a similar payment profile to the
lease, then the Group entities use that rate as a starting
point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f) Leases (continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
except for the right-of-use assets related to interests
in leasehold land where the interest in the land is held
as inventory are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value in accordance with Note 4(j).

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f) Leases (continued)

(i)

(ii)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group's
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are any
rent concessions which arose as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the
conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16. In
such cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions
are lease modifications, and recognised the change in
consideration as negative lease payments in profit or
loss in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the rent concessions occurred.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as
an operating lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Software is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses (“ECL") in accordance with the policy set out in Note
4(y) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()]

(k)

Properties under development and held for
sale

Properties for sale under development and held for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs
include the acquisition cost of interest in leasehold land,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised and other
direct costs attributable to such properties. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

On completion, the properties are reclassified to properties
held for sale at the then carrying amount.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k) Recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments (continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one of
the following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

- FVTPL, if the investment does not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI") (recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in profit
or loss.

Equity securities

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
election to designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained profits. It is not recycled through profit or loss.
Dividends from an investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in
profit or loss as other income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Trade and other receivables

(n)

(o)

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with
the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is
any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducing all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax (“VAT") or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been shipped to the customer’s specific
location (delivery) and accepted by the customer.
Following delivery and acceptance, the customer has
full discretion over the manner of distribution and
price to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility
when on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. A
receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods
are delivered to and accepted by the customer as
this represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(r) Revenue and other income (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Sales of properties

Revenue from sale of completed properties is
recognised when control of the properties are
transferred, being when the construction of the
relevant properties has been completed and the
properties have been delivered, which is the point in
time when the customer has the ability to direct the
use of the property and obtain substantially all of the
remain benefits of the property. Revenue from sale of
properties excludes business tax and other sales related
taxes and is after deduction of any discounts allowed.
Deposits and instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under
contract liabilities.

Sales of electricity

Revenue from sale of electricity is recognised in the
accounting period when electricity is generated and
supplied to the provincial power grid. Revenue excludes
VAT or other sales taxes.

Rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance)
of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(s) Employee benefits

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

The Group operates various post-employments schemes,
including defined contribution pension plans.

(ii)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at
5% of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly
maximum amount of HK$1,500 per employee and vest
fully with employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") are members of central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal governments
(the “PRC Retirement Schemes”). The Group is required
to contribute certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and wages to the central pension schemes
to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the central pension schemes is
to meet the required contributions under the schemes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s)

(t)

Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined
at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or, if
the fair value of the services rendered cannot be reliably
measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
The fair value is measured at the date the Group receives the
services and is recognised as an expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Government grants

(v)

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are
recorded as deferred income and recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

EEEFBER(K)
BiIE (&)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 4.

(v) Taxation (continued) (v)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v) Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation
on right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the
principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group
intends either to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual Group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most
likely amount or the expected value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(w) PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

(x)

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
on the appreciation amount of land value, being the proceeds
from sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
land cost, borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures. LAT is recognised as an income tax expense.
LAT paid is a deductible expense for PRC enterprise income
tax purposes.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual
asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed using
pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset/CGU whose impairment is
being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the
goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other
assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are credited to profit
or loss to the extent that they reverse the impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(y)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade
receivables and contract assets. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contracts assets. The ECL on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(y)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the industries in
which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well
as consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s core
operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(y)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

= significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term, and

(i) Adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment
grade” in accordance with the globally understood definition
or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of “performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there are no

past due amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(y)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(y)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(y)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying
amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets
for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(2)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

(aa) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in Note 4, the directors are required to make judgements (other
than those involving estimations) that have a significant impact on
the amounts recognised and to make estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements (apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt
with below).

(@) Revenue recognition on tariff adjustments on sales of
electricity

Tariff adjustments represent subsidy received and receivable
from the government authorities in respect of the Group’s
solar power generation business.

In August 2013, the National Development and Reform
Commission of the PRC released the New Tariff Notice to
launch a new subsidising policy for distributed solar power
plants and adjusted benchmark on-grid price for electricity
generated by centralised solar power plants (which are
known as the ground solar plants).

Pursuant to the New Tariff Notice, a set of standardised
procedures for the settlement of the tariff subsidy has come
into force since 2013 and approvals for the registration in the
Renewable Energy Tariff Catalogue (the “Catalogue”) on a
project-by-project basis are required before the allocation of
funds to the state grid companies and further clarified the
procedures of the settlement of the tariff adjustment since
2020, which then would make settlement to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)
Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

(a)

Revenue recognition on tariff adjustments on sales of
electricity (continued)

In accordance with new government policy as stipulated
in the New Tariff Notices since 2020, the PRC government
will not announce new additions to the existing Catalogue
and has further simplified the application and approval
process regarding the registration of tariff adjustments for
non-hydro renewable energy power plant projects into the
Renewable Energy Tariff Subsidy List (the “List”). The state
grid companies will regularly announce the List based on the
project type, time of grid connection and technical level of the
solar power projects. All solar power plants already registered
in the Catalogue will be enlisted in the List automatically.

Tariff adjustments of approximately HK$32,460,000 (2021:
HK$32,885,000) recognised for the year ended 31 December
2022 are included in the sales of electricity as disclosed in
Note 8 and are recognised based on management judgement
that all of the Group’s operating power plants have qualified
for, and have met all the requirements and conditions as
required based on the prevailing nationwide government
policies on renewable energy for solar power plants.
Cumulative amount of tariff receivables relating to power
plants yet to register in the previous Catalogue and now,
the List amounting to approximately HK$31,155,000 (2021:
HK$26,191,000) remains outstanding as at the end of the
reporting period.

In making their judgement, the Directors, taking into account
the legal opinion as advised by the Group's legal advisor,
considered that all of the Group’s solar power plants currently
in operation have met the requirements and conditions as
stipulated in the New Tariff Notice for the entitlement of the
tariff adjustments when the electricity was delivered on grid.

The Directors are confident that all of the Group’s operating
power plants were able to be registered in the List in due
course and the accrued revenue on tariff subsidy are fully
recoverable but only subject to timing of allocation of funds
from the PRC government, after considering that there are
no bad debt experiences with the state grid companies in
the past and the tariff subsidy is fully funded by the PRC
government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

(b)

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in Note 4(y) ECL are measured as an allowance
equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL
for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2
when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a
significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the
credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Group
takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

(a)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as
at 31 December 2022 was approximately HK$247,877,000
(2021: HK$287,589,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b)

(9]

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made. During the
year, income tax of approximately HK$4,785,000 (2021:
HK$775,000) was charged to profit or loss.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the
Group has to exercise judgement and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
or any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-
of-use assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the asset belongs. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or
the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the recoverable amounts.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2022
were HK$247,877,000 (2021: HK$287,589,000) and
HK$23,421,000 (2021: HK$25,814,000) respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of trade and other receivables and contract
assets

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade and other receivables
and contract assets based on the credit risk of trade and
other receivables and contract assets. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECL model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of trade and
other receivables and contract assets is HK$200,307,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$12,596,000) (2021:
HK$205,620,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$16,562,000)).

Allowance for slow-moving inventories and net
realisable value of inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on the
ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and allowance charge/write-
back in the period in which such estimate has been changed.
Reversal of allowance for slow-moving inventories amounted
to approximately HK$22,000 (2021: allowance for slow-
moving inventories amounted to approximately HK$387,000)
was made to profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2022.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(e)

Allowance for slow-moving inventories and net
realisable value of inventories (continued)

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on current market conditions and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer’s demand and competitor’s actions in response to
severe industry cycles. The Group will reassess the estimates
by the end of each reporting period.

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies of
the Group entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. TRERER
(b) Credit risk (b) SEREB

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade and
other receivables) and from its financing activities, including
deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments. The
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned
by international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

Trade receivables and contract assets

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject
to the Group’s established policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management. Individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due ranging from 30 to 180 days from the
date of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments,
the loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group's different customer bases.

Based on the track record of regular repayment of receivables
from sales of electricity and that settlement of tariff
adjustment receivables is in accordance with the prevailing
government policies, all trade receivables and contract
assets from sales of electricity, including tariff adjustment
receivables, are expected to be recoverable and the ECL
provision on contract assets is considered to be insignificant.

EERRESTHIEIBETERTARE
FEAETREMSIZERMBAZER
AEEEBEEEEH(EEREFEK
FAREMEREIER) RESRUEE (B
RIFTREREBATR - INERH RE
@ TR)MEERR - AEEEER
MRS FERBEELNEERRBR
HEF 7 REREEFAEBETENDE
AR BT REEEE  AEERAE
ABEEEERR -

BEIRWHRERENEE

AR EBELEENTPEERRZ RS
EHENAREFEERRERECR - 2
R - HiEEBR—ESBENMER
FHETERNEEY - ZEHEEERF
BERIEAN R E 2 RIR R S T A0 RE
Wat REFHEER S RER L EHA
LFEIRIE - B P ENTEA ZE A8
302180 REIH - BmE - AKETEH
REESIERS -

AEBZBENFENRREERENS
B(RBEEMEE) RFTEE SRR
RENBEBERE AR AEENBE
EEBRLRTERATRTSEHNEE
BAREAZR  BAKENTRAEFE
2 B A — [ o B E BRSO 1R
B -

RIZE N HERUGRIAZ E BEMNERL
% AREEABRESUAZ GENAR
TTRITBGR - BEIRBENHEZMAEE
FERBFERENEE(REEEREE
WERIR) BRI E - MENEERREES
ERBEFRESTERX -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables and
contract assets, as at 31 December 2022:

R EE ()
(b) FERR(E)
BB EURARAKNEE ()

THRREEEEASEREREERRKTEH
FEEEENER - B81FER2022412 A31
BB SRERFIBRANEE

Expected
loss rate

%
%

2022
20224
Gross carrying
amount
AIREE
HK$°000

THET

Loss
allowance
BREE
HK$'000
FHET

Current (not past due) BNEA (A g H ) 0.61% 134,283 823
Less than 1 month DPR—EA 3.11% 13,204 410
147,487 1,233

Expected
|oss rate

BREEX
%

2021
20214
Gross carrying
amount
HARE(E
HK$'000

THET

Loss
allowance
B
HK$'000
FAT

Current (not past due) BPEA (I #2260 B 0.32% 133,012 420
Less than 1 month LR—EA - 97 =
More than 3 months past due B HRER A 3(E A = 9 =

133,118 420

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 5 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historical data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group's view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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6.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance for trade receivables during
the year is as follows:

6.

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

TR EE ()
(b) EERE(E)
HEERYHERESNEE (F)

FRNEBE S RERFEEERESENE
o :

2022 2021

2022 20214

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FHIT

At 1 January M1ATR 420 1,932
Impairment losses recognised for the year NEERRREERE 848 143
Deregistration of a subsidiary MM AR = (1,710)
Exchange differences bE X ZERE (35) 55
At 31 December M®12H31H 1,233 420

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 82.1% (2021:
98.4%) and 99.6% (2021: 99.5%) of total trade receivables
and contract assets was due from the Group's largest trade
receivables and contract assets and the five largest trade
receivables and contract assets respectively.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost include loan and other
receivables.

Other receivables are considered to have low credit risk,
and the loss allowance recognised during the period was
therefore limited to 12-month expected losses. These
instruments are considered to be low credit risk when they
have a low risk of default and the issuer has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.

AEENE S RUGIBBERENEERN
EERBREFREDFF82.1% (20214 :
98.4% ) $%.99.6% (20214 : 99.5%) * Jb
DRIREAEBEREAE HEWRIBRE L
BEARAAEZEURERSNEE -

REBEREBRERAFFAIEZHE
VARBEENEERESL

REBHEATTEZERMEE
REERAGE SREEBRERKRER
Ko Bt & WUROR

Hip @B BRR S EARENEER
% o At - REIARERHERBEBRN
REANERER EZFTAERE
FE DR BETARARANENER

HARTENRERERS - AIHESR
REEERR -
IEREREBERA T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (continued)

For the loan receivable, the management considers the credit
risk after considering the financial conditions of the borrower
and concluded that there was no significant increase in
credit risk, and the ECL was limited to 12-months ECL.
Management has applied the expected credit risk model and
estimated the probability weighted default rate of 36.1%
(2021: 35.5%) and loss given default rate of 61.7% (2021:
61.7%) after considering the current economic environment
and the forward-looking economic factors. Loss allowance
of approximately HK$11,297,000 (2021: HK$16,101,000)
was recognised as at 31 December 2022 and reversal of
impairment loss amounted to approximately HK$3,650,000
(2021: impairment loss amount to approximately
HK$14,458,000) was recognised to profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Movement in the loss allowance for loan and other

receivables at amortised cost during the year is as follows:

6.

TR EE ()
(b) &= ()

REBEREATECSREE (&)
RERERMS @ BEEETRERANYG
BiknE=E B EERRILRAEERRIL
MR - BFEHEEEBRR12(E
RAIEEEEEE - KRERERKBERE R
AEMEBEREZ  SREEAENEEES
B R AT IEE A E B36.1% (2021
F :135.5%) REXIEKRER61.7%(2021
F:61.7%)  R2022F 12 A31 BER
&5 18 B 45 4911,297,0005%8 7T (2021 4F ¢
16,101,000/ 7t ) R AR E 220226 12 A
B1HILEFERE=ERRERBEREDLY
3,650,000%8 Jt (20214 : BEEIELD
14,458,000/ 7 )

RERREHRAAEZERREMRK
FIAERBEOEEHMT

2022 2021

20225 202148

HK$'000 HK$'000

THExT T

At 1 January ®1A1H 16,142 2,696
Impairment losses recognised for the year RNFEHERRIERE 29 14,468
Amounts written off during the year REEMIEEHE = (1,300)
Reversals e (3.650) =
Exchange differences P 5 ZERE (1,158) 278
At 31 December M®12A31H8 11,363 16,142

The Group is also exposed to credit risk in relation to debt
investment that is measured at FVTPL. The maximum
exposure at the end of the reporting period is the carrying
amount of the investment of HK$5,681,000 (2021: HK$Nil).

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. TREREEE)
() Liquidity risk () RBpELEAR

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and NEE 2 BR RS B B R 2R
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains BEEHR - RMBERAEE 5 IE
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in SRENENESHERRANRESE S
the short and longer term. Hk o
The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted cash BEAREIFTEERABEZ SRS
flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities is as WEMIEL B EDHTIAT
follows:

Less than Between Between

1 year or 1and 2 and Over

on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
D1
RRER 15225 2535F 5L F CEl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHET BT FET FABT

At 31 December 2022  420225%12831H
Trade and other payables & 5 &< 708 &

HAbfER FRIE 13,758 = = = 13,758
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,846 1,421 3,738 17,211 24,216

At 31 December 2021 742021412 A31H
Trade and other payables & 5 E{f 5B K&

A 1~ FRIE 15,585 - - - 15,585

Lease liabilities HEAE 1,601 1,241 4,132 20,458 27,432
(d) Interest rate risk (d) FIZ=mEp
The Group's loan receivable bears interest at fixed interest ANEEE M N E FUR B E R RS
rate and therefore is subject to fair value interest rate risks. Ut AR RAAEENEREERR
The Group’s bank deposits bear interest at variable rates that AEBERRITFERILBEERB TR
vary with the then prevailing market condition. BEBIFREE o
JEREREEERAAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMB|RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(e) Categories of financial instruments at
31 December 2022

Financial assets:
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Lease liabilities

TREE :

EREME:

HEAE

6.

N ER AT ENERARE

SHEKREE(E)
(e) 2022F12A31BMERMIEDE

2022 2021
2022

20214
HK$'000
FH&T

HK$'000
TR

IAAREEFTEBEZEFHTA
EHRENESREE
SR ANGTEMERE E

(f) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position approximate their respective fair values.

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The following disclosures of
fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises
into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure

fair value:

Level 1 inputs:

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date.

inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly.

unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2022

5,681 -
500,046 524,369
13,758 15,585
14,247 15,247
() AREE
AR RAIRE 2 A EE S FE
EREREEZFRAEEESXEZANE
EEE -
RABEE

RABEENS2EEZRNGERRESF
REPHEBERKMKERRE BB
& TXEBEERRALEBEERTENARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

(@)  Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December
2022:

Description

i

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

D RBEETERE)

AEENBRAERBEEMHHEBEAHEY
BRI —AEREARBHIER -

(@) M2022F 12 A31BHARBERBRNHER
WELAT

Fair value measurements using: Total
ARBEFEFNER ! &%
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2022
F-BH E-ES FZE®R 20224
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FE T FET THERT FET

Recurring fair value REMAREBETE:
measurements:
Financial assets: SREE !
Financial assets at FVTPL AR BESERES
AEHEEN SR
BE
— Unlisted equity securities —IEETIRAEH = = = =
— Wealth management product — —IEEIE M - 5,681 - 5,681
- 5,681 - 5,681

Description

it

Recurring fair value KEMEDAAEETE
measurements:
Financial assets: SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL UNAREETEBEES
FFAEHE =M S E
BE
— Unlisted equity securities —IE ETIRAE S

Fair value measurements using: Total
AREBEFTEFRER A&t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021
B—EHR F_ER F=ER 20214F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT THET THETT T

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, there
were no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

REZE2021F % 2022512 318 1L
B EF—BR F_EBRME=RBHZME
A B o

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2022:

Level 2 fair value measurements

7. DREEFEER)

(b)

AEER2022F12 A31BETAREE
STEAMERANGERR - MERITEREA
BURIRTELT ¢

F_ERDIAEETE

Description Valuation technique
Fat fh{E i

Wealth management product Income approach

B Em WAL

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(a) Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
major products or service line for the year is as follows:

Cash value quoted by the bank based on the
principal amount and expected return rates at
inception

RITRBORA SR RIRPEREFHROESE

=1

8. WARZEHE

(a)

LN i)

REEERSRGESHNAEERFAN
MU A DT

2022 2021
20224 20214

HK$'000

% HK$'000

Revenue from contracts with ~ BEBMIEHREEAE15
customers within the scope REEARBEFEN
of HKFRS 15 LN

Disaggregated by major products & F E & sk IRFS 4D
or service lines

Sales of sub-processing cigarette 4% h1 T & /E &

FHET

TR

films 3,728 1% 8,115 12%
Sales of semi-conductors fHEfEE 255,344 80% - -
Properties development and related ¥73£ 2% & [ AE R AR 755

services 415 1% 446 1%
Generation of photovoltaic power ¢ {KZE 56,214 18% 57,552 87%
Total A&t 315,701 100% 66,113 100%

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(CONTINUED)

(a) Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and
services over time and at a point in time in the following
major product lines and geographical regions:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended Sales of sub-processing

31 December cigarette films

BENANALEE HEMIREEE
2022

WNE
HKS000
Fn

Primary geographical market ¥EHETS

2001
W15
HK$'000
Fhn

8.

Sales of semi-conductors

HETER

2022
0E
HKS000
Fn

2021
WNE
HK$'000
A7

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F12831BIEFE

WA K7 P& ()

(a) WA#HD (&)

REBR T ERE M MR B BERE
e R e s BB T M BRI EE AR MR,

Properties development
and related services

NERBRARRHE

2022
200E
HK$'000
Fan

2021
WNE
HK$'000
TiEn

Generation of

photovoltaic power Total

A188 4
2022 0 202 200

WRE  NE WANE NE
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

TR  TAr  TER AT

Hong Kong B - - 240219 - - - - - 240219 -
Mainland China e, 3728 8,115 15,125 - 415 446 56,214 57,552 75,482 66,113
Total At 3728 8115 255344 - 415 46 56214 5755 - 3157001 66,113
Timing of revenue recognition W ARE:RE
Products transferred at a point R E T

in time & 3728 8115 255344 - 415 446 - - 259487 8,561
Products and services transferred E g R IRERER R

over time g - - - - - - 56214 57552 56214 575%
Total it 378 8115 25534 = 415 M6 56214 5755 315701 66113

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting

The Group has four (2021: three) operating segments as
follows:

o Sales of sub-processing cigarette films: this segment
engages in trading of sub-processing cigarette films;

o Sales of semi-conductors: this segment engages in
trading of semi-conductors;

o Properties development and related services: this
segment engages in development and sales of
properties and providing property management
services; and

o Generation of photovoltaic power: this segment
engages in generating and sales of electricity.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business
units that offer different products and services. They are
managed separately because each business requires different
technology and marketing strategies.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, due to the
change of strategy of the Group, the segment related to
cloud-related business was no longer an operating segment
of the Group. The segment information for the year ended
31 December 2021 has been restated.

Segment profits or losses do not include unallocated head
office and corporate expenses, net realised and unrealised
loss on investment in equity securities. Segment assets do
not include equity securities and unallocated head office
and corporate assets. Segment liabilities do not include
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 8. WARSZH®ME (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) ZEPEmE (&)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) BEE BEEREE
Information about operating segment profit or loss, BH=E)HEE EERAEZ
assets and liabilities: BRI

Sales of sub-processing Properties development (Generation of
cigarette films Sales of semi-conductors  and related services photovoltaic power
HEMIZEEE HEYER NEERREERY
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 20
W0E W1E WNE 1% WNE 015 WnE 20015 015

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
T Thr T 7 Tn T Tén o T TAT
ted

Year ended 31 December ~ HZ12A318
58

Revenue fomexternal -~~~ RESNBEP
customers WA 3728 8,115 255344 - 45 46 56,214 57552 315701 66,113

Reportable segment gross AEERA%(E
(Ioss)/profit B)/EH (495) (262) 2,733 - i (13 36,180 36,718 38,540 36,443

Reportable segment (loss)/ e85 &5t &1
profit before tax (F8) /&7 (5046) (991 (803) - 6131  (15391) 28571 28498 28853 3,186

Interest income from bank ~ $R/TTERFIEMA
deposits 662 656 30 - 997 928 923 23 1,782 1,607

Interest expense MERX - - - - - - 862 907 862 907

Depreciation and ENEH
amortisation 1178 1,785 400 - 4 13 17,028 17,636 18,610 19,434

Other material non-cash ~~ EfEAIERS
items: BR:

Impairmentfireversalof ~ EZEUFER

impaiment) of tradeand  ExftEUGE

other receivables &/ (Eke) - - 768 - (3621 14468 80 143 @) 1461
As at 31 December #M2A31R

Reportable segment ~ ARELHEE
assets 99,537 103,466 62,933 - 2093 235919 404368 448576 787,931 787,961

Additions to non-current  EAERE
segment assets during ~ EEMKE

the year - 1,545 3 - - - 160 1,981 163 3,526
Reportable segment  WEEABERE
liabilities 22,330 23454 1,249 - 5,677 8313 20,051 21,849 49,307 53,616
JEREREEERAAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 8. WARSIHE(E)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) ZEPEmE (&)
(i) Reconciliations of segment profit or loss (i) DEEFHEEL R
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
THExT T
(Restated)
(ggE51)
Profit/(loss) =R (ER)
Reportable segment profit before tax A] FR R 5 #B A AT A 28,853 3,186
Unrealised loss on investment in equity RABHIGEN RS EE
securities = (1,442)
Unallocated head office and corporate RAOFRBIF A BT
expenses (16,764) (7,873)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before tax mEBANEF (&ER) 12,089 (6,129)
(iii) Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities (i) AHEEHESSHIR
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHT
(Restated)
€ i=x7l))
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments A[ERR D BB EEE 787,931 787,961
Unallocated head office and corporate ROMBHLFABEE
assets 40,321 93,882
Consolidated total assets e BERE 828,252 881,843
Liabilities aE
Total liabilities of reportable segments AR A FELTHE 49,307 53,616
Unallocated head office and corporate RoBLEIFI AT AR
liabilities 4,338 2,898
Consolidated total liabilities ire BEeE 53,645 56,514
(iv) Geographic information (iv) HEER
No geographic information is presented as the revenue, HARAREBERUA - HEEEED
contribution to operating results, assets and liabilities of R EERBRHURBEREZER
the Group are attributable to operating activities which FEARKME(HED(B2EE
are carried out or originated principally in the People’s B EITHR BRI -
Republic of China (the “PRC") including Hong Kong. REFREHR o

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(v) Revenue from major customers

Revenue from major customers who have individually

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

8. WARZH®E(HE)

(b) &P ()
(v) REZERFHRA
BRI 5 B B BRI 10% A _E )

contributed to 10% or more of the Group are disclosed FERFHIRARELT
as follows:
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHT
Segment of sales of semi-conductors HEFBEHE
Customer A =FEH 240,219 —
Segment of generation of photovoltaic HIREENE
power
Customer B XEZ 56,214 57,552

OTHER INCOME

9. HflrA

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$"000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Government grants (Note (i) BT 4 B (I 3EG)) 235 100
Amortisation of deferred government grants TR AE TS T 48 B 8 (PR RE32)

(Note 32) 273 282
Interest income on bank deposits RITE TS WA 1,979 1,665
Loan interest income BRI EMA 3,544 4,780
Rental income el 71 44
Sundry income IR 102 108

6,204 6,979
Note: Ft 3
(i) During the year, the Group recognised government grants of (i) RAFEAN - AEERREFBRFRTTHIER

HK$216,000 (2021: HK$NIl) in respect of COVID-19 related subsidies
relating to Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government. The Group has complied
all attached conditions before 31 December 2022. Government grants
of approximately HK$19,000 (2021: HK$100,000) mainly related to
the subsidy received from the PRC local government authority for the
achievements of the Group.

TR AR BT 818 BRYCOVID- 1948 R B
ERAT#80216,000% 7T (20214F « THIT) o A&
EEER2022512 A31 BRI A Fr A hnig
% o BFFHEBA%919,000/ 7T (20214 : 100,000
BT EEHEREAEB AP Hib 5 BT
HABUE 2 7B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

- HREMBEmERME
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12A318IEFE
10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 10. HftWEREEFR
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
Gain on deregjistration of a subsidiary i — B A R A - 1,953
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWZE « BFE REERR
equipment = 67
Write off of property, plant and equipment VI - BRE KRR E (37) (25)
Write back of trade payables B 5 FE 5 IE M E 490 =
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries i E T8 A Rl g8
(Note 36(a) and 36(b)) (Ffi5E36(a) 236(b)) (4,353) (1,809)
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains BE 5, (E518),/ W as 58 (1,371) 515
Unrealised loss on investment in equity securities  BEANZE 18 & H) AR B30 518 = (1,442)
Fair value gain on investment in wealth WEBMELH A EEBKE
management product 42 -
Others HAth = 1
(5,229) (740)
11. FINANCE COSTS 11. @EHRA

2022 2021
2022%F 20214

HK$"000 HK$°000
TR THET

Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 19) HEABENF SR (MEE19) 901 970
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12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Current tax — PRC enterprise income tax

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

12. FIBHixXH

BRAMBEHIEEARRIT

BPEARE IR — P B R AIS TR

2022 2021
20224

20214
HK$'000
FH&T

HK$"000
Tz

Provision for the year I E B 3,548 3,949
Underprovision in prior years RBEFERETR 274 111
3,822 4,060

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT") FR B - 3 A IR (E T ) - (5,454)
Deferred tax (Note 31) PEEFL A (I EE31) 963 2,169
4,785 775

0]

(i)

(iii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
these jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the
Group has no assessable profit derived in Hong Kong during
the year (2021: Nil).

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth
National People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax
Law of the PRC (“New Tax Law") which became effective on
1 January 2008 and the PRC's statutory Corporate Income
Tax rate is 25%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations applicable to advanced
technology enterprises established in the PRC, Jiangsu
Sheen Colour Science Technology Co., Ltd. is subject to PRC
corporate income tax at a preferential tax rate of 15% (2021:
15%) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

0)

(ii)

(iif)

RIEBEFASES MR R RS RAM
MO NEEEANZS RIAERGNE
AIFTSAL

WEREBMNEBRIELER  BRAEE
AEEREBL EERTEHN (20214

z).

12007438168 * F+HEEZBEARKE

SERARERERBB(REARLM
BZEMEBEIFBE]) - KR20084F
TATBES - FBUEECEMSHES
25% °

R E A RAE R BIA S M s B fiT e 2 /9
ERER L& SBER AR ARER
HE202F 12 A31B L FEREEH X
15% (20214F : 15% ) MR B3 FT1S
B

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(continued)

Entities engaged in qualified power generating projects, are
eligible for a corporate income tax exemption for the first year
to the third year, and a 50% reduction for the fourth year to
the sixth year starting from the year in which the entities first
generate operating income (the “3+3 tax holiday”). Xuzhou
Sheentai New Energy Power Generation Co., Ltd. (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group) was entitled to the
3+3 tax holiday.

Entities engaged in software related business are eligible for
a corporate income tax exemption for the first year to second
year, and a 50% reduction for the third year to the fifth year
starting from the year in which the entities first generate
operating income (the “2+3 tax holiday”). Xuyi Guangcai
Information Technology Co., Ltd. (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group) was entitled to 2+3 tax holiday.

According to the New Tax Law and its implementation rules,
dividends receivable by non-PRC-resident corporate investors
from PRC-resident enterprises are subject to withholding
tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties or arrangements,
for profits earned since 1 January 2008. Under the tax
arrangement between the Mainland of China and Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and the relevant regulations,
a qualified Hong Kong tax resident which is the “beneficial
owner” and holds a 25% equity interest or more of a PRC
enterprise is entitled to a reduced withholding tax rate of 5%.
The withholding tax rate applicable to the Group is 5%.

According to the New Tax Law and its implementation rules,
where the research and development expenses incurred by
an enterprise in its research and development activities do not
form intangible assets and are included in the current period’s
profit or loss, 50% of such research and development
expenses shall be deducted from the taxable income amount
of the year; where intangible assets are formed, pretax
amortisation shall be made based on 150% of the costs of
the intangible assets.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022

12. FREHH (&)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(%)

HEAERERELRENCENBER
REEREWANFERERFTE—EE=F
EEERESLEMER  YNFNES
NEE AR 50 % MR TS ([3+3%
BREEH]) - RIMNEFFEEREEFRLD
A(AEENFEZE2EMNBAR)ZH3+3
MBERRH -

HERFREEENCETEEERES
LEWANFERTF—EFE_FEEE
BESCEMEMEAG  WHRE=2FH
FEARBE50% M EMEH ([ 24355
B c FREMEEREERAR
(REBMEEZEWBAR)ZH2+3/
TEE B o

RBFBOEREBIAR - BRIE20085F 1
A1 B BRE i M E RIS RO R L PR
B BRFREERMFREEEWHE
BEREENEEZ10% MR -
REHE A EETERSFITRRZHH
ML RBER - FRTEEEDN
[ERERAILFFH25%0 A ERER
BERBEVBERY ZETRANGE
5% ° EANARNEBHFEIIHEF5%

REFPEREBBAR - BEFRARE
RBTEREENTEER - KUKEN
BEFAZSHERN  ERRTEEHN
BREVERE  HRAFEBERELEN
50% * WEAFEEEAB TS RPN
REREER - RIBETEEKADN
150% FEFE BT HESH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12. FREBIZH (&)
The reconciliation between income tax expense and product of FfSFi 2 BB A 1], (B8 ) R LA B A B X
profit/(loss) before tax multiplied by the applicable tax rates is as AR ¢
follows:

2022 2021
20225 20214

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Profit/(loss) before tax FAnEF,(EiE) 12,089 (6,129)

Notional tax on profit/(loss) before tax, calculated 1% FRFEARRE B35 1L R IES HY i A X

at the rates applicable in the jurisdictions K EBAER, (BR)NER

concerned | 4,398 (383)
Tax effect of the preferential tax rates EBEMENTIELE (2,167) (2,202)
Additional deductible allowance for research and R HIFR 2 F & H

development expenses (586) (151)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR AT IR R 2 2,587 7,217
PRC dividend withholding tax P Bl AR B TE R 995 947
Tax effect of non-taxable income IR A R T U E (780) (70)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERNTIEEBRNTIELE 932 2,595
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not A SRR RN IBEBRNTIE

previously recognised 7 (698) (346)
Underprovision in prior years RNBEFERETR 274 111
LAT IR (ER = (5,454)
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary differences REERE b ZEERMTLIAR 2 (170) (1,489)
Income tax expense Frisfisz i 4,785 775
The weighted average applicable tax rate is 36.4% (2021: 6.2%). T EAB R 536.4%(20214F : 6.2%) ©
The increase is caused by the effect of change in the profitability at ZERTTHERAAEEES A ZEERNMEB A
the Group's subsidiaries in respective jurisdictions. AIABFE N HIRE BRI ER -

JERZEREBERAR 161
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

13. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 13. FERERN(EHEB)

The Group’s profit/(loss) for the year is stated after charging/ BB (GEA) THIEIERE - AEBEF R

(crediting) the following:

A/ (BT

2022
20224

HK$°000
TR

2021
20214F
HK$'000
T

B EERE(GTABERAE)

Amortisation of intangible assets (included in

cost of sales) 73 211
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  #1% « [RE R&EITE 17,685 18,391
Depreciation on right-of-use assets EREEETE 1,595 1,698
Auditor’s remuneration ZERRT B < 950 930
Cost of inventories sold BEFEKA 254,766 6,143
Expenses relating to short-term lease B HHEBBENER 1,372 2,632

(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for inventories 17 & (¥ #E ), BitE (Gt AT &7
(included in cost of inventories sold) BAAR) (22) 387
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for trade and 2 5 & U 3R I8 Ko H A e U 5k 3B (B4 48

other receivables, net BE) BEFE (2,773) 14,611
Research and development expenditure ez 2,418 4,328
Write off of property, plant and equipment YIZ - BRE R E 37 25
Staff costs BT 12,093 14,377

Cost of sales includes the following which are included in the
respective amounts disclosed separately above:

HEKABRATERARDHALXEGRE

MR EERA)

2022 2021

20225 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Amortisation of intangible assets B EEE - 119
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  #1% « = K& ETE 16,840 17,685
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEENE 697 722
Expenses relating to short-term lease B HHEBEENEA 148 284
Staff costs BIRKA 1,203 1,057
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

14. EERABAX

2022 2021
20224 20214

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - e KERM 10,926 13,177
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRIRENETEIREH R 1,167 1,200
12,093 14,377

(a) Pensions - defined contribution plans

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
plans which are available for eligible employees in the PRC
and Hong Kong.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022,
the Group had no forfeited contributions under the PRC
Retirement Scheme and MPF Scheme which may be used
by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.
There were also no forfeited contributions available as at 31
December 2021 and 2022 under the PRC Retirement Scheme
and MPF Scheme which may be used by the Group to reduce
the contribution payable in future years.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included 2 directors (2021: 3 directors, including Mr. Zeng
Xiangyang who resigned as a director on 21 October 2021),
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
Note 15(a). The emoluments of the five highest individuals
are set out below:

(a) BIKE - EFELEE

AEBATEIEENAEREE AT
ARG BIHER -

REZE2021F &2022F 12 A31H IEF
B - AEERFPERRG B MBS TS
S AR AT ] 4502 U R AT AN &R [ AR RO
WA HEFOKF o 720214 % 20224128
318 - RAPBRRETEI REE R EIN
AL MR R AT AR S B AR
RIREEEF B FE R o

(b) AfIEEMEAL

AEEAFE RN RS A LRIEAL
(20214 : 3 )EH(BFENR2021F108
QHBAZEEHNEMEEE) HBEE
REFE15@FF D ITARE - HEil€
AT ZB&EHNIT

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - 82e RERL 3,235 3,497
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRI AIET2IH R 84 52
3,319 3,549
JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 128318 LFE
14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 14. EEBFFAX(E)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (continued) (b) EuEEMEAL(E)
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B eEIA T2 EEEA ¢

Number of individuals

AB
2022 2021
20224 20214
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 21,000,000 7T 4 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,0013% 7T % 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
5 5

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15. EERARER
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EESME
The remuneration of every director is set out below: EREEMEEIIOT ¢

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person'’s services as
a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
BEBALERES(FRARDARHMEARHAIH
EXfiRER#HE

Employer’'s
contribution to
Discretionary  a retirement

Salaries bonus benefit scheme
EER
RFEH
ik e miEfAa TR CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T TET
Executive directors HITES
Guo Yumin BER - 300 300 15 615
Xia Yu EE - 300 300 15 615
Independent non-executive BIEHTES
directors
Fan Qing bl 120 - - - 120
Dai Tin Yau PN 120 - - - 120
Chan Yin Lam BER 120 - - - 120
Total for 2022 2022545 360 600 600 30 1,590
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

mEMBHERME 00

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

15. EERMNRER(E)

(a) ES=M= (&)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person'’s services as a

director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

AERALEREZ(THRATA BARRAME)N

e
HK$'000
TAL

EERRET Lk
Employer's
contribution to
Discretionary a retirement
Salaries bonus  benefit scheme

BIGER
e BfETEAL st EIR AR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TEL THET TEL

Executive directors YTES

Guo Yumin BIR = 300 300 15 615
Xia Yu BE - 300 300 15 615
Zeng Xiangyang (Note) re 5 (Fif ) - 640 100 15 755
Independent non-executive BUEHTES

directors

Fan Qing bl 120 - - - 120
Dai Tin Yau HAh 120 - - - 120
Chan Yin Lam BER 120 = = = 120
Total for 2021 2021555 360 1,240 700 45 2,345

Note: Resigned on 21 October 2021.

MI5E : 7202110821 BEHE ©

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

- BEMBEBRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors of the Company received any
termination benefits during the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil).

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
did not pay considerations to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2021: Nil).

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
bodies corporate controlled by and entities
connected with such directors

The information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
entered into by the Company or subsidiary undertaking of
the Company in favour of directors is as follows:

15. EERMNRER(E)

Outstanding

amount
at the

Total beginning
Name of director amount  of the year

Bzt

£4)

B3R ARESE

HK$'000
TR

As at 31 December 2022 20229124318

HK$'000
TR

(b)

(9]

(d)

EEERERN
HZE2022F12A31BILFE - KXARE
ER IR R (20214 « £E) -

RRERHESBREMQAE=FERH
BB

HZE2022F12A31 B IEFE - AAFY
ERREEERBRTANE= A ZHRE
(20214 : 48#) o

BRNES BARESZHN
TEREAGHEENERRE S
ANER EERRHEMRXZH
as
BRAARRARAAMBARNESE AR
B ATIET S E R « EER R R HH
AR :

Maximum
Outstanding  outstanding
amount ENT) Amount Provision
at the end during duebut  for doubtful
of the year the year notpaid  debts made

X L)) Lk

AEEER  AREEE ERXALE RERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAL TAL TEL TAL

Mr. Guo Yumin PEREAE 238 07 238 vy = =
As at 31 December 2021 R2021F12R318
Mr. Guo Yumin PEREE 47 18 47 vy = =
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15.

16.

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2021: Nil).

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2022 of HK1.0 cent per share has
been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (2021: loss) per
share is based on the profit (2021: loss) for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$7,313,000 (2021:
HK$6,794,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of approximately 2,434,136,000 (2021: 2,434,136,000).

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The computation of diluted loss per share did not assume the
exercise of the Company'’s outstanding share options as the exercise
price of those share options were higher than the average market
price for shares for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
Diluted earnings (2021: loss) per share was the same as the basic
earnings (2021: loss) per share for the year ended 31 December
2022.

15.

16.

17.

mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

EEEMNRER ()

() EERXRG  RHEREHNZEK
R

BARA MR ERKI 3B EE I - RF
Rk F AR BRI ST E T AR
AR MARRIESR R EREA TEEK
FEEEEAER I EARS « THRE
#9(20214F : &) -

9=

REZE2022%F 12 A31HILFE - AR AW E K
NAZ B (20214 : £#) o

REHRREK - EFCEHAMNEE20229F12A
31 B F RN REBE F .08l - AR
BRNEERRBEAS LHER - TAEE -

ZREF,(FHE)
BREALZF(BER)

EREARREERF (2021F : ) HERAK
NEER ABIEFRET (20214F : FEB) 4
7,313,000/8 70 (20214 : 6,794,000/8 70 ) &I
AR HNE T 980 4)2,434,136,000/% (20214 :
2,434,136,0000%) 5T 5 o

SREERR(EHR)

HRARRIRTEBERENTEESIRNEE
20224F ] 20214F12 B 31 B IEFE R H F
TE  MEeREEEBRZTETERSZER
ARREFETTIE - B E20224F12 31 B ILEE -
EREERT(2021F : EiB) BEBRERAF
(20214F : E518) 4R -

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

18. W% BMERRE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

168

Solar (0]i(
power Plantand  equipment Motor Construction
plants  Buildings  machinery  and others vehicles Yacht  in progress Total
Kiaae BARER
BEY BRY  BERKE At RE BE  ERIE Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TR B TAL TAL TAL TE#R
Cost A
At 1 January 2021 #202151R18 348,650 21,49% 43711 4112 4241 35,798 290 458,298
Additions %E 370 158 288 118 1,054 - - 1,988
Disposals ik - - (2,951) - - - - (2,951)
Write off ik = = - (507) - - - (507)
Transfer from constructionin -~~~ BHERTHE

progress = 293 = = = - 293) -
Exchange differences EHER 9,542 586 1,060 59 9 - 3 11,349
At 31 December 2021 and R021F12A318 K

1 January 2022 2020F1A18 358,562 22,533 42,108 3,782 539% 35798 - 468,177
Additions BE - - - 163 - - - 163
Write off ik = (37 = (7) = = = (44)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR = = (23,669) (556) - - - (24,225)
Exchange differences EFER (28,228) (1,746) (1,998) (143) (324) - - (32,439)
At 31 December 2022 R2022512A318 330,334 20,750 16,441 3239 5,070 35798 - 411,632
Accumulated depreciation and  ZEHTERHE

impairment
At 1 January 2021 R021E1 18 (71,920) (3,705) (43,202) (4,106) (3,454) (35,666) - (162,053)
Charge for the year AERE (16,784) (935) (291) (52) (287) 42) = (18391)
Disposals e - = 2,951 = = = = 2,951
Write off i = - - 48 - - - 482
Exchange differences EHES (2,246) (107) (1,09) (64) (64) - - (3,577)
At 31 December 2021 and R021512A318 %

1 January 2022 2022%1818 (90,950) (4,747) (41,638) (3,740) (3,805) (35,708) = (180,588)
Charge for the year RENE (16,207) (930) (46) (65) (3%) (41 - (17,685)
Write off ik - - - 7 - - - 7
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - = 23,627 528 = = - 24,155
Exchange differences ERER 7,665 376 1,946 157 212 - - 10,356
At 31 December 2022 120224128318 (99,492) (5,301) (16,111) (3,113 (3,989) (35,749) - (163,755)
Carrying amount RAE
At 31 December 2022 120224124318 230,842 15,449 330 126 1,081 49 = 247877
At 31 December 2021 #2021%12A318 267,612 17,786 470 4 1,589 0 - 287,589
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19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

19. EAEEE

Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HETH HEYHE A%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
T TR THET

At 1 January 2021 R2021%1A1H 24,349 897 25,246
Additions 1 E 1,590 - 1,590
Depreciation e (1,017) (681) (1,698)
Exchange differences PEH =58 676 = 676
At 31 December 2021 2021912 AH31H 25,598 216 25,814
Additions 180 = - 1,187 1,187

Depreciation e (983) (612) (1,595)
Exchange differences E H Z=RE (1,985) = (1,985)
At 31 December 2022 72022512 A831H 22,630 791 23,421

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$14,247,000 (2021:
HK$15,247,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
HK$12,921,000 (2021: HK$14,116,000) as at 31 December 2022.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.

R2022%F 12 A31 8 - BHER 414,247,000
76 (20214 : 15,247,000 0 ) W EBE R
12,921,00075 78 (20214F : 14,116,000 7)) &9
HEEREEE -BKEBAAMFEHREEET
R ERIN - HE BB THEIME MR o

Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities (included in
finance costs)

Expenses relating to short-term lease (included in

cost of goods sold and administrative expenses)

ERREENTEER

HEERENN SR (B ARE

FXAR)

HEHHERBENERGIAEY

HEKARITRFX)

2022 2021
20225 20214
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
1,595 1,698
901 970
1,372 2,632

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in Note 36(c).

BER R BROFIFHNIRE36()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZE2022F12A318LEFE

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 19. ERABEEGR)
For both years, the Group leases various lands and offices for its MEHRE  AEBHESBEI M RHAEIE
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed terms of 1768 - MEAKNMETEMEA2E504F (2021
2 years to 50 years (2021: 2 years to 50 years). Lease terms are F : 25509 ) - HERRERBERIBERHE
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of HE - PP ESETR AR RGN - A"&E
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and (%] 75 1 72 AR AR A0 ATl 1S A i EE /9 BARR B - R AR
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group BHMERWIETE S LA RSB TREAR -

applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

20. GOODWILL 20. BE
2022 2021
2022F 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAxT
Cost A
At 1 January RK1A1R 49,645 52,475
Deregistration of a subsidiary T — KB A A - (2,830)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR (49,645) =
At 31 December W12A31H - 49,645
Accumulated impairment losses RZEPREEE
At 1 January ®W1A1R (49,645) (52,475)
Deregistration of a subsidiary i —HEREAR - 2,830
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR 49,645 -
At 31 December M12A318 - (49,645)
Carrying amount BRMEE
At 31 December W12A31H - -

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that
business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been
allocated as follows:

Cloud-related business: T
Treasure Cloud Group (Note (a))
Yancheng Renhe Network Sci. & Tech. Limited
("YCRH") (Note (b))

20.

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

B (|

REBAFRFKBZHEIRKEBR D EERE
AR EREREHcREELEM - HEZ
FREEDERCT

2022
2022

2021
20214
HK$'000
FAET

HK$°000
TR

Treasure Cloud Group(K{3E(a)) = =
BB A MABAR BRI AR A R
(TE&H A A ) (BtEE(D)) - -

Notes:

(a) Treasure Cloud Group
Goodwill allocated to Treasure Cloud Group of approximately
HK$49,645,000 was derecognised upon disposal of Treasure Cloud
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022.

(b) YCRH
Goodwill allocated to YCRH of approximately HK$2,830,000 was

derecognised upon deregistration of YCRH during the year ended 31
December 2021.

i
=
i

(a) Treasure Cloud Group

REE2022F12A831ALLFEE - 2R T
Treasure Cloud Group,Z P 4949,645,0007% 7T
27 i ETreasure Cloud GroupB#& |FFERR

(b) EEHAM
REZE2021F12A31BLEEE » D TEH

A2 P %92,830,0007 7T B 75T 85 B A
FNBF AR I REGR

JERZEREBERAR
2022F G 3R
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B BHREE

I i

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

21.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

21. BREEE

Software

LGS

HK$'000
THAT

Cost &S

At 1 January 2021 R202151H1H 12,483
Exchange differences MR ER 340
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 720214128318 %2022F1 818 12,823
Disposal of subsidiaries ST A R (10,757)
Exchange differences PE =58 (564)
At 31 December 2022 2022412 A31H 1,502
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses ZR5H# 85 R REEE

At 1 January 2021 7202191 A1H (11,703)
Amortisation for the year RESEETS (211)
Exchange differences PE V=58 (301)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 72021F12A31H K2022F181H (12,215)
Amortisation for the year REFEE (73)
Disposal of subsidiaries TS A A 10,256
Exchange differences R 543
At 31 December 2022 72022412 H31H (1,489)
Carrying amount ARMEIE

At 31 December 2022 R2022912A31H 13
At 31 December 2021 R2021412A31H 608

The average remaining amortisation period of the software is 0.8

years (2021: 1 year).

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R M BHRME
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE
22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. RMBARNKRE
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 and 2022 are 20214 K% 2022412 A31 B &K B A R EF15 40
as follows: T ¢
Principal country of operation/
Country of incorporation/ Particular of issued
Name of company Kind of legal entity share capital Group's effective interest Principal activities
ARER TERRER BETRARE ARENERNE  IEER
2022 2021
wE ME
Directly held EiBE
Sheen Tai Energy Investment Lid. ~ JBZREERZEBRAE  Hong Kong/BVilimited liabilty 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding
(“STEL") (TSTELLJ) company US$1 each Rank
B/ ABERRES/BRAR  0REREE ETNERR
Sheen Tai International Investment  JEREIRREARAT  Hong Kong/BVilimited liabiity 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding
Lid. ("STIL") ([smiLJ) company US$1 each and 1 ordinary RARR
B5/RBERRES/BRDA  shareof US$20,000000
each
100RERERFTHERR
R1B&REE20,000,000
FTNERR
Sheen China Group Holdings Inc. ~ JEZERERERRE  Hong Kong/BVilLimited liabiity 10 ordinary shares of USS 1 100% 100%  Investment holding
("SCGHI") (TSCGHI) company each Rank
B/ ARBERRES/BROR  OREREEIZTHLER
Treasure Cloud Limited ("TC") Treasure Cloud Limited Hong Kong/BVILimited fiability 1 ordinary share of US$1 each = 100%  Investment holding
(Note2) (e )(Mzx2) company 1RERAEIETHEER RERR
Bh/ARERRER/ERAR
Sheen Tai Cloud Network Limited ~ [RZZ&E AR A Hong Kong/BViLimited liability 100 ordinary shares of US§ 1 60% 100%  Investment holding
(“STCNL") (TSTCNL]) company each RERR
B5/RBRATRS/ERDA  100RBRERIZTMEER
City Cloud Network (China) Sci. &~ ST E£EA () Hong Kong/BViLimited liabilty 46 ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100%  Inactive
Tech. Limited ("CCNC") BEARATICNC])  company L6REREEEH L AR B
A/ ABERREES/BRAA
JERZREBERDE
ae 173
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R M BHRRMHE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE
22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 22. RHMIRARKIRE ()
Principal country of operation/
Country of incorporation/ Particular of issued
Name of company Kind of legal entity share capital Group's effective interest Principal activities
ARER EEERER BRTRARE ARENERNE  IEER
2022 2021
wWE E
Indirectly held BENE
Century Leader Science and FARFHURRINER  The PRC/The PRCMholly foreign-  Registered capital of 100% 100%  Investment holding and tracing
Technology (Shenzhen) Co,, ltd. ~ BEFEAREIERERT  owned entity HK$23,180,000 of semi-conductors
("CLST") (Formerly known as Ling ~ EHD(FIERAR)  HE/RE/NEEELE & 723,180,007 RERRRYEEES

Xian Fei Yu Import and Export (Teust)(Fz)
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.) (Note 1)

Jiangsu Sheen Colour Science TESRERRARAT  The PRC/The PRC/Sino-foreign joint  Registered capital of 100% 100% Printing of cigarette films
Technology Co, Ltd. (*15SC") (115 1) (Bizkr) venture limited iabilty company ~ RMB60,389,000 BIEEEE
(Note 1) hE/ M/ PHSERRERAR HTAAARMG0,389,0007
Xuzhou New Advantage Real Fstate  SMFTEAFEHERE  The PRC/The PRCMholly foreign- Registered capital of 100% 100%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. (‘NARED”)  A[R/A]([NARED)) owned entity U5$30,000,000 NEEE
(Note 1) (Kit1) hE/PE /S ERELE FHREA30,000,000%7
Hong Kong Sheen Tai Investment ~ F#IEREEARAR  Hong KongHong KonglLimited 25,000,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited (“HKSTIL") (THKSTIL)) liability company 25,000,008 2 A% RABR
B/ B8/ BRAR
Sheen Tai (HK) New Energy JBR(Z7%)3eERE  HongKongHong KonglLimited 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investment Limited BRAF(STNEIL(HK))  liability company 100 ERR RanR
(*STNELL (HK)") b/ &k BRAR
Century Leader Asia Limited FATNERAT Hong Kong/Hong KonglLimited 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding and trading
("CLAL") (Tctad)) liability company 10,000 % of semi-conductors
Bh/ER/BRAT REFRREEES
Sheen China Group Holdings JBEEEZRAERAE  HongKongHong KonglLimited 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Inactive
Limited (*SCGHL") ([SCGHLI) liablity company 1Rk EEH
B/ R/ BRAR
Shenzhen Shuntai New Fnergy ~ RHIIERHACRRHE The PRC/The PRCAWholly foreign-  Registered capital of 100% 100%  Investment holding and trading
Science Technology Co, Ltd. BRAR(SINE]) owned entity 549,000,000 RERRANES
(*SINE") (Note 1) (i3] wE/HE/NEEALE 49,000 00050

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 22. RAMTBARMKRE(E)

Name of company

L

Principal country of operation/
Country of incorporation/
Kind of legal entity

EERBER

Particular of issued
share capital

BRAIRARE

2022

00E

ARBNERAE

201

2015

Group's effective interest Principal activities

Xuzhou Shuntai New Energy Power  (RMIBZRTsEREEER  The PRC/The PRC/Limited liabilty  Registered capital of 100% 100%  Generation of photovoltaic
Generation Co,, Ltd. ("XZNE") — ARI(XZNEL)(HiE1) company RMB39,000,000 power
(Note 1) B/ HE/BRAR SEREAARH39,000,0007 1HEE
Hong Kong Taiwo Holding Limited ~ ZAZMZRERRE  Hong Kong/Hong KongLimited 100 ordinary shares 100% 100% Inactive
("HKTHL") (THKTHL)) liablty company 100RZEk R
B/ B/ BRAR
Falcon Wisdom Limited ("PW") — BEEARAF (W] Hong Kong'Hong Kong/Limited 1 ordinary share - 100%  Investment holding
liabilty company REBR RERR
Bk /% /BRAR
China City Cloud Network Sci. &~ REPAMEREREAER  Hong Kong/Hong KonglLimited 100 ordinary shares 60% 100%  Investment holding
Tech. Limited ("CCCN") Ag(ccen)) liablity company 100RERR RERK
Bk /B8 /AR
Sheyang Tengyun Information STBEEESREAR  The PRC/The PRCMholy foreign-  Registered capital of - 100%  Cloucrelated business
Technology Co,, Ltd. (*SYTY") - RRISYIY))(HiEE1k2)  owned entity HK$25,000,000 25K
(Notes 1 and 2) GEVAEVR T S FERER5,000 00057
Xuyi Guangcai Information FEREEHEBRIAARAE  The PRC/The PRCWholly foreign-  Registered capital of - 100%  Cloud-related business
Technology Co, Ltd. ("XYGC") — ([XYGC))(Hz1R2) owned entity HK$115,000,000 3
(Notes 1 and 2 GEVAEVLT S FHRE115,000,000%7
Xuzhou Shuntai Agricultura MERZEREARAR  The PRUThe PRC/Limited liabilty  Registered capital of 100% 100%  Agriculture technology
Technology Co,, Ltd. ("XNY") — (TXNY])(MizE1) company RMB10,000,000 RER
(Note 1) E/HE/BRAT FHRERARI10,000,0007C
Shenzhen Qianhai Tengzhiyun IR ZEERE  The PRUThe PROWholy foreign- Registered capital of - 100%  Inactive
Network Sci. & Tech. Limited ERAA(SZQH)) owned entity US$1,000,000 BER
(*SZQH) (Notes 1 and 2) (K1 R2) hE/PE /S ERELE HRAR1,000000% 7T
Shenzhen Qianhai Taizhiyun FFERZEBERR  The PRC/The PRCWholly foreign-  Registered capital of 60% 100%  Investment holding
Network Sci. & Tech. Limited BRAESZQH])(B3E1)  owned entity 598,000,000 RARR
(*STQH") (Note 1) hE/ 8/ EEELE sEME8,000000% T
JEREREEERAAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Principal country of operation/

22. RKBARINKRE(E)

Country of incorporation/ Particular of issued
Name of company Kind of legal entity share capital Group's effective interest Principal activities
ARER EERRER BRTRARE ARENERAE  IEEE
2022 A
wWE NNE
Xuzhou New Advantage New BAFESTEERR  ThePRC/The PRCLimited liabilty  Registered capital of 100% 100% Investment holding
Energy Science Technology Co, ~ BRAI(Ff3E1) company RMB12,800,000 RERR
Ltd. (Note 1) E/HE/ARAR FHRERAR12,800,0007
Notes: =T -
1. The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official il RXARREEEEEHSE - ZEEBNE S

names of these entities are in Chinese.

2. These subsidiaries were disposed on 10 June 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the bank and cash balances of the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in Renminbi (“RMB")
amounted to HK$286,885,000 (2021: HK$265,319,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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2. ZEWEBARIER2022F6 108 HE »

R2022612 A318 » NEBE A BRKE QA
ARB(TARBDFEZRITRRESESRB
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23.

24,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

INVENTORIES 23. F&
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
Packaging materials manufacturing and trading ~ E$5 82k}
Raw materials R 335 767
Work-in-process fE2m 278 101
Finished goods SURY SR 102 84
715 952
Property development MR
Completed properties held for sale FHEEE R E AR TE 4,392 5,038
5,107 5,990

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

24. B 5 RWIAREEYRE

2022 2021
20224F 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET T
Trade receivables (Note (a)) Z 5 EWGRIE (MEE ) 116,332 106,927
Allowance for doubtful debts REREAE (1,233) (420)
115,099 106,507
Deposits and other receivables (Note (b)) &2 I H b FE YR IE (B EE(b))
— third parties - =) 14,348 15,126
Prepayments SEENES
— third parties —F£=5 14,330 893
Due from a director and the ultimate controlling  FEYEE I K & 442 HI75 Z08
party (Note (c)) (PR 3E(0))
— Mr. Guo Yumin —PEREAE 238 427
Loan receivable (Notes (b) & (d)) FEUCE SR (M 5 (b) R (d)) 39,467 57,369
183,482 180,322
JEREREEERAAE

2022F G 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(@  The Group's trading terms with customers are mainly on
credit. The credit terms generally range from 30 to 180
days from the invoice date. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by the directors.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

24, ESEWFIER HMAMEWRFIE(E)

(a

AEBEREFNESERUAEERR A
F o EAHR N REZ A B30
HZE180H M - 8FFPHERAEER
BE o AN N RARFFEIR B EUER A
BRG] o EEY B R EET IR
Fﬁ °

REBERAH  AEEESEKHAM
HRREE) 2 RTINS

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Unbilled (Note) AR () 87,293 102,048
Less than 30 days LrA30H 7,440 3,260
31-90 days 31£90H 19,731 416
91-180 days 91£180H 11 97
Over 365 days 365H A E 624 686
115,099 106,507

Note: As at 31 December 2021 and 2022, the amount represents

unbilled tariff adjustment receivables of solar power plants

registered in the Renewable Energy Tariff Subsidy List.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

i
=
&

t : 20214 K 202212 A318 -

Z e BRI A

A BARREEMBIRBBENKGREE

REEE HRWFIRZ REEAATERE

e -

2022 2021
20225 20214

HK$000 HK$'000

FHBT FH&T

United States Dollars (“US$") EdE VD) 24,719 =
RMB AR # 90,380 106,507
115,099 106,507

(b) At 31 December 2022, an allowance of approximately
HK$11,363,000 (2021: HK$16,142,000) was made for loan

and other receivables.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(©

(d)

Details of amount due from a director and the ultimate
controlling party are as follows:

BERKE

Mr. Guo Yumin

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

24, ESEWFIER HMAMEWRFIE(E)

(@

31 December

12A318H

e E = R R AR HITT O RIRRIEANT ¢

Maximum
amount
outstanding
during

the year

Balance at

31 December
2021
20214
1283186
iR
HK$'000
TAET

Balance at

2022
20225
FREE
KEBEHE
HK$'000
FAET

523
HK$'000
TET

238 427 427

The amount due is unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

As at 31 December 2022, no allowance is made for estimated
irrecoverable amount due from a director and the ultimate
controlling party.

Loan receivable of HK$39,467,000 (net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$11,297,000) (2021: HK$57,369,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$16,101,000))
related to a loan agreement entered into by an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company on 15 November
2022 with Suining Chuyue Zhiye Company Limited (fff &
E AR AF]) (“Suining Chuyue”), a company established in
the PRC with limited liability, and Mr. Sun Yong, 99% equity
interest owner of Suining Chuyue (2021: Mr. Sun Chuyue,
70% equity interest owner of Suining Chuyue, and Mr. Sun
Yong, the father of Mr. Sun Chuyue). Pursuant to the loan
agreement, the Group agreed to provide to Suining Chuyue a
loan amount of RMB45,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$50,764,000) (2021: RMB60,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$73,470,000)) for a term of approximately
seven months (2021: six months), which carries interest at
0.58% (2021: 0.39%) per month and is secured by (1) 60%
equity interest in Suining Chuyue which is held by Mr. Sun
Yong (2021: Mr. Sun Chuyue) as the share charge in favour
of the subsidiary and (2) personal guarantee given by Mr. Sun
Yong in favour of the subsidiary.

(d)

2ERAREER B RBRERE

= ©

=113

MR2022F 128318 HEREKRESR
B ARYE | J5 By (i 517N AT Uk (B £ 58 1 o
& o

JE YR B 739,467,000 7T (F0BR RER B4
11,297,0007% 7T ) (20214 : 57,369,000
77T (IR RER B 516,101,000/ 7T ) ) €2
AR alr—EEEE2ERB A F1K 2022
FMNAISHEEEREFEXZAR AT
(THERE] —REFREKZIHBER
EARR) REBEAEEERE EMNI9%
fRiEMAEE)ILMER A (2021
F:RRBRELRE HEREMNT0%ARE
FMEE MEBRERBERELEEZR
) BEERHZ  AKERERME
B E IR A R 45,000,000 7T (0
M #950,764,000% 7T ) (20214 : AR
60,000,000 7T ( 48 5 7 %) 73,470,000 &
TL)RER - BEAEMEA (20214 : <
@A) %&H0.58% (20214 : 0.39%)
B WAMNEBRERENESEER
60% [ H#E (20214 : BRERE)  1EA
LAt B A B AZwm ARRMER - &Q)
FRBEEEMB AR AZ = AMEAER
YERIRIR -

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

25. CONTRACT ASSETS

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group'’s right to tariff
adjustments for the electricity sold to the local state grid companies
in the PRC. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables
when the Group’s respective operating power plants are registered
in the List pursuant to prevailing national government policies on
renewable energy for solar power plants.

As one of the operating power plants of the Group has been
registered in the List during the year, the respective amount of the
contract assets is reclassified to trade receivables at the point at
which it is registered in the List accordingly.

The Directors considered that the ECL for contract assets is
insignificant as at 31 December 2021 and 2022, as the collection is
well supported by the government policies.

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

25.

26.

BREE

D“’Jéﬁixﬁﬁ&ﬁilﬁqﬂlﬂﬁﬁlﬁﬁ
REHEE N MEENEEFHBHERN - EARE
EEMEERTUHRBBUNTRIT2EMEASE
BRI BARRERINBER - AREE
EEANE 5 EMFOR -

AEFBEP-MEEXBUENFATIA
AR ’Jé‘/‘*ﬁ’]*ﬁﬂgﬁéﬁﬁ’\ﬁﬁf\ﬁ%@/ﬁ
R EH N ARE HRIEGIA

fog +HHE 514

BHR
J=E=
/B
B

EERA R2021F K%2022F 128318 * 64
BENBHEEBBRITTEX @ BAIG M%EAZ
RERR D T4 -

URREEFEEESEHTA

EMR

2022 2021

20225 202148

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET T

Unlisted equity securities IE ETARRARE = =
Wealth management products, at fair value B EmR  BAREE 5,681 =
5,681 -

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the equity securities
were delisted from stock exchange. The impairment loss of
approximately HK$1,442,000 was included in “other gains and
losses, net”.

The investment in wealth management product was issued by
a major bank in Mainland China, with no fixed maturity date.
It was classified as FVTPL as its contractual cash flows are not
solely payment of principal and interests. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the investment income of approximately
HK$42,000 was included in “other gains and losses, net"”.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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27.

28.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BANK AND CASH BALANCES

As at 31 December 2022, the bank and cash balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$286,931,000 (2021:
HK$265,371,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies
is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

SHARE CAPITAL

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

27. RITRBESER

MR2022F12 A318 « NEE ZRITRB SR
AARKHE © £%8/4286,931,0007 7T (2021
F 1 265,371,000 7T) ° #§ AR 5 BINE
AT B SNE B IR 0] R AERE - & & RAJEE
BT ©

28. KA

2022 AOYA
20225 20214
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
ROEE 28 RHOHE G
‘000 HK$°000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR THET TR FHBT
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each &A% E{E0.0025/% 7TH)
T 8,000,000 20,000 8,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each & A& E{E0.0025/& TTHY
AR
At 1 January and 31 December M1A1EKR12A318 2,434,136 6,085 2,434,136 6,085

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

AEEERERT BN ERBARELSE
G RERELARRRSN FERALRE
14, -

JERZEREBERAR
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PA RS SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

28.

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Total debt
comprises borrowings. Adjusted capital comprises all components
of equity (i.e. share capital, retained profits and other reserves).

The Group was in a net cash position as of 31 December 2021 and
2022 and hence no gearing ratio was presented.

The Group regards total equity other than non-controlling interests
as capital, for management purpose. The amount of capital as at
31 December 2022 amounted to approximately HK$774,874,000
(2021: HK$825,329,000), in which the Group considers as optimal
having considered the projected capital expenditures and the
projected investment opportunities.

The externally imposed capital requirement for the Group is in order
to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public
float of at least 25% of the shares.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars monthly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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FHINIEAER - 20229128318 * &K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 29. AARIBIBRARREEESD
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) DT AR T
Company
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FAT
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AT RIRE 22 449,650 477,091
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H b el GRIA 855 833
Due from subsidiaries NI 248,556 208,169
Bank and cash balances RITMIR S R 36,688 66,940
Total current assets REEEHEE 286,099 275,942
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables H A fERTROE 2,060 452
Due to subsidiaries FETHT B A R FIE 35,199 40,801
Total current liabilities BB EAE 37,259 41,253
Net current assets RBEERE 248,840 234,689
NET ASSETS FEE 698,490 711,780
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRH#E
Share capital [N 28 6,085 6,085
Reserves ] 29(b) 692,405 705,695
Equity Em 698,490 711,780
Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2023 and is REFEMN2023F3 431 BELEL B T
signed on its behalf by: ATREZZTEHE -
Guo Yumin Xia Yu
BER =hs

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 29.

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

Capital
Share redemption
premium reserve

BARE
R af
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TR

RATFMBRRERR FEEEE ()

(b) FATREEE

Retained
Share-based profits/

Capital payments (accumulated

reserve reserve losses)
URBA

ERH  REER/

BAGE XftRE  (REER)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT THT

A
=K

HK$'000
TAL

At 1 January 2021 "2021F1A18 601,585 53 81,955 13,866 7,869 705,328
Profit for the year EREH = = - - 367 367
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H 601,585 53 81,955 13,866 8,236 705,695
At 1 January 2022 1202281718 601,585 53 81,955 13,866 8,236 705,695
Loss for the year FAER = = = = (13,290) (13,290)
At 31 December 2022 2022812318 601,585 53 81,955 13,866 (5,054) 692,405

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. RESERVES

(@) Group

(b)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between
the par value of the shares of the Company and
proceeds received from the issuance of the shares of
the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company would be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve arises from the reduction of
the nominal value of the issued capital of the Company
upon the cancellation of the repurchased shares.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve mainly represents the contribution
from the ultimate controlling party and the difference
between the nominal value of shares of the subsidiaries
acquired over the nominal value of shares issued by the
Company in exchange under the reorganisation of the
Group on 21 June 2012.

30. f#fE

(a)

(b)

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

REE

AEBZRREBIEEHNGAEEE
Htp 2 MR B RARGAEREHRE
5l o

MENLENAR

() FRiEE
Metn i (IR A BB B B 3
1A R TR P18 5008 2
HEHE -

RERSHESREE  ARFMNR
R ERTNEZAIHDIRT AR
B - HERBERE D IKAE B
& » NRRZERBEN —REBBE
R | B ROETS o

(i) EXEORE

BR[Ol A R EE AL B AR sH B A i
BARAREHTEAEBERRD

(i) EXRfFEE
BERFEEEZERRIENTEER
FT U B BT BB A AR {7 2 B {E AN A
AIN2012F6 21 HEABER#
MEITRD 2 FEZ Z58 -

JERZEREBERAR
2022F G 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

30. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the applicable PRC regulations, all PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate
10% of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior
year/period losses) to the statutory reserve until such
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of each
relevant PRC subsidiary. The transfer to the statutory
reserve must be made before distribution of dividends
to equity shareholders. The statutory reserve fund can
be utilised, upon approval by the relevant authorities,
to offset accumulated losses or to increase registered
capital of the subsidiary.

Share-based payments reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for equity-settled share-based payments in
Note 4(t) to the consolidated financial statements.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 4(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2022

30. f@#fE(E)

(b) REEOEENRRZE)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

EEEE

REERNPEDES - AKBRA
BB EARARRENREE
FOEEHE E—EFE BEEE
BIMI0%BREEEERE BEE
ZEREEESRRTENBERR
EMEARHIS50% ° MERD KRS
TREBRAMEREEERHRE < &
RS TN ESER BRI E
®EA - EHEMB AR R
BB IMEEMER -

LU 67 R BB 2 (SRR

VAR 1 R ETE RO X N R A R AR IR MY
AR R AR s A B A B £ A T
MXAMEHBRRETAEEREER
HIARTT RN BN b5 2B

B RSBIE

BE R 1B

bE N R B R R BN R TS
WERMELENMBIELZH %
HWARIE AR & B 7% R M i A(d) # T
ZEFRTBORERIE ©



31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

DEFERRED TAX 31. EEHIA
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the B A MBI RERNELEHIBEE (&8
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements &) AR B D FIARFEZE BT ¢

during the year are as follows:

Provision for

inventories,
trade and  Undistributed Fair value
Unrealised other profits of adjustment of
Deferred tax arising from: profit (EENELE subsidiaries assets

7K -E5

BUEER
RUBUEE  WEARS HEW
BERAELE FBRA BE  FOEMA  AARERE £t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT F7T FHT FAT

At 1 January 2021 R2021F1 18 2 1,366 (6,352) (197) (5,181)
Exchange differences B = = (16) = = (16)
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss (1B ),/ 3 AfB% = (1,246) (947) 24 (2,169)
At 31 December 2021 20219128318 2 104 (7,299) (173) (7,366)
Exchange differences EHER = ) = = )
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss &t A/ (kB Bz - 20 (995) 12 (963)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAR
(Note 36(a)) (FfizE36(a)) - - - 92 92
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12 4318 2 115 (8,294) (69) (8,246)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position: RE AR RAVHER
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Deferred tax assets BRI E E 117 106
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBRE (8,363) (7,472)
(8,246) (7,366)
JEREREEERAAE

2022F G 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F12A318IEFE

31. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 31. EEHIE(HE)
At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax losses RBEHR  AEBEARDAREBIELD
of approximately HK$19,465,000 (2021: HK$17,114,000) available 19,465,000 7t (20214 : 17,114,000 JT )
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been AT AR SEAR IR o BRAR M m IR Z A
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. AIFEAIE - W RERIRERIA B E © 5t AKRHE
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately R IEEE M E1E479,337,00078 70 (20214
HK$9,337,000 (2021: HK$8,653,000) that will expire on various 8,653,000/ 70 ) 57220274 (20214F : 20264F)
dates up to 2027 (2021: 2026). Other tax losses may be carried Z BIE)N[R] B A E H o o4t 70 18 &5 48 7] & PR HR
forward indefinitely. e o

32. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS 32. EEBTHEE
The deferred government grants represented the subsidies granted BEBNMRERPEBNREES TWE
by the PRC government to the Group in respect of acquisition of BB MR R EREEES TASE /AL o

certain property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.

2022 2021

20225 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

TExT FHIT

At 1 January M1ATR 6,220 6,335
Credit to profit or loss for the year (Note 9) T AFE B (MEE9) (273) (282)
Exchange differences ME 5 FE (481) 167
At 31 December ®12A31H 5,466 6,220

Analysed as: DT -

Current liabilities mEaE 264 287
Non-current liabilities JEmEAE 5,202 5,933
5,466 6,220

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

33. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 33. ESEMRERAGENTER

2022 2021
20225 202148
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET

Trade payables Z 5 ENFUE 2,346 4,981

Other payables and accruals HAb R RIE R ETE A

— related parties — [ = 140
— third parties == 11,412 10,464
13,758 15,585

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, is as E G RNFENRR AT (REZEH) AT

follows:

2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Due within 1 month or on demand & B AR sk e Esk 165 775
Due more than 6 months 61E A& EIHA 2,181 4,206
2,346 4,981
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are REEE HRENFIENRESENAREE
denominated in RMB.
JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
 GREREHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

34. LEASE LIABILITIES 34. HEESE

Present value of
Minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments

REHENRK REHAENRNRE

2022 2021 2022 2021
20225 20215 20225 20214
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FTEx TAT TR TAT

Within one year —FER 1,846 1,601 1,002 656
More than one year, but not —FE P BT EBBMRE
exceeding two years 1,421 1,241 618 344
More than two years, but not MEA L ETBBRST
more than five years 3,738 4,132 1,455 1,556
More than five years HBiEAF 17,211 20,458 11,172 12,691
24,216 27,432 14,247 15,247
Less: Future finance charges B RRREE R (9,969) (12,185) N/A @A N/A T@EHA
Present value of lease obligations HERENRE 14,247 15,247 14,247 15,247
Less: Amount due for settlement B 1218 B AR R RS %8
within 12 months (shown (RREBAaETER)
under current liabilities) (1,002) (656)

Amount due for settlement after 12 12{& B & ZI|ERfE (& %8

months 13,245 14,591
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease ERANEE A ENINERYREEENRNF
liabilities range from 3.80% to 11.18% (2021: from 2.55% to 3.80%%11.18% (20214 :2.55%%11.18%) ©
11.18%).

The carrying amounts of the Group's lease liabilities are AEFHREAENETAEN T EBHE :

denominated in the following currencies:

2022 2021
20225 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FBT

HK$ BT 804 236
RMB AR 13,443 15,011
14,247 15,247

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the then sole shareholder
passed on 22 June 2012, a pre-IPO share option scheme (the “share
option scheme”) was approved and adopted to provide grantees
with the opportunity to acquire equity interest in the Company.

The purpose of the share option scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time), directors and advisers of the Group and to
promote the success of the business of the Group.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

(@  The terms and conditions of the grants at the date of the
grants are as follows:

35.

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

BABR 45 LR M0 3% 14

RIEE R —IRRAR2012F6 A22HRBHE
BRERR - B LFEEAIERERT 2 (B
HERTE] | ) R AN - BEAR AREHSE
BARR AR AR

B SIS ERSI MR ERENATAAS -
AAEERE(28) EFREARRHEINE
FEDIA B (R AN SR B ZE TS RO D)

A MR T35 AREFI AR 7 — R
AL - A AR B A -

() IR B EIPTR BRI R R #T
LU

Options granted to

BFUAT ATHERE
Date granted Vesting date Expiry date Directors Employees
RHBH FEAH A BEx =1
29 January 2015 29 January 2016 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 H29H 201641 H29H 202541 H28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2017 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 H29H 201741 H29H 2025%F1 H28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2018 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 529H 201841 A29H 202541 728H
29 January 2015 29 January 2019 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 H29H 201941 H29H 202541 H28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2020 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
2015514298 202041 A29H 202541 H28H

2,100,000 12,500,000 14,600,000

IERZEREEERAF

2022F G 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRERMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 128318 LFE
35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 35. RO AEHENZMN(E)
(b)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (b) EERREEMZE MbEFHITERBOT ¢

options are as follows:

Share options granted
on 29 January 2015

72015515298 &% H B R #E
Weighted
average No. of
exercise price options
N7 EE BRERE
‘000
TR
Outstanding at 1 January 2022 and 720221 A1H &20224F
31 December 2022 12431 B ARTTE 0.8250 49,550
Exercisable at 31 December 2022 7K2022F12 A31BAJ17{E 0.8250 49,550
Outstanding at 1 January 2021 and 1K2021F1 18 Kk20214
31 December 2021 12 A31B R ARTTE 0.8250 49,550
Exercisable at 31 December 2021 72021412 A31 B A1 T 0.8250 49,550
The share options granted on 29 January 2015 outstanding at 20154 1 429 B #t £ if1 54 2022 12
31 December 2022 had an exercise price of HK$0.8250 (2021: RA31BRARITHENERENITEER
HK$0.8250) and a weighted average remaining contractual 0.82507&7C (20214 : 0.8250/87T) * &
life of 2.08 years (2021: 3.08 years). TN E KV EAR %2.084F (20214
3.08%F) °
The numbers of options and weighted average exercise price REIRIES B RN TER B TR R A TR
were presented as after the effect of the share subdivision ME2015F9 A24 A RBAEME - RERA
with effect from 24 September 2015 on the basis of each NEIE BT AR EITRD T A4 T4
issued or unissued share of the Company was subdivided into &z HEZT -

4 subdivided shares.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries during the year

ended 31 December 2022

On 17 May 2022, the Group entered into a share purchase
agreement to dispose of the entire issued share capital
of Treasure Cloud Limited (“Treasure Cloud”) and 100%
equity interests in Falcon Wisdom Limited, Sheyang Tengyun
Information Technology Co., Ltd., Xuyi Guangcai Information
Technology Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Qianhai Tengzhiyun
Network Sci. & Tech. Limited owned by Treasure Cloud at
a cash consideration of HK$21,380,000 to an independent
third party. The disposal was completed on 10 June 2022.
Treasure Cloud and its subsidiaries were inactive during the
period.

Net assets of Treasure Cloud and its subsidiaries at the date
of disposal were as follows:

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

36. EREREBRME

(a)

E£2022F12A31BILFELE
Vo) NG|

20225178 - ANE MR BB
% ' MY % = A & Treasure Cloud
Limited ([ Treasure Cloud|) By 2 2 E 317
& AN LA Kz Treasure Cloud#E & BIME % 5 IR
AR GIGREREERHRBER AR - iR
Eo{E ERHE AR A R RORYIANEE 2
EMEBEBRAR100% 8% - BEK
{8/421,380,000/8 T - Z L EFEHER
202246 A 10H 586X © Treasure Cloud &
H A TR BRI T TR 7S o

A H & B BiTreasure Cloud & E KB A 7]
HEEFENR :

HK$'000
THAT

Property, plant and equipment e N 70
Intangible assets mREE 501
Other non-financial assets HiJEemEE 140
Trade and other receivables H 5 ek IE K HAb FE W R A 23,971
Bank and cash balances RITMIRS R 782
Other payables H A et 708 (110)
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIE S F (92)
Net assets disposed of & EEFE 25,262
Release of exchange reserve T E R 471
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 10) S M A B ES R (B9EE10) (4,353)
Total consideration BB 21,380
Consideration satisfied by: ATHFHAZARE :
Cash B 21,380
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: PEEERBESRAFE
Cash consideration received BEUWIRENRE 21,380
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FrtERe MBS EEE (782)
20,598
VAR WS IR 2 F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 36. Z&8BRE&RERMZT(E)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Disposal of a subsidiary during the year (b) BZ2021F12A31HILEEHE
ended 31 December 2021 MBS AT
The Group entered into a share purchase agreement to AEE I ERBEABIE=THLE
dispose of 51% equity interests in Xuzhou Xinbai New BN EFEBERMFEERAR (A
Kinetic Energy Science Technology Co., Ltd. (“Xinbai New MBRE ) S1%RE  RERARE
Kinetic Energy”), at a cash consideration of RMB10,200,000 10,200,000 7t ( #8 & 7 49 12,300,000 &
(equivalents to approximately HK$12,300,000) to an TL) c ZHEESZHEERN2021F9A6H %
independent third party and the disposal was completed on B o B AR EWEERE KAEER

6 September 202 1. The subsidiary was engaged in properties 7% o
development and related services.

Net assets of Xinbai New Kinetic Energy at the date of RS BHSEFEENEEFEN T ¢
disposal were as follows:

HK$'000
TAT

Inventories FE8 17,450
Other receivables HAb U sRIA 42
Bank and cash balances RIT RIS A 1,376
Other payables Hh fE TR (76)
Net assets disposed of & EEFE 18,792
Release of exchange reserve T e (334)
Exclusion of the carrying amount of non-controlling 5l JE2 A 25 BRI (B
interests (4,349)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 10) HEH B A REE(KIEE10) (1,809)
Total consideration BRE 12,300
Consideration satisfied by: LA A R ZARIE
Cash B 9,606
Sales proceeds receivable FEUSSH & FTISFE 2,694
12,300
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEERRSRNFE
Cash consideration received BUSRERE 9,606
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FrHERe kReSEEE (1,376)
8,230

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(0

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

At
ANELVETSY
2022 Cash flows
120224

1A1H
HK$'000
T

Lease liabilities HEAE
(Note 34) (B3E34) 15,247

mEMBHERME 00

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F12831BIEFE

36. MERESHRERMNT(E)

(0

RERg
HK$°000
TR

(1,017)

MEETBTELENEBEYHR

TRAMAEEREZBDMELNBER
B BEREMFRSEH - BEEBA
EENBEEAREGERSRERTH
EREBEDBERIARKRS RN ES
RELBMELNRSRNELE

Additions
nE

HK$°000
TR

1,187

At

Exchange 31 December
differences 2022
120225

EXER 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET

(1,170) 14,247

Lease liabilities (Note 34) HEaEFIE34)

At

1 January
2021
20224
1H18
HK$'000
FHTT

15,914

Cash flows

RERE
HK$'000
FTAET

(1,071)

At

Exchange 31 December
differences 2021
20214

MEH =58 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT

404 15,247

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 36. Z&8BRE&RERMZT(E)

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases

(d) HERSRHAE

Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash AFAGEHERERTNHEESTEUTE
flows for leases comprise the following:

B

2022 2021

20224F 20214

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FHT

Within operating cash flows LR REF 2,273 3,602
Within investing cash flows FHREREREF - 1,590
Within financing cash flows FRERER= 1,017 1,071
3,290 6,263

These amounts relate to the following:

ZECRELTAEAM

2022 2021

20225 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER T

Lease rental paid BfHEE 3,290 4,673
Payments for right-of-use assets EREEERNK = 1,590
3,290 6,263

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 36. R REBERMF(E)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

37.

(e) Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without (e) HER—MNEESIENKEQ
loss of control TR

HE202F12A31HILFE - KEEE
EBEHER — B2 EHERQRIN40%E
5 o HEBARR RS R (GRS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
disposed of 40% interests in a wholly-owned subsidiary at
nil consideration. The effect of the disposal on the equity

attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company is as IRBIT :
follows:
HK$'000
FHT
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests & SEIE AR R A Y AR T (B
disposed 260
Consideration received from non-controlling A FEFE AR e R A R (B
interests -
Gain on disposal recognised directly in equity BENERERN LS K 260
(f) Major non-cash transaction ) EEFBEERS
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group HE202F12A31HIEFE - AEEK
acquired right-of-use assets of HK$1,187,000 which was BE{E L EE 1,187,000 7T © 5% EH
financed by lease liabilities. HEBERE -
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37. HAREE
As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant M2022F12 A31 8 - REBE WM ERNLA
contingent liabilities (2021: Nil). BEQ0214F : ) o

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 38.

The Group as lessee

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for offices. As
at 31 December 2022, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar
to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term lease
expense disclosed in Note 19.

As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding lease commitments
relating to these offices are approximately HK$102,000 (2021:
HK$368,000).

The Group as lessor

Operating leases relate to buildings owned by the Group with lease
terms of 1 year (2021: 1 year). The lessee does not have an option
to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

The following table presents the amounts reported in profit or loss:

Lease income on operating leases

RERERY
REBER/FEBAA

AEBETHTIHAZEHHEE - B2022412
A318 - RHAEEAA EHEI19P HENRE S
FES e A EAAS AL -

R2022F 128318 » ZEHAEHBEHRER
FHEAHEX)102,00078 70 (20214F : 368,000/
JT) °

REBE/HAA

AEEEERTHRE CEEENEMF
(20214F : 14F) « FAFH A B B IE i I B

TREJNEEETRENSHE -

2022
20224

2021
20214
HK$'000
FBT

HK$°000
TEx

71 44

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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39.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, transactions with
the following parties are considered to be related party transactions:

Mr. Guo Yumin

BEREE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

39. EXBEBARS

REZE2021FK2022512 A31BILFEER - &
THEHETHORZEEEEE RS

Director and the ultimate controlling party of the Company

Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (Note)

MR ERE AR AR (M)

Cheng Jun Group Limited
HEEEEGRAR

Union Winful Limited
B e K EHRAT

Sheen Dragon Properties Limited

e EFARAR

Hong Kong Rising Star Group Holdings Limited

EEEREEEZERARAR

Hong Kong Sheen Dragon Investment Company Limited

FRNMEREBRAR

Xuzhou Lvzhou Property Management Co., Ltd (Note)

BINEMNEE AR R ()

Note: The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official

names of these entities are in Chinese.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a)

Remuneration for key management personnel of the

Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
as disclosed in Note 15 and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in Note 14(b), is as follows:

ARREE RRRIESTT

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HBERELEESR

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HBERELEESR

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HBERELEESR

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HAEREEHEE

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
B EREEHEE

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
B EREEHE

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HAEREEHEE

B

BRE - EXAMHEZRBERSE - ZEFERNES

BRELAR SR ©

FEEE A S HH
REBMEFEETEASFM(BIERMF5
PR B T EF LM 14(b) Tk B8
X FE T &EEFMESHRIE) &5 0
T~

2022 2021

20225 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER FHT

Short-term employee benefits EHE BAE T 3,943 4,827
Post-employment benefits BERRR A 166 173
4,109 5,000

Total remuneration is disclosed in *

staff costs” in Note 14.

Hr R MY 141 B TRCAR [P 305R -

JERZEREBERAR
2022F G 3R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Other related party transactions

In addition to those related party transactions disclosed in
Note 39(a) to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following transactions with its related parties
during the year:

(b) HitbEAm

B%%:?éﬁﬁ%i&ﬂﬁw( )P4 B8 %

FRBIN - AL R E R

39. EXBEBARS (&)

xRS

ﬁl:ﬂ??é% :

=
$7R]

2
E

2022
20224
Repayment
Repayment received
Rental torelated from related
expenses parties parties
1R R g 75 WER
HEMx MABKLSER M
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FTHET FExT FHET
Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate HRNIRBES H A R B
Development Co., Ltd. BIRAA] 397 (397) 397
Cheng Jun Group Limited WEEBBR AT = (11) 11
Union Winful Limited smeEﬁFE’RT - (10) 10
Sheen Dragon Properties Limited ImEEEBRA 100 (185) 185
Hong Kong Rising Star Group éf?%%)ﬁ%@@ﬂﬁ
Holdings Limited BRAT = (8) 8
Hong Kong Sheen Dragon BEmEREARAA
Investment Company Limited - (2) 2
Xuzhou Lvzhou Property WINAEM B TR
Management Co., Ltd. BRAT = (140) =
Mr. Guo Yumin BEREE 600 (849) 1,038
1,097 1,602 1,651

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Other related party transactions (continued)

FMNmREE AR R B R

Management Rental

EEE MEFZ R ITENR
HK$'000
THET

mEMBHERME 00

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

39. EXBEBARS (&)

(b) HtbEBELXZ (&)

2021
202148
Repayment
Repayment received

to related  from related

fee expenses parties parties
e s 75 UCER
HYIE K
HK$'000
T

HK$'000
FH

HK$'000
TAT

Development Co., Ltd. NG - 735 - 1,187
Cheng Jun Group Limited ~ HESBEBR AR - - (22) 22
Union Winful Limited A K EERAT - - (5) 5
Sheen Dragon Properties ImEEXEAR A

Limited - - (31) 178
Hong Kong Rising Star HEEREEIERAERR

Group Holdings Limited Al - - (64) 64
Hong Kong Sheen Dragon ~ &/&IG IR E R AR

Investment Company

Limited - - (2) 2
Xuzhou Lvzhou Property RMNEMNEBTBERA

Management Co., Ltd. Gl 580 = = =
Mr. Guo Yumin PERKE - 793 (1,496) 1,087

580 1,528 (1,620) 2,545
JEREREEERAAE

2022F G 3R 201
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A318LEFE

39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. EXBEHARXS (&)
(CONTINUED)

(c) Balances with related parties (c) EERAEESEVAEER
At 31 December 2021 and 2022, the Group had the 20214 %2022 128318 » ANEB
following balances with related parties: B AT ER R 75 HOERER -
2022 AV
20224F 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
Due from director and ultimate FEWNE = R ae AR5 6 5 5B
controlling party
— Mr. Guo Yumin —SEREE (i) 238 427
Due to a related company JEAS RARS A B 5RIE
— Xuzhou Lvzhou Property —HRMENDEBRER
Management Co., Ltd. NG (i) - (140)
238 287
Note: MIsE -
(i) The amounts due from/(to) a related company and a director (i) U (R B AT REETIEE R
are interest-free and expected to be recovered within one year. B BTESR —FAlkE -
40. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 40. #HLEBTEERE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by B EHRAR N 2023 F3 A3 AR EST S AT IR
the Board of Directors on 31 March 2023. TS o

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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The following is a summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years:

RESULTS

Revenue

Summary Financial Information

MZERBE

2022

202245
HK$'000
FERT

TXRBEREMRFEARECTIEREUREE

REEIHE

Year ended 31 December
BEZ128310LLEE

2021 2020 2019
20214 2020%F 20195
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FAT FET

2018
201845
HK$'000
FAT

Continuing operations FECEER 315,701 66,113 79,525 75,259 111,814
Discontinued operations BRIEE 5 = - 270,105 300,949 342,013
315,701 66,113 349,630 376,208 453,827
Profit/(loss) before tax BATER, (B18) 12,089 (6,129) 14,226 (36,904) (20,665)
Income tax expense Fr{S i sz (4,785) (775) (4,439) (1,815) (6,747)
Profit/(loss) for the year from BEQEEBFA
continuing operations sl (E518) 7,304 (6,904) 9,787 (38,719) (27,412)
Profit/(loss) for the year from BERIEEEEBEN
discontinued operations A,/ (E518) = = 6,755 (9,154) 796
Profit/(loss) for the year FRRF/ (ER) 7,304 (6,904) 16,542 (47,873) (26,616)
Attributable to: AT ATRENR
Equity shareholders of the RRAERRR
Company 7,313 (6,794) 15,053 (47,873) (26,498)
Non-controlling interests FEE R RS (9 (110) 1,489 = (118)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/ (BE) 7,304 (6,904) 16,542 (47,873) (26,616)
JEREREEERAAE

2022F G 3R
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Summary Financial Information
MBERME

As at 31 December
®W12H31H

2022 PAA 2020 2019 2018

20225 20214 20204 20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAT T T T

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Non-current assets FERBEE 303,017 341,788 343,688 512,355 535,058
Current assets EEE 525,235 540,055 529,326 471,286 586,747
Current liabilities mEaE (26,835) (28,518) (32,721) (190,059) (284,654)
Non-current liabilities EREaE (26,810) (27,996) (27,451) (27,931) (5,844)
Net assets FEE 774,607 825,329 812,842 765,651 831,307
Attributable to: AN AL FEL :
Equity shareholders of the ARAIRERRER

Company 774,874 825,329 812,842 765,651 831,307
Non-controlling interests FEER R (267) = = = -
Total equity T AEEE 774,607 825,329 812,842 765,651 831,307

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability IREEEBSEMBIIBRAT)
Stock Code BRADL% : 1335
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